
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Joint Chief Executive 

Rob Barlow 
 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

LB/COUNCIL/AG 

Please ask for:  Lorraine Bush 
 
13 November 2020 
 

TO:  ALL MEMBERS OF THE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

MEETING OF THE COUNCIL – 23 NOVEMBER 2020 

 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a virtual meeting of the Council on Monday 23 November 
2020 at 6.30 p.m. 
 
This will be a meeting held in line with The Local Authorities & Police & Crime 
Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority & Police & Crime Panel 
Meetings) England & Wales Regulations 2020.   
 
Members joining instructions to follow. 
 

 
 

 
 

ROBERT BARLOW 
Joint Chief Executive 
 

 

AGENDA 
PART I - Preliminaries 
 

A. To sign the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 26 October 2020.  
 

B. To receive apologies for absence. 
 

C. To receive communications (if any) from the Mayor and the Chief Executive. 
 

D. To answer questions (if any) from elected members pursuant to Rule 11 of the 
Council’s Rules of Procedure (as amended by the Protocol and Procedure 
Rules for Remote Meetings). 
 

E. To answer questions (if any) from members of the public pursuant to Rule 10 
of the Council’s Rules of Procedure (as amended by the Protocol and 
Procedure Rules for Remote Meetings). 
 

F. To receive declarations by Members of any interests in respect of items on 
the agenda. 

Public Document Pack



 
 

PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1   OUTSTANDING APPOINTMENTS TO CHAIRMANSHIPS AND EXTERNAL 
ORGANISATIONS (Pages 9 - 20) 
 

 (Report by the Monitoring Officer)  
 

2   LICENSING ACT 2003 - DRAFT STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY  
(Pages 21 - 62) 
 

 (Report by the Licensing and Land Charges Manager) 
 
Portfolio Holder: Councillor Yvonne Stevens  
 

3   COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME - 2021/22 (Pages 63 - 70) 
 

 (Report by the Council Tax and Benefits Manager) 
 
Portfolio Holder: Councillor Jonathan Noble   
 

4   CORPORATE STRATEGY/PRIORITIES 2020-2024 (Pages 71 - 106) 
 

 (Report by the Assistant Director – Organisation and Corporate Services) 
 
Portfolio Holder: Councillor Nigel Welton  
 

5   ANNUAL SCRUTINY REPORT 2019-20 (Pages 107 - 126) 
 

 (A report by the Democratic Services Manager) 
 

 

 
Questions from Members of the Council and the public must be received by 5 p.m. two clear 
working days prior to the day of the meeting – the deadline for this meeting is  

5 p.m. on Wednesday 18 November 2020. 
 

 

Members of the public: 
 
This meeting will be held virtually via Zoom and streamed live via the following link. 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCsz_igjTc1WQX-EZWY8rQ9w 

 
 

 
Alternative Versions - Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format 
such as larger text, Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on 
direct dial (01205) 314227 
 
The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Lorraine Bush, 
Democratic Services Manager, Municipal Buildings, Boston Telephone 01205 314224  e-mail 
lorraine.bush@boston.gov.uk 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCsz_igjTc1WQX-EZWY8rQ9w


BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
At the meeting of Boston Borough Council held via Zoom, on Monday, 26th October, 
2020 at 6.30 pm 
 
Present: 
The Mayor (Councillor Anton Dani), in the Chair 
Councillors Tracey Abbott, Tom Ashton, Alison Austin, Richard Austin BEM, Alan Bell, 
Peter Bedford, David Brown, Michael Cooper, George Cornah, Anne Dorrian, 
Viven Edge, Deborah Evans, Paul Goodale, Martin Griggs, Neill Hastie, 
Martin Howard MSc. PCGM, Cert Ed, Jonathan Noble, Frank Pickett, Brian Rush, 
Judith Skinner, Paul Skinner, Aaron Spencer, Yvonne Stevens, Peter Watson, 
Judith Welbourn, Nigel Welton and Stephen Woodliffe 
 
Officers –  
Joint Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive (Place) & Monitoring Officer, Deputy 
Chief Executive (People), Section 151 Officer and Senior Democratic Services Officer 
 
Guests -   
Neil Kempster, Chestnut Homes, Chairman of the Town Deal Board, 
Jacqui Bunce, NHS 
Claire Foster, Principal of Boston College 
Greg Pickup, Heritage Lincolnshire 
Matthew Van Lier, Haven High Academy 
 
103   MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the meetings of the Council, held on 10 August 2020, were taken as 
read and signed by the Mayor as a correct record.  
 
104   APOLOGIES 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Chelcei Trafford. 
 
105   COMMUNICATIONS 

 
The Chief Executive advised the meeting that Colin Woodcock had resigned from the 
Council with immediate effect and he wished him all the best for the future on behalf of 
the Council.  This would affect the political proportionality of the Council and officers 
would look at this the following day.   
 
106   DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS 

 
The Chief Executive reported there were no deputations or petitions.  
 
107   QUESTIONS FROM ELECTED MEMBERS 

 
The Chief Executive reported there were no questions from Elected Members. 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item A.



108   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 

The Chief Executive reported there was one question from a member of the public. 
 
Question asked by Mr Jody Raggo pursuant to paragraph 10 of the Rules of 
Procedure as set out in the Constitution. 
 
“Question to the Leader of the Council - What are the reasons why Boston Borough 
Council did not instruct Boston College to also incorporate the Training Pool facility, a 
well used and valued asset at Geoff Moulder Leisure Centre, into the latest plans for the 
Mayflower Suite and what are the Borough Council plans to provide a dedicated training 
pool for our upcoming Bostonian athletes and swimmers in the future?”  
 

Response by Councillor Paul Skinner  

“Thank you for your question, Mr Raggo. 
 
“Firstly, there are many uses to the training pool in the Geoff Moulder Leisure Centre. 
My observation is that we didn’t instruct anybody to do anything at this stage, because 
we are in the early stages of scheme development and we will need to decide the 
precise combination through an intuitive process that takes account of cost of 
maintaining, improving, replacing and/or relocating various facilities. 
 
“There are various projects that the Town Board are in the process of bidding for and 
Boston Borough Council is the fund holder for this process. The Town Board are the 
generator of the schemes and these are not fully developed projects yet. They are 
developed schemes, but the detail is probably not all there at this stage. There were 
some bits shared with us last week. I can confirm to you that I was probably one of the 
few Councillors here today that took part in the protest march 10 years ago and also that 
Positive Futures aided by Boston Canoe Club were actually using the training pool prior 
to it being heated and prior to it being open to members of the public.” 
 
 
Supplemental question asked by Councillor Rush pursuant to paragraph 10.8 of 
the Rules of Procedure as set out in the Constitution:- 
 
“At the cabinet meeting on Wed 9th Sep, the cabinet agreed the following 
recommendation “that the Deputy Chief Executive (Strategy) be authorised to 
communicate to the Principal of Boston College that the Council is minded to enter into 
an agreement to lease the Geoff Moulder Centre in order to facilitate the development of 
the College’s Mayflower Centre project.” and the Deputy Chief Executive (Strategy) 
communicated to the cabinet during the meeting that Boston College needed 
reassurances from Boston Borough Council so they can instruct their architects to 
develop plans for the Mayflower Suite.  
 
“Also at the Town Board meeting on the 5th October, which both you and Cllr Goodale 
attended as representatives of Boston Borough Council, the board agreed for the 
college to develop a proposal to incorporate the leisure pool into the designs for the 
Mayflower Suite. I, therefore, respectfully disagree with you that the Boston Borough 
Council have not instructed anyone to do anything at this time.  
 

Page 2



Full Council 
26 October 2020 

 

 
 

“I therefore like to ask again why there has been little to no consideration in 
incorporating the training pool facility (alongside the leisure pool) into any future plans 
for the Mayflower Suite or PE21 and will the Boston Borough Council tonight make a 
commitment to support the users of the Training Pool (including the Boston Amateur 
Swimming Club, Boston Canoe Club, the Sub-Aqua Club, the Sea Cadets and the many 
other groups) in providing an alternative suitable location to use if the Training Pool 
facility does not feature in any future plans?” 
 
 
Response by Councillor Skinner 

“Thank you for your supplementary question, Mr Raggo. 
 
“The clue is in the wording actually – “minded to”. Quite frankly, anybody can have plans 
to do anything with anybody else’s property, but there is little point in doing anything at 
all unless people are actually minded to even look at it.  So, at the moment this is all in 
very early stages and it is that we are minded to look at it. This is part of a bid process. 
The bid process is due to be in for 31st of this month.  
 
“This process was started in January. Our colleagues in economic development worked 
very hard with the Town Committee to actually pull all this together so that it can actually 
be considered. So at the moment nobody is committed to anything exactly, only the 
principles to look at it and the principles to receive a grant, and I very much hope that 
everybody in the town will actually welcome the work that’s gone in.  
 
“You will hear a little bit later on that £25 million of the Government there’s another £13 
million that is added to that: this project is £38 million to this town. So, it’s quite easy, do 
we consider it or do we just park it? I think we consider it and work very hard to look at 
all the solutions possible.” 
 
 
109   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
Councillor Martin Howard declared an interest in the Town Investment Fund as he was 
an employee of Boston College and, as he did not feel it would be appropriate to be 
involved in discussion regarding the Geoff Moulder Centre site, he would abstain from 
the vote. 
 
Councillor Martin Griggs declared that he was also an employee of Boston College, but 
did not feel that this would prevent him from voting on the Town Investment Fund. 
 
110   REFERRAL FROM CALL-IN  - PE21 THE NEXT STEPS 

 
Full Council considered a referral from the Corporate & Community Committee of a 
Cabinet decision called-in by Scrutiny Members in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution. 
 

Page 3



The Cabinet decision, made on 9th September 2020, was: 
 

3.  That the Deputy Chief Executive (Strategy) be authorised to communicate to the 
Principal of Boston College that the Council is minded to enter into an agreement to 
lease and a lease for the Geoff Moulder Centre in order to facilitate the development 
of the College’s Mayflower Centre project. 

 
The Chairman of the Corporate & Community Committee addressed Full Council to 
present the findings from the Committee’s consideration of the issue at its meeting on 1 
October, referring to the original reasons given for calling in the issue, as follows: 
 

 All Elected Members should have been consulted prior to the decision being made 

 All information relating to the project should have been made available 

 No presentation had been made to the Corporate and Community Committee 

 There were no indication of costs in the 2020/21 Budget and MTFS 
 
The Chairman stated that the Committee had decided to refer the matter to Full Council 
for debate, as other Members had been unaware that Cabinet would be considering a 
request for the lease of the Geoff Moulder Centre site.  They were concerned that this 
would lead to the closure and demolition of the swimming pools when there were no 
definite or specific plans to replace them.  It was also felt that the estimated cost quoted 
for replacement was not convincing. The Committee therefore asked Full Council to 
reconsider the matter and seek clarification of exactly what had been agreed. 
 
During Full Council’s debate, the main concerns raised by some Members were given 
as follows, in summary: 
 

 The Geoff Moulder Centre should not be leased until a replacement swimming pool 
had been designed and constructed, as it was a valued asset; 

 

 Members were not being kept up-to-date with developments on a matter that should 
be a decision of Full Council; 

 

 The lack of consultation with Members and members of the public regarding what 
was a vital community service;  

 

 The lack of clarity as to whether there was to be a new pool or whether it was 
planned to incorporate the existing pool within the proposed Mayflower Centre; 

 

 The Council had previously spent a significant amount of money on refurbishing the 
Geoff Moulder Centre and a decision should have been taken to lease the site before 
that. 

 
Other Members remarked that nothing had been agreed by Cabinet, but it was important 
to reassure the public that nothing would happen to the Geoff Moulder Centre before the 
provision of a replacement pool and a decision by Full Council. This matter related to the 
Town Investment Plan bid, for which the deadline was imminent, and which would 
provide exciting and improved facilities for the people of Boston.  There was a 
suggestion that it would be advantageous to incorporate a training pool into plans. 
 

Page 4



Full Council 
26 October 2020 

 

 
 

The Deputy Leader stressed that Cabinet had not made a decision on the matter and 
that it had purely given permission to the Deputy Chief Executive (Strategy) to talk to a 
partner regarding how to facilitate plans.  No decision had been made and when it 
became time to make a decision, it would be made by Full Council.  
 
On conclusion of debate it was proposed by Councillor Anne Dorrian and seconded by 
Councillor Alan Bell and  
 

RESOLVED that the called-in issue be referred back to Cabinet for further 
reconsideration setting out in writing the nature of the concerns of both the Call-
In meeting and those of Full Council. 

 
111   TOWN INVESTMENT PLAN 

 
The Deputy Chief Executive (Place) introduced a report detailing the Boston Town Deal 
Board’s Town Investment Plan (TIP) prior to its submission to the Ministry of Housing 
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG).  
 
Each Town Investment Plan included proposals for up to £25 million to invest in 
regeneration, skills and connectivity to secure transformational levels of economic 
growth. The deadline for submission of the Town Investment Plan was 30 October 2020. 
 
Following the agreement of Heads of Terms with MHCLG, towns would have up to 12 
months to complete comprehensive business cases for selected projects and submit a 
Summary Document to show that this had been completed in line with the agreed 
conditions and requirements in the Heads of Terms. Once towns had developed detailed 
business cases for their agreed projects and submitted all the required documentation 
as part of the Summary Document, Government would carry out a high-level 
assessment of the document before releasing funding. 
 
The award of up to £25m from the Towns Fund created a huge opportunity to help 
shape the future of both the Town and the Borough of Boston. Responding to the 
requirements of phase one of the prospectus would ensure that the Council was well-
placed to deliver phase two and continue to use the platform of the Town Deal to deliver 
additional investment in Boston by continuing to work with partners and business. 
 
Four partners from the Town Board were then welcomed and invited to make 
presentations to the meeting: Neil Kempster of Chestnut Homes, Chairman of the Town 
Board, Jackie Bunce, NHS, Matt Van Lear, Head Teacher of Haven High Academy, 
Claire Foster, Principal of Boston College and Greg Pickup, Heritage Lincolnshire. 
 
The Deputy Leader, Councillor Nigel Welton, thanked the representatives for their 
inspirational work and wished them luck with the submission of their remarkable plan.  
 
Councillor Welton then MOVED that 
 
1. The Town Investment Plan be noted. 
 
2. To note the Chief Executive will submit to MHCLG the Town Investment 

Plan, as approved by the Boston Town Deal Board by the 30 October 2020. 

Page 5



 
3. To note that the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Boston Town Deal Board may 

make refinements to the Boston Town Deal Investment Plan. 
 
This was seconded by the Leader, Councillor Paul Skinner 
 
Members described the TIP as an important and exciting opportunity and tribute was 
paid to the Deputy Chief Executive for her central role in bringing all partners together so 
effectively and quickly, which was a major achievement. 
 
Members were impressed with the cooperation between partners and thanked the 
representatives present for their passion and care and desire to bring forward the 
projects. The investment and transformation in the long-term were key drivers and would 
provide many jobs. 
 
A Member added that the High School and Grammar School should have been involved 
with the plan.  Another expressed dissatisfaction with the plan and would not support it 
on the grounds of lack of detail, transparency and consultation, particularly in relation to 
the pool.  A final point was made regarding the inaccessibility of the town and the need 
to upgrade transport infrastructure to make any projects successful. 
 
In response to a question, it was confirmed that the refinements referred to in the third 
part of the proposal would be made by the chairman and vice-chairman of the Town 
Deal Board, but they would be circulated to all members of the board for agreement. 
 
It was then proposed that the motion be amended so that Town Investment Plan was 
not only noted but also supported in the Council’s resolution and this was agreed by the 
proposer and seconder.   
 
In summing up, the Leader praised the plan, its aspirations and ambitions for the town 
and community and urged Members to support the plan to give people hope, as it was a 
fantastic opportunity.   
 
The Board Members were thanked by all Members for their motivational presentations. 
 
The proposal was then put to the vote and it was: 
 

RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The Town Investment Plan be noted and supported. 
 
2. It be noted that the Chief Executive will submit to MHCLG the Town 

Investment Plan, as approved by the Boston Town Deal Board by the 30 
October 2020. 

 
3. It be noted that the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Boston Town Deal Board may 

make refinements to the Boston Town Deal Investment Plan. 

Page 6



Full Council 
26 October 2020 

 

 
 

 
112   REVIEW OF APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES, CHAIRMANSHIPS AND 

EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 
 

The Deputy Chief Executive (Place) introduced the report which related to appointments 
for the remainder of the 2020/21 Municipal Year with respect to Membership of 
Committees, appointment of Chairman and Vice-Chairman, and appointments to 
external organisations. 
 
The Deputy Chief Executive pointed out that a small number of positions were 
oversubscribed. In addition, the resignation of Colin Woodcock that day, as announced 
by the Chief Executive at the beginning of the meeting, would result in changes to the 
political proportionality of committee Membership. This would be recalculated and the 
Chief Executive would use his delegated authority to make any subsequent changes to 
appointments as soon as was reasonable and practicable.  Group Leaders would then 
be notified. 
 
The Leader, Councillor Paul Skinner, MOVED that 
 
1. The membership of the Committees and arrangements for substitutes as set out in 

Appendix A be approved. Such appointees to hold office whilst they remain Members 
of the Council, until the next Annual Meeting of the Council, or until the appointment 
of their successors; 

2. The nominations for appointment of Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of Committees set 
out at Appendix B which are not oversubscribed be approved, with the addition that 
Councillor George Cornah and Councillor Deborah Evans be appointed as Chairman 
and Vice-Chairman of the Corporate and Community Committee. Such appointees to 
hold office whilst they remain Members of the Council, until the next Annual Meeting 
of the Council, or until the appointment of their successors;  

3. The appointment of Members to serve as the Council’s representatives on those 
external organisations where the Council is the appointing body which are not 
oversubscribed, as set out in Appendix C be approved, to hold office whilst they 
remain Members of the Council, until the next Annual Meeting of the Council, or until 
the appointment of their successors. 

 
This was seconded by the Deputy Leader, Councillor Nigel Welton. 
 
An amendment was then proposed by Councillor Alison Austin and seconded by 
Councillor Judith Welbourn that the appointment of Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen be 
delegated to the individual Committees to appoint them at their first meetings.  Some 
Members agreed with this proposal on the grounds that it was not appropriate for the 
majority group to chair committees and the view was also expressed that unaligned 
Members should be given a role on committees. 
 
However, when this amendment was put to the vote it fell with the Mayor’s casting vote. 
 
A second amendment was then proposed by Councillor Paul Goodale that Councillor 
Dorrian be appointed Chairman of the Environment and Performance Committee, 
Councillor Stephen Woodliffe be appointed Chairman of Corporate and Community 

Page 7



Committee, and Councillor Peter Bedford be appointed the Chairman of the Planning 
Committee. This amendment was seconded by Councillor Alan Bell. 
 
There were further comments regarding the rationale behind the political proportionality 
calculations and the view that unaligned Members should be represented. The view was 
reiterated that it was not correct for Members of the majority party to chair committees, 
in particular, Scrutiny and Audit and Governance Committees.  In addition, it was 
asserted that representation on the internal drainage boards should include a Member 
from the Boston Town Area Committee. 
 
However, when this second amendment was put to the vote it fell. 
 
It was then proposed and seconded and carried by the requisite number of Councillors 
that the question be now put. 
 
[Councillor Richard Austin and Councillor Viven Edge had lost connection to the meeting 
at this point.] 
 
The original proposal was then put to the vote and it was –  
 

RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The membership of the Committees and arrangements for substitutes as set 

out in Appendix A be approved. Such appointees to hold office whilst they 
remain Members of the Council, until the next Annual Meeting of the Council, 
or until the appointment of their successors; 

2. The nominations for appointment of Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of 
Committees set out at Appendix B which are not oversubscribed be approved, 
with the addition that Councillor George Cornah and Councillor Deborah Evans 
be appointed as Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Corporate and 
Community Committee. Such appointees to hold office whilst they remain 
Members of the Council, until the next Annual Meeting of the Council, or until 
the appointment of their successors;  

3. The appointment of Members to serve as the Council’s representatives on 
those external organisations where the Council is the appointing body which 
are not oversubscribed, as set out in Appendix C be approved, to hold office 
whilst they remain Members of the Council, until the next Annual Meeting of 
the Council, or until the appointment of their successors. 

 
Members discussed how to consider the remaining business, i.e. the appointment of two 
chairmen and representatives on an internal drainage board, which were 
oversubscribed. Extension of the meeting was considered, but the consensus of the 
meeting was that this business be carried forward to the next meeting of Full Council on 
23 November 2020. 
 
 
 
 
 

(The meeting ended at 9.30 pm) 

Page 8



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: COUNCIL 

DATE: 23 NOVEMBER 2020  

SUBJECT: OUTSTANDING APPOINTMENTS TO CHAIRMANSHIPS AND 
EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: N/A 

REPORT AUTHOR: MONITORING OFFICER 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 
 
To consider the following appointments for the remainder of the 2020/21 Municipal Year as 
deferred from the meeting of Full Council on 26 October 2020: 
 

 Appointment of Chairman of the Environment and Performance Committee 

 Appointment of Vice-Chairman of the Planning Committee  

 Appointment of representatives to the Black Sluice Internal Drainage Board 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the Council: 

1.  Considers the nominations for appointment of Chairman of the Environment and 
Performance and Vice-Chairman of the Planning Committee.  Such appointees to 
hold office whilst they remain Members of the Council, until the next Annual Meeting 
of the Council, or until the appointment of their successors;  

2.  Appoints Members to serve as the Council’s representatives on the Black Sluice 
Internal Drainage Board, to hold office whilst they remain Members of the Council, 
until the next Annual Meeting of the Council, or until the appointment of their 
successors. 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
To review the outstanding appointments deferred from the meeting of the Council held on 26 
October 2020, for the remainder of 2019-20 as an AGM was not held in May 2020 due to the 
covid-19 pandemic. 
 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
To continue with current appointments until the next Annual Meeting of the Council. 
 
 

 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 1



 
 

REPORT 
 
1. Introduction 

1.1 Due to the covid-19 pandemic an AGM was not held in May 2020 where 
appointments to committees, chairmanships and external organisations would 
traditionally have been reviewed. 

1.2 At the meeting of the Council held on 10 June 2020, the Leader made a commitment 
to review these appointments at the Council meeting later in the 2020/21 municipal 
year.  

1.3 At the meeting of the Council held on 26 October 2020, the allocation of committee 
seats, the appointments of Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of Committees where the 
position was not over-subscribed with nominations, and appointments to external 
organisations which were not oversubscribed with nominations were agreed. 

1.5 The agreed committee allocations, Chairmanships and appointments to external 
organisations are attached as appendices for information.  

1.4 Decisions on the appointments to over-subscribed positions were not resolved prior 
to the three hour meeting guillotine falling. A resolution to continue the meeting was 
not proposed before the guillotine fell, therefore the outstanding items of business 
were deferred to the next meeting of full Council.  

 

2. Outstanding Appointments 

2.1 Those appointments which require consideration are as follows:  

 

 Chairman of the Environment and Performance Committee –  

 Nominees: Councillors Anne Dorrian and Judith Skinner  

 

 Vice-Chairman of the Planning Committee – 

 Nominees: Councillors Alison Austin and Peter Watson  

 

 Black Sluice Internal Drainage Board (9 nominations for 7 places) - 

 Nominees: Councillors Tom Ashton; Richard Austin; Peter Bedford; Michael Cooper; 
Frank Pickett; Brian Rush; Paul Skinner; Peter Watson and Mr. M. Brookes (Lay 
Member) 

 

2.2 Council is asked to make appointments to the above positions, such appointees to 
hold office whilst they remain Members of the Council, until the next Annual Meeting 
of the Council or until the appointment of their successors.  

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None. 
 

 

LEGAL AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
To meet the provisions as set out in the Council’s Constitution. 
 

Page 10



 
 

 
 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None. 
 

 
CONSULTATION 
 
Group Leaders 
 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 
 

APPENDIX A  Membership of Committees 2020/21 

APPENDIX B  Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of Committees 2020/21 

APPENDIX C  Appointments to External Organisations 2020/21 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were 
used in the production of this report. 
 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

 
Council – 26 October 2020 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES 
(INCLUDING SUBSTITUTES) – 2020/21 

(OCTOBER 2020) 
 

* Asterisk indicates that the political balance rules apply  

No asterisk indicates political balance not required, numbers stated are suggested allocations 

 

* OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY – ENVIRONMENT & PERFORMANCE (11) 
(MEETS 8 WEEKLY - TUESDAY – 6.30 P.M.) 

 

 
CONS 

(6) 
IND 
(2) 

IND GROUP 2 
(1) 

INDS 20/20  
(1) 

LABOUR  
(1) 

1. ASHTON HOWARD DORRIAN BEDFORD GOODALE 

2. BROWN WELBOURN    

3. DANI     

4. EVANS     

5. J. SKINNER     

6. TRAFFORD     

 
 
 

*OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY– CORPORATE & COMMUNITY (11) 
(MEETS 8 WEEKLY – THURSDAY – 6.30 P.M.) 

 

 CONS  
(6) 

IND  
(2) 

IND GROUP 2 
(1) 

INDS 20/20  
(1) 

LABOUR  
(1) 

1. ASHTON HOWARD DORRIAN WOODLIFFE BELL 

2. CORNAH WELBOURN    

3. DANI     

4. EVANS     

5. PICKETT     

6. J. SKINNER     

 

 

 

 

  

APPENDIX A 

Page 13



 

 

 

* AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE (9) 
(MEETS 8 WEEKLY – MONDAY – 6.30 P.M. 

 

 CONS 
(5) 

IND 
(2) 

IND GROUP 2 
(2) 

IINDS 20/20 
(0) 

LABOUR 
(0) 

1. ASHTON A AUSTIN WATSON   

2. BROWN HOWARD DORRIAN   

3. CORNAH     

4. DANI     

5. PICKETT     

Substitutes:      

1.  WELBOURN    
 

STANDARDS SUB COMMITTEE (5) 
(Drawn from Membership of the Audit and Governance Committee) 

 

 CONS 
(3) 

IND 
(1) 

IND GROUP 2 
(1) 

INDS 20/20 
(0) 

LABOUR 
(0) 

1. ASHTON HOWARD 
DORRIAN 

  

2. CORNAH     

3. PICKETT     

 

 

* PLANNING COMMITTEE (13) 
(MEETS 4 WEEKLY – TUESDAY – 10 A.M.) 

 

 CONS   
(7) 

IND  
(2) 

IND GROUP 2  
(2) 

INDS 20/20 
(1) 

LABOUR 
(1) 

1. ASHTON A AUSTIN RUSH BEDFORD GOODALE 

2. BROWN WELBOURN WATSON   

3. NOBLE     

4. PICKETT     

5. P. SKINNER     

6. STEVENS     

7. TRAFFORD     

Substitutes:      

1. CORNAH R AUSTIN HASTIE WOODLIFFE BELL 

2. EVANS     

Page 14



 

 

 

 

* LICENSING/REGULATORY & APPEALS COMMITTEES (11) 
(MEETS QUARTERLY – TUESDAY – 2 P.M.) 

 

 CONS  
(5) 

IND  
(2) 

IND GROUP 2 
(2) 

INDS 20/20 
(1) 

LABOUR  
(1) 

1. ASHTON A AUSTIN HASTIE WOODLIFFE BELL 

2. DANI WELBOURN RUSH   

3. EVANS     

4. PICKETT     

5. J. SKINNER     
 

No substitutes are permitted at either Licensing or 
Regulatory and Appeals Committees 

 
 

CHIEF OFFICER EMPLOYMENT PANEL (7) 
(Meets as required) 

 
 CONS  

(3) 
IND 
(1) 

IND GROUP 2 
(1) 

INDS 20/20 
(1) 

LABOUR 
(1) 

1. GRIGGS R AUSTIN DORRIAN BEDFORD GOODALE 

2. P.SKINNER     

3. WELTON     

Subs: ASHTON A AUSTIN    

 
 

INTERNATIONAL LINKS COMMITTEE (5) 
(ad hoc) 

 

 CONS  
(1) 

IND  
(1) 

IND GROUP 2 
(1) 

INDS 20/20 
(1) 

LABOUR 
(1) 

1. P. SKINNER R AUSTIN RUSH WOODLIFFE BELL 

      

 
(Chairman and Vice-Chairman appointed at first meeting of Committee) 

Page 15



 

 

 

SOUTH-EAST LINCOLNSHIRE JOINT STRATEGIC 
PLANNING COMMITTEE (3 and 3 substitutes) 

 
 CONS  

(2) 
IND  
(1) 

IND GROUP 2 
(0) 

INDS 20/20 
(0) 

LABOUR  
(0) 

1. ASHTON R AUSTIN    

2. BROWN     

Subs:      

1. NOBLE A AUSTIN    

2. P. SKINNER     

 
BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 

(MEETS 8 WEEKLY - WEDNESDAY 6.30 P.M.) 

 
(Membership is all town ward Members ex officio.  

Chairman and Vice Chairman appointed at first meeting of the Committee.) 

1 VACANT SEAT 
 

 CONS IND IND GROUP 2 INDS 20/20 LABOUR 

1. DANI A. AUSTIN DORRIAN WOODLIFFE BELL 

2. EVANS EDGE HASTIE  GOODALE 

3. GRIGGS  HOWARD RUSH   

4. STEVENS     

 

COUNCILLOR DEVELOPMENT GROUP (9) 
(MEETS QUARTERLY) 

 

 CONS  
(5) 

IND  
(1) 

IND GROUP 2 
(1) 

INDS 20/20 
(1) 

LABOUR  
(1) 

1. ASHTON WELBOURN WATSON BEDFORD GOODALE 

2. DANI     

3. J. SKINNER     

4. P. SKINNER     

5. STEVENS     

 
(Chairman and Vice-Chairman to be appointed at first meeting of Group) 

Page 16



  

 
BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

 

CHAIRMEN AND VICE CHAIRMEN OF COMMITTEES – 2020/2021 
 
 

 
 

BODY 

 
 

CHAIRMAN 

 
 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY –
ENVIRONMENT AND PERFORMANCE 
 

 
ANNE DORRIAN 

JUDITH SKINNER 

 
JUDITH 

WELBOURN 

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY – 
CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY 
 

 
GEORGE CORNAH 

 
DEBORAH EVANS 

 
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE 
 

 
TOM ASHTON 

 
MARTIN HOWARD 

 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

 
TOM ASHTON 

 
ALISON AUSTIN 
PETER WATSON 

 

 
LICENSING COMMITTEE / 
REGULATORY AND APPEALS 
COMMITTEE 
 

 
FRANK PICKETT 

 
DEBORAH EVANS 

 

 
BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE 
(BTAC) 
 

 
TO BE APPOINTED  
AT FIRST MEETING 

 
TO BE APPOINTED 
AT FIRST MEETING 

 
COUNCILLOR DEVELOPMENT GROUP 

 
TO BE APPOINTED  
AT FIRST MEETING 

 
TO BE APPOINTED 
AT FIRST MEETING  

 

 

 

Those in RED were deferred from Full Council on 26.10.20 to be decided at 
the next meeting 

 APPENDIX B 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 

COUNCIL REPRESENTATION ON EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 

ANNUAL APPOINTMENTS 2020-21 

 
Oversubscribed organisation 
 

Organisation Period of 
Appointment 

 Previous 
Appointees 

Nominees 

Bicker Trust Civic Year Cooper Cooper 

Black Sluice Internal Drainage Board 
(7 members) 

Civic Year Ashton 
R. Austin  
Bedford  
Cooper 
Pickett 

P. Skinner 
Mr. M. Brookes 
(Lay member) 

Ashton  
R. Austin 
Bedford 
Cooper 
Pickett 
Rush 

P. Skinner 
Watson 

Mr. M. Brookes 
(Lay member) 

Boston Citizens Advice Bureau 
Management Committee (2 seats) 
 

Civic Year Cooper 
Griggs 

Griggs 

Boston Municipal Non-Educational 
Charities (4 seats) 

Civic Year Woodliffe 
Colin Brotherton 
(Lay member) 

Woodliffe 
Colin Brotherton 
(Lay member) 

Centrepoint Outreach Civic Year Welbourn Welbourn 

Council for the Protection of Rural 
England (Lincs Branch) 
 

Civic Year P. Skinner P. Skinner 

Heritage Lincolnshire Civic Year Welton R. Austin 

Lincolnshire County Council Health 
Scrutiny Committee 
(1 seat and 1 substitute – non Cabinet 

members) 

Civic Year Woodliffe 
Hastie 

(substitute member) 

Woodliffe 

Lincolnshire County Council Flood 
and Water Management Scrutiny 
Committee  (non Cabinet members) 

Civic Year R. Austin 
Pickett 

(substitute member) 

R. Austin 
Pickett 

(substitute 
member) 

Nacro Services in Lincolnshire Civic Year Welbourn Welbourn 

Rural Services Network (SPARSE 
Rural, Rural Services Partnership, 
RSN Community Group) 
 

Civic Year Cooper 
Welton 

Ashton 
Brown 

Sir Thomas Meddlecott and Others 
Charity Trust (Skirbeck Quarter 
Charities) (3 Trustees) 

Civic Year A. Austin 
Woodliffe 

Mr R Lenton 
(Lay member) 

A Austin 
Woodliffe 
Mr R Lenton 
(Lay 
member) 
 

APPENDIX C 

Page 19



Organisation Period of 
Appointment 

Previous 
Appointees 

Nominees 

Swineshead Poor Charity Civic Year Cornah Cornah 

 

Wash and North Norfolk Partnership 
Members Group (1 seat and 1 
substitute) 

Civic Year Stevens 
A. Austin 

(substitute member) 
 

A Austin 
Stevens 

(substitute 
Member) 

Witham Fourth District Internal 
Drainage Board (7 members) 

 R. Austin 
Bedford 
Cooper 
Pickett 

P. Skinner 
Spencer 

Woodcock 

R. Austin 
Bedford 
Hastie 
Pickett 

P. Skinner 
Welton 

Mrs. P. Cooper 
(Lay member) 

 

 
 

PART 2 – LONG TERM APPOINTMENTS 

 

Organisation Period of 
Appointment 

Current / Previous 
Appointees 

Nominees 

Boston Grammar School 
Foundation Governors  (4 seats) 

4 years from 
2019 

A. Austin 
Griggs 

Woodliffe 
Mrs S. Cooper  
(Lay member) 

Not applicable 
until May 2023 

John Butler Charity 3 years from 
2017 

 

Cornah Cornah 

Lincolnshire Police and Crime 
Panel 

4 years from 
2016 

 

Woodliffe Woodliffe 

St. Leonard’s Hospital Trust 
(2 Trustees) 
 

4 years from 
appointment  

Griggs (May 2019) 
Noble (May 2019) 

  

Not applicable 
until May 2023 

Thomas Sanderson Trust (2 
seats) 

4 years from 
2019 

Brotherton 
Ernest Napier  
(lay member) 

 

Not applicable 
until May 2023 

Welland and Deepings IDB 3 years from 
2017 

 

Cooper Cooper 

W H and E Harlock Swineshead 
Almshouses Charity 
 

3 years from 
2017 

Trafford Trafford 

Swineshead Enhancement 
Society 

4 years from 
2019 

Trafford Not applicable 
until May 2023 

 

 

Page 20



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: COUNCIL 

DATE: 23 NOVEMBER 2020 

SUBJECT: LICENSING ACT 2003 – DRAFT STATEMENT OF 
LICENSING POLICY 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: COUNCILLOR Y STEVENS 

REPORT AUTHOR: FIONA WHITE – LICENSING & LANDCHARGES 
MANAGER 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

 

SUMMARY 
 
The Licensing Authority is required, every 5 years, to consult on and publish a 
statement setting out its policy for the exercise of its functions under the Licensing Act 
2003 for the sale of alcohol and the provision of regulated entertainment and late 
night refreshment with a view to promoting the licensing objectives of: 
 

 The prevention of crime and disorder; 

 The prevention of public nuisance; 

 Public safety; and 

 The protection of children from harm. 
 
This council’s Statement of Licensing Policy was last revised and adopted in 2015. 
 
The revised Statement of Licensing Policy, attached at Appendix A, has been 
consulted on and where appropriate updated to reflect the consultation responses 
received.  The final draft Statement was considered by the Licensing Committee on 
11 November 2020 and a recommendation was made by the committee that the 
statement be presented to Council for adoption. 
 
It is recommended the Council adopts the Statement of Licensing Policy, following 
which it will be published. 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

1. The Council adopts the Licensing Act 2003 Statement of Licensing Policy 
attached to this report at Appendix A. 

 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 21

Agenda Item 2



 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

1. To ensure the policy is adopted by the Council and published as required 
under the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003. 

 
 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 

1. The Council resolve not to adopt the Statement of Licensing Policy.  Failure to 
adopt and publish the revised Statement of Licensing Policy would leave 
Licensing Authority decisions open to challenge. 
 

 

 

Page 22



 
1. Background 
  
1.1 The Licensing Authority is required to publish a statement setting out 

its policy for the exercise of its functions under the Licensing Act 2003 
(the Act) for the sale of alcohol and the provision of regulated 
entertainment and late night refreshment with a view to promoting the 
statutory licensing objectives of: 
 

 The prevention of crime and disorder; 

 The prevention of public nuisance; 

 Public safety; and 

 The protection of children from harm. 
  
1.2 Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) states that each 

Licensing Authority must, in respect of each 5 year period, determine 
its policy regarding the exercise of its licensing functions and publish a 
statement. This council’s Statement of Licensing Policy was last 
revised and adopted in 2015. 
  

1.3 The usual process is for the Licensing Committee to approve the final 
draft Statement of Licensing Policy and make a recommendation it be 
presented to council for adoption.  

  
1.4 While the Statement of Licensing Policy may set out a general 

approach to making licensing decisions, it must not ignore or be 
inconsistent with the provisions of the Act.  For example it must not 
undermine the right of any person to apply under the terms of the 
Licensing Act 2003 for a variety of permissions and to have any such 
application considered on its individual merits.  Similarly the policy 
must not override the right of any person to make representations on 
an application or to seek a review of a licence or certificate where 
provision has been made for them to do so in the Act. 

  
1.5 The Licensing Committee initially considered the revised draft 

Statement of Licensing Policy at a meeting on 11 August 2020.  The 
committee made minor amendments to the draft and resolved the 
statement be consulted on. 
 
 

2. Consultation 
 
 

2.1 A consultation in accordance with the requirements of the Licensing 
Act 2003, was undertaken between 12 August and 16 October 2020.  
As required under the provisions of the Act, the Licensing Authority 
consulted. 
 

 The Chief Officer of Police for the Licensing Authority’s area; 

 The Fire Authority for the area; 

Page 23



 The Director of Public Health for the area; 

 Such persons considered to be representative of holders of 
premises licences; 

 Such persons considered to be representative of holders of 
club premises certificates; 

 Such persons considered to be representative of holders of 
personal licences; and 

 Such other persons considered to be representative of 
businesses and residents in the area. 
  

  
2.2 Following the consultation the responses were considered by the 

Licensing Committee on 10 November 2020 and where appropriate 
amendments were made to the statement.  The licensing Committee 
resolved the statement be presented to Council with a 
recommendation it be adopted. 

 
  
3. Conclusion 
  
3.1 It is RECOMMENDED Council adopts the Statement of Licensing 

Policy, following which it will be published. 
  
  

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no financial implications with respect to this report.  The cost for stationery 
and postage for full consultation, estimated at a maximum of £100, was met from 
existing budgets. Consultation was, as far as practicable, carried out electronically to 
keep costs to a minimum. 
 

 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 
The licensing authority is required, in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 to 
review and publish its Statement of Licensing Policy every 5 years.   
 
 

 
 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 24



EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 
 
An equality impact assessment has been undertaken in respect of the revised policy 
 
There is a licensing objective of the prevention of children from harm.  The 
Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children Partnership was a consultee on the revised 
policy.   
 
Section 4.4 of the draft policy at Appendix A provides detail on this council’s policy in 
respect of the protection of children from harm licensing objective. 
 

 
 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS  
 
There are no risk management issues other than those highlighted in the legal 
implications above. 
 

 
CONSULTATION 
 
Assistant Director Regulation 
Portfolio Holder for Environmental Services 
Consultees in accordance with paragraph 2.2 
 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 
 

APPENDIX A Draft Statement of Licensing Policy 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 
 

Guidance issued under Section 
182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Licensing and Local Land Charges Office, 
Boston Borough Council 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

Name of body Date 
 

Licensing Committee 11 August 2020 

Licensing Committee 10 November 2020 
 

 
 

Page 25



 
BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
PROFORMA FOR EXECUTIVE APPROVAL OF THE RELEASE OF RESOURCES 
(CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGETS) 
 
FROM:  RACHEL CHATTERTON 

 

THIS PROFORMA PROVIDES THE FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 IN RESPECT OF THE ATTACHED 

     
REPORT:  LICENSING ACT 2003 – DRAFT STATEMENT OF LICENSING 

POLICY 
REPORT DATE:  23rd NOVEMBER 2020 
 

 
Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 

 
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

Printing and Stationery 100 0 0 0 0 

      

Total 100 0 0 0 0 
 
Funding required: Nil  Considered by: 

Council  
 

Date: 23rd 
November 2020 

Total capital cost 
 

Nil    

Revenue cost 
 

£100    

 
Financial Services Comments 
Consultation has already taken place and any associated costs were met from existing 
budgets.  
 
Risk 
None  
 
Procurement 
n/a 
 
Value for Money Efficiency 
n/a 
 
This FP is valid for 3 months 
from FP date 

If this FP is no longer required please 
advise Finance 

If there are changes to the original report 
it may invalidate this document, it must 
be reviewed by Finance. 

   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



 

Page 1 of 35 

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Adopted 23 November 2020 (subject to resolution to adopt) 

Published 24 November 2020 
Effective 24 November 2020 to 23 November 2025 

 

We can provide this information in other languages and 

formats for example, in large print, in Braille or on CD or 

audio cassette. Please phone (01205) 314200.  

APPENDIX A

Page 27



 

Page 2 of 35 

Table of Contents 
 

Executive Summary ................................................................................................................ 3 
1  Introduction ...................................................................................................................... 4 
2  The Licensing Act 2003 ................................................................................................... 4 
3  Integrated Strategies and the Avoidance of Duplication ................................................. 7 
4  Licensing Objectives ........................................................................................................ 8 
4.1 Prevention of crime and disorder ................................................................................. 9 
4.2 Public Safety .............................................................................................................. 10 
4.3 Prevention of Public Nuisance ................................................................................... 11 
4.4 Protection of children from harm ............................................................................... 12 
5 The Licensing Process .................................................................................................. 14 
6 Premises Licences/Club Premises Certificates ............................................................. 16 
7 Late night refreshment Premises ................................................................................... 17 
8 Minor variations of Premises Licences .......................................................................... 17 
9 Licence Hours ................................................................................................................ 17 
10  Personal Licences ..................................................................................................... 17 
11 Designated Premises Supervisor .............................................................................. 18 
12 Temporary Event Notices .......................................................................................... 18 
13 Review of Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates ................................. 19 
14 Cumulative Impact ..................................................................................................... 20 
15 Early Morning Restriction Orders (EMROs) .............................................................. 22 
16 Late Night Levy (LNL) ................................................................................................ 23 
17  Nudity and Striptease ................................................................................................ 23 

General Matters............................................................................................................................ 24 
18 Outdoor Furniture and Street Café Licences ............................................................. 24 
19 Smoke Free Legislation ............................................................................................. 24 
20 Councillors as other persons ..................................................................................... 25 
21 Drinking Up Time / Chill Out Period ........................................................................... 25 
22 Staff Training ............................................................................................................. 25 
23 Petrol Stations, Garages and similar premises ......................................................... 25 
24 Karaoke...................................................................................................................... 26 
25 Excessive Consumption of Alcohol / Binge Drinking / Irresponsible Drinks                    
Promotions ............................................................................................................................ 26 
26 Community Premises and Applications for the Removal of the Requirement for a 
Designated Premises Supervisor ......................................................................................... 27 
27 New Years Eve and New Years Day and British Summertime ................................. 28 
28 Parish Councils .......................................................................................................... 28 
29       Challenge 25 Scheme ............................................................................................... 29 
30 Licence/Club Premises Certificate Suspension – non payment of annual fee .......... 29 
31 Immigration Act 2016 – Entitlement to work .............................................................. 29 
32 Enforcement .............................................................................................................. 30 
33 Review of Policy ........................................................................................................ 30 
34 Advice and Guidance ................................................................................................. 30 
35 Delegation of functions .............................................................................................. 31 

APPENDIX 1 - Delegation of Functions ..................................................................................... 32 
 

Page 28



 

Page 3 of 35 

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL LICENSING AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY 
 

Executive Summary 
 
 
The Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) came into effect in 2005.  Section 5 of the Act requires the 
Licensing Authority (Boston Borough Council) to determine and publish a Statement of Licensing 
Policy that they propose to apply in exercising their functions under the Act.  This process must 
be repeated every 5 years.  The Licensing Authority must also keep the policy under review 
during each five-year period and make any such revisions it considers appropriate. 
 
The policy was last adopted and published in 2016, since then there have been several important 
changes to the Act, including introducing measures to ensure that applicants for certain licence 
types have the authority to work in the UK. This has introduced the Home Office Immigration 
Department as a Responsible Authority and requires applicants to demonstrate a right to work in 
the UK on application. Additionally, the Policing and Crime Act 2017 introduced legislation 
enabling Licensing Authorities to consider suspending or revoking a Personal Licence issued by 
them, where the licence holder has been convicted of a relevant offence determined by the Act. 
 
Any decision taken by the Licensing Authority, concerning the determination of licences, 
certificates and authorisations, will aim to promote the licensing objectives which are: 
 

 The prevention of crime and disorder 

 Public safety 

 The prevention of public nuisance 

 The protection of children from harm 
 
The Licensing Authority has the ability to grant licences for premises and certificates for qualifying 
club premises.  It also grants personal licences and accepts Temporary Event Notices.  
Applicants for premises licences and club premises certificates should be aware of the 
expectations of the Licensing Authority and Responsible Authorities regarding the steps that are 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.   
 
Responsible Authorities, Councillors, members of the public and businesses are able to have 
their say and have their opinion heard through public consultation on this policy, and by making 
representations about applications for premises licences and club premises certificates, or by 
requesting reviews of the same where problems arise. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



 

Page 4 of 35 

1  Introduction 
 
1.1 Boston Borough Council is situated in the south of the county of Lincolnshire, which 

contains 7 district councils in total.  The Borough has a population of 69,366 (as detailed 
in Office for National Statistics 2018 Mid-Year Population Estimates and is the smallest 
district in the County in terms of population.  In terms of area it is the second smallest, 
covering 139 square miles.  The council area is mainly rural with an urban area 
comprising of Boston town itself.  

 

2  The Licensing Act 2003 
 

2.1  Boston Borough Council as Licensing Authority (hereinafter referred to as the Licensing 
Authority) is responsible for the licensing of all licensable activities under the Licensing 
Act 2003 (the Act).  This document sets out the policies and principles that the Licensing 
Authority will apply when making decisions on applications for: 

 

 The sale by retail of alcohol; 

 The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club; 

 The provision of regulated entertainment; and 

 The provision of late night refreshment. 
 
The term licensee/licence holder is deemed to include licence holders, designated 
premises supervisors and club premises certificate holders. 

 
This policy is intended to provide clarity to applicants, responsible authorities and other 
persons on how this Licensing Authority will determine applications to supply alcohol, 
provide regulated entertainment and operate late night refreshment premises.  Guidance 
and best practice is available to assist applicants; this guidance does not form part of this 
Policy.  The Licensing Authority will take this Policy into account if its discretion is 
engaged (i.e. at a hearing following relevant representations or a review hearing) 

 
2.2 The Licensing Authority has a duty under the Act to carry out its functions with a view to 

promoting the 4 licensing objectives. These are: - 
 

 the prevention of crime and disorder 

 public safety 

 the prevention of public nuisance 

 the protection of children from harm 
 
2.3 It is recognised that the licensing function is only one means of securing the delivery of 

the above objectives and should not therefore be seen as solving all problems within the 
community. The Licensing Authority will therefore continue to work in partnership with the 
Borough Council, its neighbouring authorities, the Police, Responsible Authorities, local 
businesses and local people towards the promotion of the objectives. 

 
2.4 In preparing this policy statement the Licensing Authority has consulted with the 

following: - 
 

 Lincolnshire Police 

 responsible authorities as defined by the Act 

 representatives of licence holders and club premises certificate holders 

 local businesses and their representatives 

 local residents and their representatives 

 Boston Borough Council Elected Members 

Page 30



 

Page 5 of 35 

 Parish Councils 

 Other persons and organisations that the Authority considered could contribute to 
this Policy 

 
A full list of consultees is available from the Licensing Section on request. 

 
Appropriate weight has been given to the views of all those consulted prior to this policy 
statement taking effect on 24 November 2020. 

 
2.5 In developing this Policy, the Licensing Authority took into account the legal requirements 

of the 2003 Act and had regard to other legislation and guidance, including, but not 
exclusively: 

 

 Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to take all reasonable steps to 
reduce crime and disorder within the Borough 

 

 The Regulators’ Compliance Code (set out under the Legislative and Regulatory 
Reform Act 2006) not to impede economic progress by the regulations we set out 
and to particularly consider the impact of regulations on small businesses 

 

 The Provision of Services Regulations 2009 to ensure requirements are: 
 

 Non- discriminatory. 
 Justified by an overriding reason relating to the public interest. 
 Proportionate to that public interest objective. 
 Clear and unambiguous.  
 Objective. 
 Made public in advance, and 
 Transparent and accessible 

 

 Human Rights Act, 1998 
 

 Violent Crime Reduction Act, 2006 
 

 Policing and Crime Act, 2009 
 

 Police reform and Social Responsibility Act, 2011 
 

 Live Music Act, 2012 
 

 Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act, 2014 
 

 The Legislative Reform (Entertainment Licensing) Order, 2014 
 

 Deregulation Act, 2015 
 

 Immigration Act, 2016 
 

 Equality Act, 2010 
 
2.6 The Act describes two “bodies” that may make representations to licence applications 

and may apply for an existing premises licence to be reviewed by the Licensing Authority, 
Responsible Authorities and “other persons”.  Responsible Authorities are defined in the 
Act. 

 

Page 31



 

Page 6 of 35 

2.7 “Other persons” means any individual, body or business who is affected by the operation 
of a licensed premises regardless of their geographical location.  Although they may be in 
any geographical location, any representation they make must be relevant to one or more 
of the licensing objectives and must not be considered to be frivolous or vexatious.  
Additionally, any application to review a premises licence must not be repetitious.   

 
2.8 The Licensing Authority will, however, look at the geographical location of the author of 

any representation or review application received.  Where the author lives or works a 
significant distance from the premises subject of an application or a review, this authority 
will examine the content of the representation particularly closely.  The authority will 
expect the author to explain in detail how, in terms of the licensing objectives, they would 
be affected by the application.  The Licensing Authority will consider rejecting any 
representation or review application which does not include sufficient detail to outline 
harm or disturbance which may be caused. 

 
2.9 The purpose of licensing is to control licensed premises and other events within the terms 

of the Act.  Where responsible authorities and other persons do not raise any 
representations about the application made to the Licensing Authority, it is the duty of the 
Authority to grant a licence or certificate subject to conditions that are consistent with the 
operating schedule and any mandatory conditions prescribed in the 2003 Act itself.  The 
Licensing Authority will not impose any further conditions unless its discretion has been 
engaged following the making of relevant representation(s).  It may then only impose 
such conditions as are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives arising out of the 
consideration of the representation(s). 

 
2.10 These conditions will relate to the premises and other places being used for licensable 

activities and the impact of those activities in the vicinity. In this regard the Licensing 
Authority will primarily focus on the direct impact of any activities taking place on those 
living, working or otherwise engaged in the area concerned.  Vicinity has not been given 
a definition within the Act and may vary in distance from the premises depending on the 
nature of the area.  Considerations which will be taken into account when assessing “in 
the vicinity” include but are not limited to: 

 

 The nature of the licensable activity 

 The nature and locality of the premises 

 The time of day of the proposed licensable activity/activities 

 The frequency of the activity/activities 
 
 
2.11 The Licensing Authority will discharge its responsibilities identified by other Local and 

Government strategies and policies, so far as they impact on the objectives of the 
Licensing Act.  Some examples of these strategies and policies are: 

 

 Government Action Plan for Tackling Alcohol Related Crime, Disorder and 
Nuisance; 

 

 Safer Clubbing 
 
 

 Community Safety Strategy. 
 
 
 

 Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) Home Office guidance or any successor 
to this. 

Page 32



 

Page 7 of 35 

 
 
2.12 The Licensing Authority takes the following approach to the decision making process: 
 

 Each case will be decided upon its merits. This Authority will not apply a rigid rule 
to its decision making; 

 

 Other persons can include residents’/ tenants’ associations, community 
associations, trade associations and elected members. Councillors may 
represent other persons, providing they do not also sit on the Licensing Sub-
Committee determining the application in question. 

 

 We will give clear reasons for our decisions. 
 

Where valid representations are made applications will be considered by a Licensing 
Sub-Committee (consisting of Councillors); we give applicants, responsible Authorities 
and other persons an equal opportunity to state their case in accordance with our 
protocol, which is available from the Licensing Section. 

 
2.13 The licensing function is not to be seen as the primary mechanism for the general control 

of anti-social behaviour by individuals once they are beyond the direct control of the 
licensee of any premises concerned.  Whilst there are a range of statutory powers 
available to deal with such behaviour, these powers will not always be sufficient to control 
negative impacts on the licensing objectives in the vicinity.  Therefore, the fact that such 
impact may occur is a relevant factor in the consideration of licensing applications.  This 
may lead to a refusal of the application or the addition of conditions to meet the 
concern(s) contained in a relevant representation 

 
2.14 The Licensing Authority is committed to the implementation and application of this policy 

in such a manner and to ensure that no applicant or other person is treated less 
favourably on the grounds of sex, marital status, race, nationality, ethnic or national 
origin, colour, disability or age, nor is disadvantaged by the application of a rule, condition 
or requirement, which has a discriminatory effect which cannot be justified either in 
licensing terms or as a requirement of law.  An Equality Impact Assessment has been 
undertaken with respect to this policy 

 

2.15 The Licensing Authority is fully committed to promoting equal opportunities and non-
discriminatory practice. For further information, please see 
https://www.mybostonuk.com/5885-2/ 

 

3  Integrated Strategies and the Avoidance of Duplication 

  
3.1 The Boston Borough Council aims to make the Boston area a safer place to live, work 

and visit by reducing crime and the fear of crime and reducing antisocial behaviour. 

 
3.2 By consulting widely prior to this policy statement being published the Licensing Authority 

has endeavoured to secure proper integration with local crime prevention, planning, 
transport, tourism and cultural strategies. 

 
3.3 There are a number of wider issues which may need to be given due consideration when 

dealing with applications. The Licensing Committee may therefore receive and may act 
upon relevant reports concerning:- 

 

Page 33

https://www.mybostonuk.com/5885-2/


 

Page 8 of 35 

 crime and disorder 

 community safety issues 

 needs of the local tourist economy 

 employment situation in the area and the need for new investment and   
employment where appropriate 

 planning considerations which might affect licensed premises 

 local transport arrangements 

 impact of licensing on regulated entertainment and particularly live music and 
dancing with reference to any cultural strategy 

 any other reports considered appropriate to the licensing function 
  
3.4 The Licensing Authority recognises that licensing applications should not be seen as a 

re-run of the planning application process and that there should be a clear separation of 
the planning and licensing regimes to avoid duplication and inefficiency.  There are 
several key differences between licensing and planning control.  Licensing is concerned 
with the fitness of the operator and detailed issues concerning the operation and 
management of the premises that are not addressed by the planning control process.  
Planning control relates to use of the premises. The grant of planning permission should 
not be a presumption that a premises licence will automatically follow and vice versa.  
Additionally, there is no legal basis for the Licensing Authority to refuse a licence 
application because it does not have planning permission. 

 
3.5 Applicants are strongly encouraged to make any necessary applications for Planning 

permission /Building Regulations approval permission before or at the same time as they 
make an application for a licence/club premises certificate. Furthermore, to reduce the 
risk of being subject to planning enforcement, applicants are advised to ensure that: 

 

 the activity to be authorised by the premises licence or club premises certificate 
is a lawful planning use; and 

 

 the hours sought do not exceed those authorised by any planning permission. 
  
3.6 In reaching a decision of whether or not to grant a licence, the Licensing Authority will 

take account of any non-compliance with other statutory requirements brought to its 
attention, particularly where these undermine the licensing objectives.  Non-compliance 
with statutory requirements may demonstrate that the premises are unsuitable for the 
activities proposed or that the management of the premises is not adequate to protect the 
public from harm or nuisance. 

 
3.7 In order to avoid duplication with other existing legislation and regulatory regimes the 

Licensing Authority will not attach conditions to the licence unless they are considered 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. Conditions will be considered 
unnecessary if they are already adequately covered by other legislation.  

 
3.8  Conditions (other than mandatory conditions and those in the applicant’s operating 

schedule) may not be attached to a premises licence or club premises certificate unless 
the application has been the subject of a relevant representation. 

 

4  Licensing Objectives 
  

Each of the four licensing objectives is of equal importance and no one objective will take 
precedence over others when considering applications. 

 
The Licensing Authority considers the effective and responsible management of 
premises, instruction, training and supervision of staff and the adoption of best practice to 

Page 34



 

Page 9 of 35 

be amongst the most essential control measures for the achievement of all the licensing 
objectives.  For this reason these elements should be specifically considered and 
addressed within the applicants operating schedule. 

 
The Licensing Authority recommends that applicants carry out their own risk 
assessments in relation to the four licensing objectives in order to assist them in deciding 
whether any steps are required to be taken in order to meet those objectives. 

 
In accordance with the Home Office Guidance to Licensing Authorities, this Authority 
expects applicants to demonstrate knowledge of the area within which the licensed 
premises is situated.  This would include, for example, proximity to residential properties, 
areas where children congregate and any risk posed to the local area by the applicant’s 
proposed licensable activity. 

 

4.1 Prevention of crime and disorder 
  
4.1.1 The Licensing Authority will carry out its licensing functions with a view to promoting the 

prevention of crime and disorder and will seek to ensure that licensees/certificate 
holders/designated premises supervisors take measures to regulate the behaviour of 
persons whilst on their premises, or in the immediate vicinity of the premises. 

 
4.1.2 In addition to the requirement for the Licensing Authority to promote this licensing 

objective, it also has a duty under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to 
exercise its functions with due regard to the likely effect on, and do all it reasonably can 
to prevent, crime and disorder in the Borough. 

 
4.1.3 When addressing crime and disorder the applicant should initially identify any particular 

issues (having regard to their type of premises and/or activities) which are likely to 
adversely affect the promotion of the crime and disorder objective.  Such steps as are 
required to deal with these identified issues should be included within the applicant’s 
operating schedule. 

 
The Licensing Authority encourages applicants to include in their operating schedule the 
steps they propose to take to reduce/deter crime and disorder.  These steps will vary 
from premises to premises according to the type of licensable activities that are to be 
carried on.  Examples of measures the Licensing Authority encourage applicants to 
consider and address include 

 

 Physical security features e.g. use of toughened, polycarbonate  or plastic 
drinking glasses 

 Procedure for risk assessment of alcohol promotions to ensure they do not 
promote irresponsible drinking or potentially breach the mandatory condition on 
irresponsible drinks promotions 

 The use  and number of  Security Industry Authority (SIA) registered door 
supervisors 

 Amount of seating to be provided to reduce the risk of high volume vertical 
drinking 

 Training given to staff in crime prevention and drug awareness measures 

 Measures agreed with the Police to reduce crime and disorder 

 Measures to prevent the use or supply of illegal drugs 

 Search procedures 

 Formalisation of a dispersal policy 

 Measures to prevent customers taking glasses and bottles away from the 
premises 

Page 35



 

Page 10 of 35 

 Training given to staff to prevent the sale of alcohol to those who are under age 
or appear drunk 

 Measures to tackle street drinking including not selling single cans or bottles of 
beer, lager and cider; not selling super strength (ABV above 6.5) beer, lager and 
cider; and attaching water proof labels with printed shop names and addresses to 
cans and bottles of beer, lager and cider. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
 

CCTV remains one of the most effective measures for reducing crime and disorder. The 
Licensing Authority expects premises that retail alcohol for consumption on or off the 
premises will have an effective CCTV system installed that operates in compliance with 
the requirements of Lincolnshire Police 

 
4.1.4 The British Beer and Pub Association (BBPA) has consolidated good practice on 

combating violence in licensed premises into a guide to risk assessment.  This is 
available on the BBPAs website: www.beerandpub.com. 

 

4.2 Public Safety 
 
4.2.1 The Licensing Authority will carry out their licensing functions with a view to promoting 

public safety and will seek to ensure that licensees/certificate holders/designated 
premises supervisors take measures to protect the safety of performers and persons 
attending licensable activities.  The risk to public safety will vary according to the type of 
premises and the activities carried out. 

 
The Licensing Authority encourages applicants to include in their operating schedules the 
steps they propose to take to promote public safety. 

 
4.2.2 Where an applicant identifies an issue in regard to public safety, which is not covered by 

existing legislation, the applicant should identify in their operating schedule the steps 
which will be taken to ensure public safety. 

 
4.2.3 Depending on the individual style and characteristics of the premises and/or events the 

following issues may be of relevance: 
 

 Use of equipment and effects 

 Levels of door supervision 

 Measures to prevent the supply and use of illegal drugs 

 Physical safety features e.g. use of toughened glass, polycarbonate and plastic 
containers 

 Fire evacuation procedures 

 Provision of CCTV (see para 7.1.3) 

 Occupancy figures 
 
4.2.4 It will be the responsibility of licence/certificate holders/designated premises supervisors 

to ensure they have complied with all Health and Safety legislation. 
 
4.2.5 Where a premise is on a vessel for which a current Passenger Ship Certificate is in force, 

the public safety objective can generally be considered to be met in respect of the layout, 
structure, access arrangements and operation of the vessel. 

 
4.2.6 Whilst the Licensing Authority cannot require documentation regarding risk assessments 

to be attached to the operating schedule, it considers such risk assessments to be good 
practice.  Risk assessments, including fire risk assessments, are a useful tool in the 
instruction and training of staff, as well as a sound basis for review by the licence holder, 

Page 36

http://www.beerandpub.com/


 

Page 11 of 35 

in the event of needing to make an application for variation of a premises licence or in 
response to changing circumstances/conditions at the premises. 

 

4.3 Prevention of Public Nuisance 
 
4.3.1 Licensed premises have a significant potential to adversely impact on communities 

through public nuisances that arise from their operation.  The Licensing Authority wishes 
to maintain and protect the amenity of residents and other businesses from the potential 
consequence of the operation of licensed premises whilst recognising the valuable 
cultural, social and business importance that such premises provide. 

 
4.3.2 The Licensing Authority intends to interpret “public nuisance” in its widest sense and 

takes it to include such issues as noise, light, odour, litter and anti-social behaviour, 
where these matters impact on those living, working or otherwise engaged in normal 
activity in an area. 

 
4.3.3 When addressing public nuisance the applicant should initially identify any particular 

issues (having regard to their type of premises and/or activities) which are likely to 
adversely affect the promotion of the objective to prevent public nuisance.  Such steps as 
are required to deal with these identified issues should be included within the applicant’s 
operating schedule.  For example, the Licensing Authority expects an applicant to identify 
how public nuisance will be controlled in outside areas, particularly in smoking areas, that 
are not within the boundary of the licensed area. This would include prohibiting the 
consumption of alcohol. 

 
4.3.4 Applicants are encouraged to demonstrate in their operating schedule that suitable and 

sufficient measures have been identified and will be implemented and maintained to 
prevent public nuisance, relevant to the individual style and characteristics of their 
premises and events. These may include: 

 

 The location of premises and proximity to residential and other noise sensitive 
premises, such as hospitals, local businesses,  hospices and places of worship 

 The hours of opening, particularly between 23.00 and 07.00 

 The nature of the activities to be provided, including whether those activities are 
of a temporary or permanent nature and whether they are to be held inside or 
outside the premises 

 The design and layout of the premises and in particular the presence of noise 
limiting and/or monitoring features 

 The occupancy capacity of the premises (Where appropriate) 

 The availability of public transport to facilitate dispersal of customers 

 ‘wind down period’ between the end of the licensable activities and the closure of 
the premises 

 last admission time 

 The formulation of a dispersal policy 

 Control of nuisance from persons using outside areas and in particular smoking 
areas. 

 
4.3.5 The following examples of control measures are given to assist applicants who may need 

to take account of them in their operating schedule, having regard to their particular type 
of premises and/or activities 

 

 Effective and responsible management of premises 

 Appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed or engaged 
to prevent incidents of public nuisance e.g. to ensure customers leave quietly 

Page 37



 

Page 12 of 35 

 Control of operating hours for all or parts (e.g. garden areas) of the premises, 
including such matters as deliveries 

 Adoption of best practice guidance (e.g. Good practice Guide on the Control of 
Noise from Pubs and Clubs, produced by Institute of Acoustics) 

 Installation of soundproofing, air conditioning, acoustic lobbies and sound 
limitation devices 

 Management of people, including staff and traffic (and resulting queues) arriving 
and leaving premises 

 Liaison with public transport providers 

 Siting of external lighting, including security lighting 

 Management arrangements for collection and disposal of litter 

 Effective ventilation systems to prevent nuisance from odour 

 Undertaking noise impact assessments 

 Regular assessments of the noise coming from the premises when used for 
regulated entertainment and steps to control the level of noise so as not to cause 
disturbance to local residents. 

 Regular assessment of any noise coming from outside areas, including smoking 
areas, and steps to control the level of noise so as not to cause disturbance to 
local residents. 

 Keeping a written record of assessments in a log book kept for that purpose 
including, the time and date of the checks, the person making them and the 
results including any remedial action.  

 Identifying smoking areas in operating schedules to enable responsible 
authorities to appraise proposals with a view to promoting the prevention of 
public nuisance licensing objective. 

 Keeping external doors (except for access and egress) and windows closed 
when regulated entertainment is being provided except in the event of an 
emergency. 

 The disposal of empty glass bottles not being undertaken externally between 
23.00 hours and opening hours on the following day on every day of the week. 

 Posting at exits from the premises in a place where they can be seen and easily 
read by the public, notices requiring customers to leave the premises and the 
area quietly and in an orderly manner. 

 Regularly clearing outside the premises of litter associated with the operation of 
the premises e.g. cigarette ends. 

 

4.4 Protection of children from harm 

 
4.4.1 The Licensing Authority recognises the great variety of premises for which licences may 

be sought. These will include theatres, cinemas, restaurants, pubs, nightclubs, cafes, 
takeaways, community halls and schools. Except as prohibited by law, access by children 
to all types of premises will not be limited in any way unless it is considered necessary to 
do so to protect them from harm.   It is hoped that family friendly premises will thrive but 
the risk of harm to children remains a paramount consideration when determining 
applications. 

 
The protection of children from harm includes protection of children from moral, 
psychological and physical harm. 

 
4.4.2 When receiving relevant representations and deciding whether to limit access to children, 

other than in circumstances where the law demands their access to be limited, 
applicants/licence/certificate holders should consider the activities carried on at the 
premises.  Examples which may give rise to concern in respect of children would include 
premises; 

Page 38



 

Page 13 of 35 

 

 Where entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature are commonly 
provided; 

 Where there have been convictions of members of the current staff at the 
premises for serving alcohol to minors or with a reputation for underage drinking; 

 With a known association with drug taking or dealing 

 Where there is a strong element of gambling on the premises (but not, for 
example, the simple presence of a small number of cash prize gaming machines) 

      
 
4.4.3 Films - In the case of premises which are used for film exhibitions, conditions will be 

imposed restricting access only to those who meet the required age limit in line with any 
certificate granted by the British Board of Film Classification or, in specific cases, a 
certificate given to the film by the Licensing Authority itself.  Applicants will be expected to 
explain in their operating schedule the steps they intend to take to ensure children and 
young persons do not gain access to films with a restricted access classification. 

 
Where a film is to be shown locally within the authority’s area and has not been classified 
by the British Board of Film Classification, an application can be made to the Authority for 
the film to be classified.  Applications should be made in accordance with the guidelines 
set out by the British Board of Film Classification.  These guidelines can be found at: 
www.bbfc.co.uk. 

 
4.4.4 Theatres- In certain cases it may be necessary to impose a condition to restrict the 

admission of children to theatres, which are incorporating adult entertainment in their 
productions. 

 
4.4.5 Where a large number of children are likely to be present on any licensed   

premises and representations are received; conditions may be imposed requiring the 
presence of an appropriate number of adult staff to ensure public safety and their 
protection from harm.  Where the Licensing Authority considers it appropriate, following 
receipt of relevant representation(s) it may require the adult supervisors (being persons 
over the age of 18) to be subject to a criminal record check.  The onus will be on the 
Premises Licence holder to ensure that staff members are suitable to carry out the 
supervision of children, which may include criminal record disclosure from the Disclosure 
and Barring Service (DBS). 

 
4.4.6 The options available for limiting access by children would include – 
 

 Limitations of the hours when children may be present 

 Limitations or the exclusion of the presence of children under certain ages when 
particular specified activities are taking place; 

 Limitations on the parts of premises to which children might be given access; 

 Age limitations (below 18 years); 

 Requirements for accompanying adults (including for example, a requirement 
which provide that children under a particular age must be accompanied by an 
adult); and 

 Full exclusion of those people under 18 years of age from the premises when 
any licensable activities are taking place. 

 
4.4.7 The Licensing Authority will not impose any condition that specifically requires access for 

children to be provided at any premises. Where no restriction or limitation is imposed the 
issue of access will remain a matter for the discretion of the individual licence 
holder/certificate holder or designated premises supervisor. 

 

Page 39

http://www.bbfc.co.uk/


 

Page 14 of 35 

4.4.8  The body responsible for the interests of children is: 
 

Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children Partnership 
 

Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children Partnership can be contacted through Lincolnshire 
County Council. 

 
The reasons the Licensing Authority has chosen the above as a Responsible Authority 
competent to advise it on the protection of children from harm are: 

 

 That this body is answerable to democratically elected persons and is not 
answerable to a particular vested interest group; 

 

 That this body is responsible for the area covered by this Licensing Authority and 
this policy; 

 

 That this body is experienced in dealing with the protection of children. 
 
4.4.9 In respect of premises licensed for the sale of alcohol, The Portman Group Code of 

Practice on The Naming, Packaging and Promotion of Alcoholic Drinks should be 
followed to ensure drinks are packaged and promoted in a socially responsible manner 
and only to those who are 18 years or older.   

 
4.4.10 The sale of alcohol to children and young persons under the relevant age is a criminal 

offence, often resulting in harm to the children and young persons concerned and 
disturbance and nuisance to local residents and businesses.  Applicants should detail 
adequate control measures in their operating schedule to prevent under-age sales.  The 
Licensing Authority recognises that Lincolnshire County Council Trading Standards 
Service, as part of its responsibilities and duties under the legislation controlling the sale 
of age restricted products, including alcohol, provides advice and guidance on the 
controls and systems that may be adopted to help prevent such sales.  Applicants are 
strongly advised to contact Trading Standards for advice on this matter.  The Licensing 
Authority also recognises that in liaison with the Police, the Trading Standards Service 
conducts covert test purchasing exercises to check compliance with the law. 

 
Challenge 25 – The mandatory licence conditions (introduced in October 2014) require 
relevant premises to hold an age verification policy in relation to the sale or supply of 
alcohol. The Licensing Authority supports the adoption of the Challenge 25 Schemes (or 
similar scheme) for licensed premises.  

 
A suitable proof of age policy adopted by a licence holder should require the production 
of a photo-driving licence or passport before sale or entry into the premises. For added 
security, licence holders are encouraged to consider use of the Proof of Age Standards 
Scheme (PASS) and accept cards showing the PASS logo. 

 
4.4.11 Where licence holders wish to employ children they should ensure that the legislation 

regarding this matter is complied with and any necessary permits to work have been 
obtained.  Further information on the requirements of this legislation is available from the 
Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children Board. 

 

5 The Licensing Process 

 
5.1  The functions of the Licensing Authority under the Act may be carried out by the 

Licensing Committee, by a Sub-Committee or by one or more officers acting under 
delegated authority in accordance with the provisions of the Act.  Delegated powers are 

Page 40



 

Page 15 of 35 

in accordance with the table at Appendix 1.  This table does not form part of the policy 
and may therefore be amended without consultation with statutory consultees. 

 
5.2  Each application for licensing will be considered on its own merit. Nothing will undermine 

any person from applying for a variety of permissions under the Act. 
 
5.3   Other than electronic applications applicants are reminded that documents submitted as 

part of an application which bear a signature, criminal record certificates, criminal 
conviction certificates, subject access documents and licensing qualifications must be 
original documents.  Faxes and photocopies are not acceptable unless with the prior 
agreement of the Licensing Authority. 

 
5.4  Applicants for any authority or permission are expected to make their application in 

accordance with the Act and any regulations made there under.   Failure to meet this 
requirement may result in the application being returned.  The Licensing Authority will 
endeavour to explain why the application is considered to be deficient and will invite the 
applicant to re-submit the application with all the required information.  Application forms 
will not be returned where they contain obvious and minor factual errors that can easily 
be amended.  It is the responsibility of the applicant to send a copy of their application 
and any other relevant documentation to each of the Responsible Authorities, unless the 
application has been properly made electronically, in which case it is the responsibility of 
the Licensing Authority to circulate it. Where applicants fail, after being reminded, to copy 
applications to Responsible Authorities, or they resubmit applications which are still 
deficient, the application will be rejected.  Re-submission of an application following 
rejection will be subject to the statutory advertising requirements. 

 
5.5   A main part in ensuring compliance with the Act, and in particular showing how the four 

licensing objectives are to be achieved, is the “operating schedule” for the licensed 
premises.  The operating schedule forms part of the licence application.  The schedule 
will aid any Responsible Authority or other party to assess whether the steps to be taken 
to promote the licensing objectives are satisfactory.  The schedule will form part of the 
conditions of the licence or certificate, if granted.  The Licensing Authority will work with 
the licensees and applicants by providing guidance notes on the completion of the 
schedules.  However, the responsibility for drawing up the operating schedule rests with 
the applicant.  The operating schedule should detail the manner in which the business will 
be run and the steps/controls put in place to meet the licensing objectives.  Any individual 
preparing an operating schedule is free to volunteer any measure as a step he or she 
intends to take to promote the licensing objectives.  The operating schedule must specify 
all types of entertainment which will take place at the premises 

 
5.6  Applications for minor variations may be subject to consultation with the appropriate 

responsible authorities and will be refused if any responsible authority indicates that they 
would make a representation on the proposed minor variation. 

 
5.7 In an effort to avoid unnecessary hearings, applicants are strongly advised to prepare risk 

assessments and from these formulate any steps they consider necessary to promote the 
licensing objectives and then to consult with the responsible authorities as defined within 
the Act before submitting their applications.  Failure to do so may lead to representations 
which can only be determined by the Licensing Sub-Committee. In respect of minor 
variations applicants are strongly advised to contact the appropriate responsible 
authorities before formally submitting their application in order to avoid unnecessary 
expense.  

 
5.8 Account will be taken of the need to encourage and promote all types of entertainment, 

including live music, dancing and theatre for the wider cultural benefit of the community 
as a whole.  If representations are made concerning the potential for limited disturbance 

Page 41



 

Page 16 of 35 

from these activities in a particular neighbourhood, the Licensing Authority’s 
consideration will be balanced against the wider benefits to the community. 

 
5.9 The guidance issued by the Home Office indicates that representations can be made in 

opposition to, or in support of, an application.  With this in mind the Licensing Authority 
would remind all parties that all representations (both for and against and application) 
must relate to the promotion of the licensing objectives.  

 
5.10 The Licensing Authority acknowledges that the views of vocal minorities should not be 

allowed to predominate over the general interest of the community. 
 

6 Premises Licences/Club Premises Certificates 
 
6.1   Applicants will be required to submit their application in the form detailed in regulations 

made under the Act.  Applicants will be required to submit, with their application for a 
premises licence, club premises certificate, Provisional Statement or a variation to their 
existing premises licence or club registration certificate, an Operating Schedule detailing: 
- 

 

 The licensable activities to be conducted on the premises; 
 

 The times during which it is proposed that the relevant licensable activities are to 
take place; 

 

 Any other times when the premises are to be open to the public or to members of 
a club; 

 

 Where the licence is required only for a limited period, that period; 
 

 Where the licensable activities include the supply of alcohol, the name, address 
and licence number of the individual to be specified as the designated premises 
supervisor; 

 

 Where the licensable activities include the supply of alcohol, whether the alcohol 
will be supplied for consumption on or off the premises or both; and 

 

 The steps which the applicant proposes to take to promote the licensing 
objectives. 

 
6.2 Applications will be determined having regard to: 
 

 This Policy 
 

 The Licensing Act 2003 and subordinate legislation. 
 

 Guidance issued by the Home Office 
 

 Any relevant representations received (provided they are not determined to be 
frivolous or vexatious). 

  
6.3 LARGE SCALE EVENTS - Organisers of large events, major festivals and carnivals 

should approach the Licensing Authority and Responsible Authorities at the earliest 
opportunity to discuss arrangements for the licensing of those activities falling within the 
provisions of the Licensing Act 2003.  In respect of some events, the organisers may 
seek a single premises licence to cover a wide range of activities at varied locations 

Page 42



 

Page 17 of 35 

within the premises.  Anyone wishing to hold such an event should notify the Licensing 
Authority no less than 6 months before the event is due to happen.  This will allow time 
for the preparation of a substantial operating schedule, by the applicant, which may be 
required to ensure promotion of the licensing objectives.  The Licensing Authority will 
expect applicants applying for permissions to stage events, which draw in large numbers 
of people and/or have an impact on the road network, to have consulted with the Boston 
Safety Advisory Group and Lincolnshire County Council (as the Highways Authority). 

 

7 Late night refreshment Premises 
 
7.1 With regard to premises providing late night refreshment for consumption off the 

premises, the Licensing Authority will (on the receipt of relevant representations) carefully 
consider the level of nuisance likely to be caused by way of noise and litter/food refuse 
being deposited in the vicinity of the premises.  Applicants should consider proposing 
practical steps in their operating schedule to reduce the likelihood of such problems. 

 

8 Minor variations of Premises Licences 
 
8.1 Officers acting under delegated powers will determine applications for the minor variation 

of a premises licence. Any application which does not qualify as a minor variation will be 
rejected.  Licence holders are encouraged to use the minor variation process to add the 
provision of live music to a licence.  However the Licensing Authority will not consider the 
addition of live music between midnight and 0900hrs as a minor variation.  Such 
application would require a full variation application. 

 

9 Licence Hours 
 
9.1 Under the Act there are no standard permitted hours for the sale of alcohol.  Applicants 

are able to suggest in their operating schedule the hours they wish to be open for the 
sale of alcohol and to apply to vary their existing licences if they wish to sell alcohol 
beyond their current hours.  However, there is no general presumption in favour of 
lengthening licensing hours in any area of the Borough and the four licensing objectives 
will be the paramount consideration at all times. 

 
9.2 As far as the Licensing Authority’s overall approach to licensing hours is concerned it is 

not intended that any form of zoning will be introduced.   Experience in other areas shows 
that this can lead to the significant movement of people across boundaries in search of 
premises opening later and puts greater pressure on the centre than is necessary and 
can lead to unnecessary disorder and nuisance.  Applicants should note that the 
Licensing Authority will give more careful consideration to applications for premises 
situated in predominantly residential areas, where relevant representations have been 
received and the proposed hours of operation are between 11.00pm and 7.00am.  In the 
absence of any representation the application must be granted. 

 
9.3   Shops, stores and supermarkets should generally be permitted to sell alcohol for 

consumption off the premises during the normal hours they intend to open for shopping 
purposes subject to paragraph 5.2 above.  However, in the case of individual shops that 
are known to be or are in an area which is known to be a focus of disorder and 
disturbance, or in largely residential areas where the proposed operation is likely to result 
in noise nuisance, subject to receiving relevant representations, a further limitation on 
licensing hours may be appropriate.   

 

10  Personal Licences 
 

Page 43



 

Page 18 of 35 

10.1 A person wishing to sell or supply, or authorise the sale or supply of alcohol, for 
consumption on or off a licensed premises will need to apply for a Personal Licence. The 
Licensing Authority strongly encourages premises licence holders, where alcohol is being 
sold, to ensure that there are sufficient personal licence holders present at the premises 
to ensure adequate supervision of the sale of alcohol. In circumstances where the 
Personal Licence holder has delegated the responsibility for the sale of alcohol, they will 
still have a duty of responsibility for the actions of those they have authorised to make 
those sales. 

 
10.2 Applicants for a personal licence are expected to make their application in accordance 

with the Act and any regulations made there under.  Failure to meet this requirement may 
result in the application being returned. 

  
10.3 Where an application for a personal licence reveals a disclosable conviction for a relevant 

offence under the Act, the Licensing Authority acknowledges that the Police carry out full 
and proper enquiries (including interviewing applicants as necessary) so as to provide 
evidence as to the reasons the crime prevention objective will be undermined by the 
grant of the licence.  

 
10.4 Where a personal licence application reveals an unspent conviction for a relevant offence 

and the police object to the application, the Licensing Authority will normally refuse such 
an application unless there are exceptional and compelling circumstances to justify 
granting the licence.  Any application for a personal licence, which is the subject of a 
police objection, will be considered at a licensing hearing which the applicant may attend 
and be heard. 

 

11 Designated Premises Supervisor 
  
11.1 The sale and supply of alcohol, because of its impact on the wider community and on 

crime and anti-social behaviour, carries with it greater responsibility than that associated 
with the provision of regulated entertainment and late night refreshment. Because of this, 
the Licensing Authority will normally expect that the DPS for a licensed premise will be 
able to demonstrate that they are in day to day control of the premises and playing an 
active role in its operation through a regular personal presence. 

 
11.2 The main purpose of the Designated Premises Supervisor is to ensure that there is 

always one specified individual, among the personal licence holders at the premises, who 
can be readily identified for the premises where the sale of alcohol is permitted.  The 
premises licence holder will normally have given that person day-to-day responsibility for 
running the premises. 

 
11.3 This Licensing Authority recommends that the DPS undergoes relevant training, such as 

the Designated Premises Supervisor course provided by the British Institute of 
Innkeeping Awarding Body, in order that they are made aware of the responsibilities this 
position brings with it. 

 

12 Temporary Event Notices 
 
12.1 Where there is an event with less than 500 attendees at any one time, including staff, 

which involves licensable activities for a period of up to 168 hours, premises users may 
serve a Temporary Event Notice. 

 
12.2   Temporary Event organisers are encouraged to submit their notifications to the Licensing 

Authority as soon as is reasonably practicable in order for the Police and Environmental 
Health to consider whether or not there are any concerns and where there are concerns, 

Page 44



 

Page 19 of 35 

to enable all parties to take the necessary steps to resolve them.  The Licensing Authority 
recommends that at least 20 working days notice be given.  Under the provisions of the 
Act normally at least 10 working days notice must be given.  Persons are however 
permitted to submit a limited number of late TENs between 5 and 9 working days before 
and event.  Working days do not include the day of service of the notice, the day of the 
event, Saturdays, Sundays or Bank holidays.  Where less than 5 working days notice is 
given, or 10 working days if the number of permitted late TENs has been reached, the 
notice WILL NOT be accepted.  Provision of licensable activities except in accordance 
with the Licensing Act is an offence. 

 
12.3 It should be noted that the Police and the Borough’s Environmental Health (Pollution) are 

the only bodies who may make representations to a TEN.  However, these two bodies 
may only object to a TEN on the grounds that one or more of the licensing objectives 
would not be promoted should the event go ahead.  Where objections are received to a 
late TEN the notice will, as required under the provisions of the Act, be rejected.  Where 
objections are received to a standard TEN the matter will heard by a Licensing Sub-
Committee.  The Sub-Committee may: 

 

 Allow the TEN to go ahead 
 

 Reject the TEN 
 

 If the premises where the TEN is proposed to take place already has a premises 
licence the Sub-Committee may allow the TEN but impose some, or all, of the 
conditions on the premises licence onto the TEN if appropriate to do so for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 

 
 Licensing legislation allows event organisers to submit up to 10 Late TENs per year if 
they hold a personal licence and 2 late TENs if they do not hold a personal licence. 

 

13 Review of Premises Licences and Club Premises 
Certificates 

 
13.1 The Licensing Authority will consider the full range of powers available to it when an 

application for review of a licence or club premises certificate is heard.  It will however be 
mindful of the need to prevent the review process being used as an opportunity by 
Responsible Authorities and other persons to re-run earlier representations without due 
cause. The power to review premises licences represents a crucial protection for the 
community, especially with regards to the promotion of the four licensing objectives. 
Reviews of licences may be triggered at any stage by Responsible Authorities or other 
persons due to a matter arising at the licensed premises and relating to one of the four 
licensing objectives. It is the Licensing Authority’s belief that the promotion of the 
licensing objectives is best achieved in an atmosphere of mutual co-operation between all 
stakeholders. Reviews should therefore be mainly reserved for circumstances where 
early warnings of concerns, where appropriate, and the need for improvement have gone 
unheeded by the management of the licensed premises.    

 
13.2 This Authority emphasises the importance of all parties working in partnership to achieve 

the promotion of licensing objectives; the Authority expects that Responsible Authorities 
will aim to give licensees early warning of any concerns identified at a premises.   

 
13.3 Responsible Authorities and other persons (e.g. local residents, local organisations and 

Boston Borough Council Councillors) can apply for the review of a licence; the Licensing 
Authority itself can also initiate the review process.   

 

Page 45



 

Page 20 of 35 

13.4 When acting as a Responsible Authority the Licensing Authority will operate in 
accordance with the Home Office Guidelines to Licensing Authorities.  There will be a 
clear and identifiable separation of responsibilities.  The Head of Service for the area of 
concern leading to the need for review (or an officer so directed by them) will initiate any 
premises reviews or make any relevant representations in relation to licence applications.  
Reviews will not be initiated, or representations made, by the licensing team who shall 
process applications, administer application and review hearings and offer advice to the 
Licensing Authority. 

 
However, the Licensing Authority does not, as a general rule, intend to act as a 
responsible authority on behalf of other parties (for example, local residents, local 
councillors or community groups).  Such parties can make relevant representations in 
their own right, and it is reasonable to expect them to make representations themselves 
where they are reasonably able to do so.   

 
13.5 The Licensing Authority will seek to establish the cause or causes of the concern and 

remedial action will be targeted at such causes. Any action will be proportionate to the 
problems involved. 

  

14 Cumulative Impact   
 

14.1 Cumulative impact has been described within the S182 Guidance since the 
commencement of the 2003 Act.  Cumulative Impact Assessments were introduced into 
the Act by the Policing and Crime Act 2017 with effect from April 2018. Cumulative 
impact is the potential impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives of a number of 
licensed premises concentrated in one area.   This should not, however, be confused 
with ‘need’.  Need concerns the commercial demand for another pub, restaurant or shop 
and is a matter for the market and not a matter for the licensing authority to consider in 
discharging its licensing functions or for its statement of licensing policy.   The cumulative 
impact of licensed premises on the promotion of the licensing objectives is a proper 
matter for the licensing authority to consider. 

 
Where the number, type or density of licensed premises selling alcohol is high or 
exceptional and serious problems of nuisance and disorder may arise outside or some 
distance from those premises and where there is sufficient evidence, this authority will 
consider adopting a cumulative impact policy.  Such problems generally occur as a result 
of large numbers of drinkers being concentrated in an area, for example when leaving 
premises at peak times or when queueing for fast food outlets or for public transport. 

  
A Cumulative Impact Assessment (CIA) may be published by a licensing authority to help 
it to limit the number or types of licence applications granted in areas where there is 
evidence to show that the number or density of licensed premises in the area is having a 
cumulative impact and leading to problems which are undermining the licensing 
objectives.  CIAs relate to applications for new premises licences and club premises 
certificates in a specified area. 

 
14.2 The absence of a cumulative impact policy does not prevent any responsible authority or 

other person making representations on an application for the grant or variation of a 
licence on the grounds that the premises will give rise to a negative cumulative impact on 
one or more of the licensing objectives.  However, in each case it would be incumbent on 
the person making the representation to provide relevant evidence of cumulative impact. 

 
14.3 The Licensing Authority will not operate a quota of any kind which would pre-determine 

any application.  Regard will be given to the individual characteristics of the premises 
concerned within a given area. It is recognised that pubs, nightclubs, restaurants, hotels, 

Page 46



 

Page 21 of 35 

theatres, other clubs and off licences all sell alcohol, but with contrasting styles and 
characteristics. Proper regard will be had to those differences and the impact they are 
likely to have on the local community. 

 
14.4    There must be an evidential basis to include a special policy within the statement of 

licensing policy.  Information which may be considered to evidence the cumulative impact 
of licensed premises on the promotion of the licensing objectives includes; 

 

 Local crime and disorder statistics, including statistics on specific types of crime 
and crime hotspots; 

 

 Statistics on local anti-social behaviour offences; 
 

 Health related statistics such as alcohol-related emergency attendances and 
hospital admissions; 

 

 Environmental health complaints, particularly in relation to litter and noise; 
 

 Complaints recorded by the local authority, which may include complaints raised 
by local residents or residents’ associations; 

 

 Residents’ questionnaires; 
 

 Evidence from Local and Parish Councillors; 
 

 Evidence obtained through local consultation. 
 
14.5 After considering the available evidence and undertaking appropriate consultation this 

licensing authority may be satisfied that it is appropriate to adopt a special policy in 
relation to cumulative impact.  At present there are no policies in relation to cumulative 
impact adopted.   

 
14.6 Cumulative impact policies are not absolute and such a policy must allow for the 

circumstances of each application to be considered properly and for applications that are 
unlikely to add to the cumulative impact on the licensing objectives to be granted.  
Further, such policies must not restrict such consideration by imposing quotas based on 
either the number of premises or the capacity of those premises as this will indirectly 
have the effect of predetermining the outcome of any application. 

 
14.7 There are a number of other mechanisms for addressing issues of unruly behaviour, 

which occur away from licensed premises. These include – 
 

 planning controls; 

 positive measures to create a safe and clean town centre environment in 
partnership with local businesses, transport operators and other departments of 
the local authority including Best Bar None, Pubwatch or Business Improvement 
Districts; 

 Community Protection Notices; 

 The provision of CCTV surveillance in town centres,  taxi ranks, provision of 
public conveniences open late at night; street cleaning and litter patrols; 

 Powers of local authorities to adopt Public Space Protection Orders in 
designated areas; 

 Police enforcement of the general law concerning disorder and anti-social 
behaviour, including the issuing of fixed penalty notices; 

Page 47



 

Page 22 of 35 

 The prosecution for the offence of selling alcohol to a person who is drunk (or 
allowing such a sale); 

 The confiscation of alcohol from adults and children in designated areas; 

 Police enforcement of the general law concerning disorder and anti-social 
behaviour, including issuing of fixed penalty notices; 

 The power of the police, other responsible authorities or other persons to seek a 
review of the licence or certificate in question;  

 Early morning restriction orders; and 

 Raising a contribution to policing the late night economy through the Late Night 
Levy. 

 

15 Early Morning Restriction Orders (EMROs)   
 
15.1 EMROs are designed to address recurring problems such as high levels of alcohol-

related crime and disorder in specific areas at specific times and serious public nuisance 
and other instances of alcohol-related anti-social behaviour which is not directly 
attributable to specific premises. 

 
15.2 EMROs can restrict the sale of alcohol between Midnight and 0600hrs, in the whole or 

part of its area, if satisfied that this would be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives. 

 
15.3 It is the licensing authority’s intention to support businesses rather than hinder them 

whilst ensuring promotion of the licensing objectives.  However, where this has deemed 
to fail then an EMRO could be considered as a possible solution. 

 
15.4    The introduction of an EMRO must be reasonable, justified and proportionate. Other 

measures that could be taken instead of making an EMRO include:  
 

 Cumulative Impact Policy 

 Reviewing licences of specific problem premises 

 Encouraging the creation of business-led best practice schemes 

 Planning controls 

 Prosecution of premises where non-compliance with licensing conditions is 
evident 

 Police enforcement of the general law concerning disorder and anti-social 
behaviour. 

 
15.5 An Early Morning Restriction Order 
 

 Applies to the supply of alcohol authorised by premises licences, club premises 
certificates and Temporary Event Notices; 

 Applies for any period beginning at or after 12am and ending at or before 6am.  It 
does not have to apply on every day of the week and can apply for different 
periods on different days of the week; 

 Applies for a limited or unlimited period  

 Applies to the whole or part of the Licensing Authority’s area 

 Will not apply to any premises on New Year’s Eve (defined as 12am until 6am on 
1 January every year) 

 Will not apply to the supply of alcohol to residents by accommodation providers 
between 12am and 6am, provided the alcohol is sold through mini-bars/room 
service; and  

 Will not apply to a relaxation of licensing hours by virtue of an order made under 
section 172 of the Licensing Act 2003. 

Page 48



 

Page 23 of 35 

 
15.6 Before the Licensing Committee determines to recommend that the full Council make a 

proposed EMRO, it must be satisfied that there is sufficient evidence to demonstrate that 
making the order would be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.   

 
15.7 There are currently no EMROs in place within the Licensing Authority’s area. Any 

consultation in relation to an EMRO or decision to implement an EMRO will be 
undertaken separate to this policy. 

 

16 Late Night Levy (LNL)   
 
16.1 Late night levies allow Licensing Authorities to raise a contribution from late opening 

alcohol retailers towards the policing costs generated by the late night economy.  The 
levy will apply to all premises (on and off trade) throughout the Licensing Authority’s area 
which are authorised to sell or supply alcohol in the time period set by the Licensing 
Authority. 

 
16.2  At least 70% of the net levy revenue must be passed to the Police and any revenue must 

be used to tackle alcohol-related crime and disorder and services connected to the 
management of the night-time economy. 

 
16.3 Any consultation in relation to a possible late night levy or decision to implement a levy 

will be undertaken separate to this policy document. 
 
16.4 A decision on whether to introduce a levy, and its design, is a decision for the full council. 
 
 

17  Nudity and Striptease 
  
17.1 The Licensing Authority does not make a moral stand in adopting this policy. The 

Authority recognises that Parliament has made it lawful to operate establishments 
providing adult entertainment, such as striptease, and such businesses are a legitimate 
part of the retail and leisure industries. It is our role as a Licensing Authority to administer 
the licensing regime in accordance with the law. 

 
17.2 This Authority has adopted the provisions of Schedule 3 to the Local Government 

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended by Section 27 of the Policing and 
Crime Act 2009) so that it can licence sexual entertainment venues in the Borough.  

 
17.3 Premises Licensed under the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 as 

a sexual entertainment venue are governed by the relevant policy for that purpose, 
however the Licensing Authority recognises that some premises providing sexual 
entertainment may not be providing the entertainment at a frequency which requires the 
premises to be licensed as a sexual entertainment venue. Where such premises are 
providing (or intending to provide) striptease or any other kind of nudity (for example, pole 
or lap dancing or topless waitresses) the Licensing Authority, subject to receiving a 
relevant representation, will take into consideration the increased risk to the promotion of 
the licensing objectives. In particular, the Licensing Authority encourages applicants to 
give additional thought in their operating schedule to the promotion of the licensing 
objectives 

 
17.4  Where premises licence applications include striptease or any other kind of nudity, the 

Licensing Authority will (on the receipt of relevant representations) have particular regard 
to the location of the premises in relation, schools, youth clubs, nurseries, children’s 
centres or other premises where significant numbers of children are likely to attend. With 

Page 49



 

Page 24 of 35 

regard to location the Licensing Authority will give close scrutiny to those applications, 
which are in close proximity to the aforementioned premises or outside the town centre. 

 
17.5 In order to promote the licensing objectives, where the Licensing Authority grants a 

premises licence that includes striptease or any kind of nudity it will generally, following 
receipt of relevant representations, impose conditions relating to the following issues: 

 

 The location within the premises where the activity takes place. 
 

 The absence of advertising the activities outside the premises 
 

 The measures taken to ensure no person under 18 years of age enters the 
premises whilst adult entertainment is taking place. 

 

 The measures taken to ensure that the activities inside the premises cannot be 
seen from outside the premises. 

 

 The position of the performers’ dressing rooms in relation to the area in which 
they perform. 

 

 Absence of physical contact between performers and customers. 
 

 Absence of private booths or private performance areas. 
 

 Means by which potential customers will be made aware of the nature of the 
performance. 

 

 Stewarding arrangements. 
 
17.6 Applicants are advised that a ‘no adult entertainment’ condition will be attached to 

licences when a licence application indicates that there will be no such entertainment on 
the premises. 

 

General Matters 

 
18 Outdoor Furniture and Street Café Licences 

 
18.1 The Licensing Authority will (on the receipt of relevant representations) carefully consider 

any application for a premises licence where outdoor tables and chairs are to be 
provided.  In particular, the Licensing Authority will consider the premises in the context 
of their location, the hours during which the premises are to be open, the proposed 
licensable activities and proposals for control of tables and chairs outside the hours of 
operation.  Where appropriate, licence holders should ensure that they have an 
agreement (street café licence) with Lincolnshire County Council to use the public 
footway for the provision of tables and chairs. 

 

19 Smoke Free Legislation 
 
19.1 The Licensing Authority is aware there are a small number of licensed premises in the 

Borough that are unable to provide external smoking areas due to the layout and 
constraints of the particular licensed establishment. The Licensing Authority is aware that 
the congregation of large numbers of patrons on the public highway outside the premise, 
who have temporarily vacated the premise in order to smoke, may in certain 

Page 50



 

Page 25 of 35 

circumstances, lead to public nuisance issues. This is particularly the case where 
customers remain outside for a considerable period of time and consume alcohol 
immediately outside the premise as well as smoking. Licence holders should therefore 
ensure that appropriate measures are in place, where necessary, to minimise public 
nuisance as a result of customers congregating outside the premise.  Licence holders are 
also reminded that the Borough has a Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) in place 
within the area, of which licence holders are strongly advised to prohibit the removal of 
drinks from the licensed area.   Where applications for review are received the Licensing 
Authority may consider measures to negate public nuisance in the immediate vicinity of 
the premise. 

 

20 Councillors as other persons 
 
20.1 When acting as other persons members will be aware of the role of the elected members 

in relation to licensing committee hearings and the Model Code of Conduct. 
 

21 Drinking Up Time / Chill Out Period 
 
21.1 It is recommended the hours during which premises are licensed to sell or supply alcohol 

and the opening hours of a premise are not the same and therefore, applicants for 
premises licensed for the sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises are advised to 
consider a drinking up/cooling down period during which music volume (especially base 
beat) may be reduced, customers may consume their drinks, use the toilet facilities and 
make arrangements for transport from the premises. The Licensing Authority considers 
that this approach will assist in the gradual dispersal of customers and consequently 
reduce impact on the surrounding area. 

 
21.2 The Licensing Authority will consider imposing a condition on drinking up time in 

individual cases where relevant representation(s) are made and it is considered that such 
a condition is necessary in order to promote the licensing objectives in any individual 
case. 

 
21.3 Applicants and licence holders are reminded that the provision of late night refreshment 

between the hours of 2300 and 0500 (with certain exceptions) is a licensable activity. As 
such the provision of late night refreshment must only take place by way of authorisation 
under the Licensing Act 2003. 

 

22 Staff Training 
 
22.1 The Licensing Authority recommends that all persons employed on licensed premises 

who are engaged in the sale and supply of alcohol be encouraged to attend training 
programmes to raise their awareness in this area of responsibility. Similarly, persons 
employed at on-licensed premises should be encouraged to attend training programmes 
which will raise their awareness of the issues relating to drugs and violence in licensed 
premises, and that suitable training be extended to all staff involved in managing or 
supervising the premises. It is also recommended that persons employed on premises 
providing entertainment for children attend training programmes in basic child protection 
and safety. All persons employed on licensed premises should be provided with in-house 
training on basic public safety and the housekeeping arrangements relative to those 
premises. 

 

23 Petrol Stations, Garages and similar premises 
 

Page 51



 

Page 26 of 35 

23.1 Section 176 of the Act states that any authorisation for the supply of alcohol in relation to 
a garage will have no effect if the premise is used primarily as a garage. It is for the 
Licensing Authority to decide in the light of the facts whether or not any premises is used 
primarily as a garage. The Licensing Authority will establish primary use based on an 
examination of the intensity of use by customers of the premises and not based on an 
examination of gross or net turnover.  Premises are used as a garage if they are used for 
one or more of the following: 

 

 The retailing of petrol; 

 The retailing of derv; 

 The sale of motor vehicles; 

 The maintenance of motor vehicles. 
 

24 Karaoke 
 
24.1 Applicants wishing to provide karaoke should ensure that the live music section of the 

application form is completed with an explanation that karaoke is to be provided 
 

25 Excessive Consumption of Alcohol / Binge Drinking / 
Irresponsible Drinks Promotions 

 
25.1 The Licensing Authority is acutely aware of the link between the supply of excessively 

discounted alcohol or irresponsible drinks promotions and incidents of alcohol related 
disorder as well as the impact that excessive or binge drinking can have on public health. 
The Council as Licensing Authority will use the powers contained within the Licensing Act 
to ensure operators’ promotional activities do not undermine the licensing objectives. 

 
25.2 Licence holders are reminded that the mandatory licence conditions require the 

responsible person at the licensed premises to take all reasonable steps to ensure that 
staff do not carry out irresponsible promotions. Irresponsible promotion means carrying 
on an activity (defined in the mandatory condition), which carries a significant risk to the 
licensing objectives. When deciding whether a drinks promotion constitutes an 
irresponsible promotion the Authority will make specific reference to the guidance issued 
by the Home Office. The Authority will give appropriate weight to the Home Office 
document in its decision making process.  

 
25.3    Irresponsible drinks promotions are likely to encourage excessive consumption or binge 

drinking and result in alcohol fuelled incidents of crime and disorder and implications for 
public safety, public nuisance and may expose children to risk of harm. 

 
25.4 Any premises found to be promoting irresponsible drinks promotions (likely to have a 

negative effect on the licensing objectives) will be liable for prosecution. The Responsible 
Authorities have stated that where evidence shows that premises’ alcohol drinks 
promotions are undermining one or more of the licensing objectives, then they may 
instigate a review of the licence. 

 
25.5 Where relevant representations are made or reviews are requested on any individual 

case, the responsible person will be expected to demonstrate to the Licensing Authority 
that appropriate measures are in place to ensure that promotions do not carry a 
significant risk to the licensing objectives. 

 
25.6 On receipt of relevant representations, or review applications, which demonstrate a clear 

link between sales promotions and levels of crime and disorder or public nuisance on or 

Page 52



 

Page 27 of 35 

in the vicinity of the premises, the Licensing Authority will seriously consider the status of 
the premises licence. 

 

26 Community Premises and Applications for the Removal of 
the Requirement for a Designated Premises Supervisor  

 
26.1 The Licensing Authority recognises that community premises may apply for the removal 

of the requirement for a Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS).  
 
26.2 On receipt of an application requesting the removal of the two mandatory conditions 

relating to the need for a Designated Premises Supervisor, and sales of alcohol being 
authorised by a personal licence holder, the Licensing Authority will consider replacing 
those conditions with the following alternative condition: 

 

 Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised 
by the management committee. 

 
26.3 Such applications shall only be granted to ‘community premises’. A Community Premises 

is defined as premises that are or form part of; 
 

 a church hall, chapel hall or other similar building, or 

 a village hall, parish hall, community hall or similar building. 
 
26.4 When considering whether a premise is a community premises the Licensing Authority 

will consider each application on its own merits. The main consideration for the Licensing 
Authority will be how the premises are predominately used. If they are genuinely made 
available and accessible by a broad range of persons and sectors of the local community, 
for purposes beneficial to the community as a whole, then the premises is likely to meet 
the definition. However, if there is an aspect of private gain in relation to the operation of 
the premises then it is unlikely to be viewed as a community premises. 

 
26.5 Before granting the dispensation from the requirement for a DPS, the Licensing Authority 

will need to be satisfied that suitable arrangements are in place at the community 
premises in order to manage the supply of alcohol. Officers acting under delegated 
powers will undertake the initial scrutiny of applications. If Officers or the Police are not 
happy with the arrangements (and the applicant still wishes to proceed with the 
application) then the application will be considered by a Licensing Sub-Committee 
hearing. 

 
26.6 All applications must be copied to the Police for comment and consultation. The 

Licensing Authority will allow the Police 28 days to make any representations.  
 
26.7 The Licensing Authority will consider the management arrangements of the premises 

when considering applications for the removal of the requirement for a DPS. The 
management should be by a formal Management or Executive Committee, and the 
premises licence must be in the name of that committee. The Licensing Authority will 
need to be satisfied that the arrangements for the management of the premises are 
sufficient to ensure adequate supervision of the supply of alcohol on the premises. Any 
arrangements should normally include: 

 

 The contact details of a responsible person or nominated contact to take any 
necessary action should issues arise. 

 A written policy on how children and underage sales of alcohol will be managed. 
The policy should identify the offences under Sections 145 to 153 inclusive of 
Licensing Act 2003 in respect of children and alcohol. 

Page 53



 

Page 28 of 35 

 An effective hiring agreement when the premises are hired for private events. 

 Provision of a Refusals Register. 

 Provision of Staff Training. 
 
26.8 Community premises should note that the Licensing Authority supports the Challenge 25 

Scheme in order to combat the underage sales of alcohol and endorses the Action with 
Communities in Rural England (ACRE) model in relation to community premises hiring 
agreements. 

 
26.9 The Licensing Authority would normally expect any hiring agreement to contain the 

following: 
 

 The conditions of the premises licence; 

 The policy on underage sales; 

 A signed declaration that the hirer has read and understands his responsibilities 
in leasing the premises 

 
26.10 The management board or committee, as premises licence holder, will collectively be 

responsible for ensuring compliance with the law. 
 
26.11 If a representation is received from the Police requesting the imposition of the same 

mandatory conditions applicable to non-community premises, then the Licensing 
Authority will consider whether those conditions are necessary to promote the crime 
prevention objective before granting or varying the licence. Where a review application is 
made in respect of a premises licence that includes the ‘alternative condition’, the 
Licensing Authority may determine that normal mandatory conditions should apply, and a 
Designated Premises Supervisor is required. 

 

27 New Year’s Eve and New Year’s Day and British 
Summertime 

 
27.1 The Licensing Authority recognises that licensed premises are likely to wish to have 

extended operating hours over the period of New Year’s Eve into New Year’s Day. With 
this in mind, applicants are encouraged to make provision for this period in their licence 
applications rather than perhaps relying on a Temporary Event Notice (TEN). If 
representations are made concerning the potential for noise disturbance during this 
limited period, the Licensing Authority’s consideration will be balanced against the special 
nature of this particular time of the year. 

 
27.2 The Licensing Authority recognises that the change in time to British Summertime will 

only affect those premises operating to the early hours on the night the clocks change.  
However, for those premises it can be confusing as to the closing hour on the night in 
question as well as being confusing for applicants completing a new application.  For this 
reason the Licensing Authority will assume that applicants applying for the licensing 
hours to the early hours wish an additional hour to the standard time on the night when 
British Summertime commences. 

 

28 Parish Councils 
 
28.1 The Licensing Authority recognises Parish Councils as being bodies that are 

democratically elected to represent the views of their area.  Whilst not being Responsible 
Authorities, under the terms of the 2003 Act, Parish Councils are able to act as “other 
parties” in their own right and also represent the views of other parties when requested to 
do so. 

Page 54



 

Page 29 of 35 

 

29      Challenge 25 Scheme 
 
29.1 The Licensing Authority strongly supports campaigns to reduce the illegal sale of items to 

underage persons and the adoption of a Challenge 25, or similar policy, within the 
licensed trade.  Under the scheme, premises selling alcohol should seek proof of age 
from anybody who appears to be under the age of /25.   

 
N.B.  The mandatory licence conditions, introduced in 2014, require relevant premises to 
have an age verification policy in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
29.2 The policy should create a culture of expectation that in pubs, clubs, off-licences and 

similar premises that proof of age should either be offered or produced on demand and 
that this should be the norm as far as the sale of alcohol to young persons is concerned.  
Asking for identification at an age limit that is higher than the legal age for the sale of the 
product means that licence holders are much more likely to avoid an illegal sale to 
someone who looks older than their true age. 

 

30 Licence/Club Premises Certificate Suspension – non-
payment of annual fee 

 
30.1 Most Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates attract an annual fee, the 

payment of which is due on the anniversary of the grant of the licence or certificate.  The 
Act requires a licensing authority to suspend a premises licence or club premises 
certificate if the annual fee is not paid, when due, unless the payment was not made due 
to an administrative error, or a disputed liability for the fee which has been notified to the 
licensing authority before or at the time of the due date.  In either of these cases there is 
a grace period of 21 days to allow the licensing authority and the licence holder the 
opportunity to resolve the dispute or error. 

 
30.2 Where such a suspension takes place the licensing authority must give a minimum of two 

days notice and may inform the police or other responsible authorities of the suspension.  
All licensable activities must cease when the suspension takes effect.  The suspension 
will only cease on payment of the outstanding fee irrespective of any transfer or hearing 
which may take place.  

 

31 Immigration Act 2016 – Entitlement to work 
 
31.1 Section 36 of and Schedule 4 to the Immigration Act 2016 made a number of 

amendments to the Licensing Act 2003 to introduce immigration safeguards in respect of 
licence applications made on or after 6 April 2017.  The intention of these changes is to 
prevent illegal working in premises licensed for the sale of alcohol or late night 
refreshment. 

 
31.2 It is now a requirement for the licensing authority to be satisfied that an applicant has the 

right to work in the UK.  An application made by someone who is not entitled to work in 
the UK must be rejected. 

 
31.3 Licences must not be issued to people who are illegally present in the UK, who are not 

permitted to work, or who are permitted to work but are subject to a condition that 
prohibits them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity. 

 
31.4 A premises or personal licence in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 

will lapse if the holder’s permission to live or work in the UK comes to an end. 

Page 55



 

Page 30 of 35 

 
31.5 The statutory prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective in the Licensing Act 

2003 includes the prevention of immigration crime and the prevention of illegal working in 
licensed premises.  The licensing authority will work in partnership with the Home Office 
(Immigration Enforcement) and Lincolnshire Police with a view to preventing illegal 
working in premises licensed for the sale of alcohol and/or late night refreshment. 

 
31.6 The licensing authority will have regard to any guidance issued by the Home Office in 

relation to the immigration related provisions now contained in the Licensing Act 2003. 
 

32 Enforcement 
 
32.1 The Licensing Authority will take appropriate enforcement action where there are 

breaches of the Act.  Enforcement action will be in accordance with the Boston Borough 
Council’s enforcement policy, which reflects the agreed principles which are consistent 
with the Better Regulation Executive. To this end, the key principles of targeting 
consistency, transparency and proportionality will be maintained. 

 

33 Review of Policy 

 
33.1 The Policy Statement will remain in existence for a period of 5 years and will be subject 

to review after that period.   
 

As with any medium term framework, parts of this document may become outdated as a 
result of amendments to legislation and the Section 182 Guidance.  It is essential that it is 
kept under regular review and updated when necessary and appropriate.  The Head of 
Service/Assistant Director with responsibility for Licensing has delegated authority to 
make minor and consequential changes to this Policy in consultation with the Chairman of 
Licensing Committee.  This document is subject to version control and all changes will be 
recorded and communicated accordingly. 

 

  
34 Advice and Guidance 

 
34.1  For further advice, information or guidance on the application process or to obtain advice 

about whether or not activities should be licensed please contact Boston Borough 
Council Licensing Section either: 

 

 By telephone: 01205 314235 
 

 Email: licensing@boston.gov.uk 
 

 Post:  The Licensing Section 
o Boston Borough Council, 
o Municipal Buildings, 
o West Street, 
o Boston, 
o PE21 8QR. 

 
This policy has been prepared having undertaken an equality impact assessment. 

 

Page 56

mailto:licensing@boston.gov.uk


 

Page 31 of 35 

35 Delegation of functions 
 
35.1 The Licensing Authority will be involved in a wide range of licensing decisions and 

functions and has established a Licensing Committee to administer them. Appreciating 
the need to provide a speedy, efficient and cost-effective service to all parties involved in 
the licensing process, the Committee has delegated certain decisions and functions and 
has established Sub-Committees to deal with them. 

 
35.2 Further, with many of the decisions and functions being purely administrative in nature, 

the grant of non-contentious applications including, for example, those licences and 
certificates where no representations have been made, has been delegated to Officers. 

 
35.3 The table shown at Appendix 1 of this Policy sets out the agreed delegation of decisions 

and functions to Licensing Committee, Sub-Committee and Officers. This form of 
delegation is without prejudice to Officers referring an application to a Sub-Committee, or 
to the Full Committee, if considered appropriate in the circumstances of any particular 
case. 

 
35.4 These delegated powers do not form part of this Policy and may be amended without 

consultation or review of the Policy. 
 

Page 57



 

Page 32 of 35 

APPENDIX 1 - Delegation of Functions 
 

 The delegation of functions in relation to licensing matters is as follows: - 
 

MMaatttteerr  ttoo  bbee  ddeeaalltt  wwiitthh  LLiicceennssiinngg  

CCoommmmiitttteeee  
SSuubb  --CCoommmmiitttteeee  ooff  

tthhee  LLiicceennssiinngg  

CCoommmmiitttteeee  

  

AAssssiissttaanntt  DDiirreeccttoorr  --  

RReegguullaattiioonn  ffuurrtthheerr  

ddeelleeggaatteedd  ttoo  

LLiicceennssiinngg  &&  LLaanndd  

CChhaarrggeess  MMaannaaggeerr  

uunnlleessss  ootthheerrwwiissee  

ssttaatteedd  

Application for personal 
licence  

 If a Police 
Objection 

If no objection is 
made 
 

Application for premises 
licence/club premises 
certificate 

 If a relevant 
representation 
made 

If no relevant 
representation 
made 
 

Application for provisional 
statement 

 If a relevant 
representation 
made 

If no relevant 
representation 
made 
 

Application to vary 
premises licence/club 
premises certificate 

 If a relevant 
representation 
made 

If no relevant 
representation 
made 
 

Application to vary 
designated premises 
supervisor 
 

 If a Police objection 
is made 

All other cases 

Request to be removed 
as designated premises 
supervisor  
 

  All cases 

Application for transfer of 
premises licence 

 If a Police objection 
is made 

All other cases 

Applications for Interim 
Authorities 

 If a Police objection 
is made 

All other cases 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 58



 

Page 33 of 35 

MMaatttteerr  ttoo  bbee  ddeeaalltt  wwiitthh  LLiicceennssiinngg  

CCoommmmiitttteeee  
SSuubb--CCoommmmiitttteeee  ooff  

LLiicceennssiinngg  

CCoommmmiitttteeee  

  

AAssssiissttaanntt  DDiirreeccttoorr  --  

RReegguullaattiioonn  ffuurrtthheerr  

ddeelleeggaatteedd  ttoo  

LLiicceennssiinngg  &&  LLaanndd  

CChhaarrggeess  MMaannaaggeerr  

uunnlleessss  ootthheerrwwiissee  

ssttaatteedd  

 
Decision on whether a 
complaint is irrelevant 
frivolous vexatious etc. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
All cases unless 
the officer 
considers it 
appropriate to refer 
to the Licensing 
Committee 

 
Application to review 
premises licence/club 
premises certificate 

 
 

 
All cases 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Decision to object when 
Local Authority is a 
consultee and not the 
lead authority 
 

  
All cases 

 
 
 

 
Acknowledgement of a 
Temporary Event Notice 

   
All cases 

 
Rejection of a Temporary 
Event Notice due to 
permitted limits being 
exceeded. 

   
All cases 

 

 
Determination of a Police 
or Environmental Health 
representation to a 
temporary event notice 
 

  
All other cases 

 
When all parties 
agree that 
conditions can be 
attached to a TEN 
and a hearing is 
not required. 

 
Determination as to 
whether or not a premises 
is used primarily as a 
garage (Section 176 of 
the 2003 Act) 
 

  
All other cases 

 
Where Officers are 
of the opinion that 
the premises meet 
the requirements of 
Section 173. 

 
 
Determination of an 
application for the minor 
variation of a premises 

licence. 
 

   
 
All Cases 

Page 59



 

Page 34 of 35 

 
Application by a 
Community Premises for 
the disapplication from the 
requirement for a DPS. 

  
All other cases 

 
Where Officers are 
of the opinion that 
the premises meet 
the required 
standard and there 
have been no 
objections by 
Lincolnshire Police. 
 

 
Responsible Authority 
submitting a 
representation or applying 
for review of a premises 
licence or club premises 
certificate. 

   
Assistant Director 
responsible for the 
area of concern. 

 
Decision of the Licensing 
Authority to agree a 
hearing is not necessary. 

   
 
All cases 

 
Decision of the Licensing 
Authority to dispense with 
a hearing. 

   
All cases 

 
The Sub-Committee of the Licensing Committee shall comprise three Members of that Committee 

Page 60



 

Page 35 of 35 

Version Control 
 

VERSION 
SERIALISATION 

REASON: EFFECTIVE 
FROM: 

AMENDED BY: 
POSITION AND 
DATE 

APPROVED 
BY: 
POSITION 
AND DATE 

PUBLISHED 
ON: 

Version 1.0 Implementation of 
Version 1.0 

24 November 
2020 

  24 
November 
2020 

      

      

      

 
 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: FULL COUNCIL 

DATE: 23 NOVEMBER 2020 

SUBJECT: COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME – 2021/22 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: CLLR JONATHAN NOBLE – FINANCE & 
COMMERCIAL 

REPORT AUTHOR: COUNCIL TAX AND BENEFITS MANAGER 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

 

SUMMARY 
 
The Council Tax Support Scheme was introduced in April 2013, and the 2020/21 
scheme was agreed in December 2019. This report informs members on the 
introduction and the operation of the scheme to date, and provides an update on 
the process now being undertaken and the options put forward for consultation, 
prior to the formal approval of the 2021/22 scheme by full Council.  
 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That Full Council reviews the scheme to date, reviews the proposed options and 
approves the Scheme for the 2021/22. 
 
 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
To enable members to review the operation of the scheme to date, in line with the 
council tax reduction scheme regulations 2013. 
 
 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
To not undertake a review. 

 
  

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 63

Agenda Item 3



REPORT 
 
1 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND  
 
1.1  As part of the Government’s programme of welfare reform, the old Council Tax 

Benefit scheme was replaced by localised support arrangements for Council Tax 
from 2013/14, with Government grant support reduced by 10%. From April 2013, 
Councils have been required to establish local Council Tax Support (CTS) 
schemes. The support is in the form of a discount applied to the Council Tax 
demand notice. 

 
1.2  The Welfare Reform Act also contains provisions regarding the introduction of 

Universal Credit which impacts on the future administration of Housing Benefit. 
There continues to be a phased approach to the introduction of a new single 
welfare credit. Universal Credit roll-out for the Boston area began in April 2015. 
Universal Credit full service was rolled out in the Boston area on the 12

th
 

September 2018, for new claims only, migration of existing claims is not due to be 
complete until at least 2023. 

 
1.3  The 2013/14 introduction of council tax support was accompanied by a cash-

limited government grant to councils, which was taken into account in setting the 
Council Tax Base and when forming the first year’s CTS local scheme.  
 

1.4 Whilst the new regulations provided councils with flexibility to set up their own 
local arrangements, the Government expressed clear intentions in relation to 
certain aspects of a local scheme. These included: 

  
• For pensioners there should be no change in the level of awards as a 
result of this reform. This includes both existing and new benefit claimants.  
• Councils were required to also consider ensuring support for other 
vulnerable groups  
• Local schemes should support work incentives, and in particular avoid 
disincentives to move into work.  

 
1.5 The Government expects that Councils should continue to have a significant 

degree of control over how expenditure on the current council tax support bill is 
achieved. This includes freedom to collaborate to reduce costs, develop schemes 
that support priorities that are shared by a number of neighbouring authorities and 
the ability to manage financial risks.  

 
1.6  At the time of setting up Boston’s local scheme, the CTB caseload was made up 

in the following way –  
 

Table 1 - Profile of Council Tax Benefit customers (as at July 2012) 
 

                            Number                    Percentage          CTB expenditure  

Working Age  3,194  50.05%   
Pensioners  3,187  49.95%   
Total  6,381  100%  £4,889,578* 

 
*Estimated full year expenditure. A breakdown of working age and pension age 
expenditure is not available. 

Page 64



 
1.7 During each year the levels of CTS as well as caseloads fluctuate and it is  
 only at the end of a financial year that we can be assured of the total  
 expenditure incurred. Pensioner caseloads tend to attract higher levels of  
 awards than those of working age. This is due to factors such as higher  
 levels of income, non-dependents in the household and generally going on  
 and off benefits in the working age claimant group. 
 
2 BOSTON’S LOCAL SCHEME  
 
2.1  Since 2013 the Council’s local scheme uses a number of principles:- 
  

Protecting the most vulnerable – pension-age and war pensioners  
A means-testing scheme based on the Council Tax Benefit rules as far 

as possible  
The scheme will be reviewed annually  
Protect war pensioners from reductions in support  
Maximum entitlement to be capped at 75% of Council Tax liability  

   
2.2 The review of the scheme for 2021/22 identified that the projected costs were 

contained within the budgeted resources. A similar scheme to previous years, 
with up ratings in line with the Government for specific deductions, was approved 
for the current year. 

 

3  CURRENT SCHEME FIGURES 
 
3.1 As at 31 March 2020, the caseload and spend was as follows –  
 
                            Number                    Percentage          CTS expenditure  

Working Age  2,482 52.19%  £1,648,971 
Pensioners  2,273 47.81%  £2,158,999 
Total  4,755 100%  £3,807,971 
 
3.2 The outturn position for 2019/20 was a 2.7% increase to the direct costs of the 

council tax support scheme when compared to 2018/19. There was a 
reduction in the caseload of 1.69%. This is due to the increase in council tax 
with the additionally 2% for Adult Social Care and the introduction of universal 
credit. 

          The cost of the scheme is borne by the major preceptors (LCC, LPCC & BBC) 
in proportion to their precepts. The cost to the Borough Council is therefore 
approx 11% of the total cost. 

 
3.3 As at 31 July 2020, the caseload and spend so far for 2020/21 was as follows 
–  
                            Number                    Percentage          CTS expenditure  

Working Age  2,379 51.34%  £1,622,129 
Pensioners  2,255 48.66%  £2,158,092 
Total  4,634 100%  £3,780,222** 
 
** This figure fluctuates in year with caseload changes and final expenditure will not 
be determined until 31 March 2021.  

Page 65



 
4.  Proposals for the 2021/22 Council Tax Support scheme 
 
4.1 When approving the 2018/19 CTS scheme, it was proposed that a 

fundamental review of the scheme would not be undertaken for at least two 
years due the delays in the roll out process of Universal Credit. This should 
allow sufficient evidence to determine the ongoing impacts. The migration of 
universal credit claims has not yet been decided and we believe will be 
complete until at least 2023. 

  
 The delays have also had a knock-on impact for our pensioner caseload and 
we will not see any changes to their housing costs being paid for from Housing 
Benefit until after March 2022.  
 
Since the introduction of universal credit it has become apparent that those 
who are in receipt of universal credit along with earnings and claim council tax 
support can have their claims reassessed up to 12 times per year. Universal 
credit is assessed over a month period and the earnings received by the 
applicant within that time period are used, if these increase or decrease the 
assessment to universal credit will change, creating a reassessment for 
council tax support. If there is a change to their assessment this will alter the 
council tax instalments going forward. This may mean that some applicants 
may find that they could go up to 12 months without receiving a reminder for 
council tax. Our current records show that we have approx. 900 case where 
universal credit is in payment with earnings and a claim for CTS.  

  
 On this basis the 2021/22 CTS scheme was consulted on as follows. 
 

Option 1 
 
Continuation of the current scheme, as it is, with a ‘no change’ approach. 
 
With uprating the amounts used in the calculation of Council Tax Support for 
working age claimants in line with Department for Work and Pensions Uprating 
for working age social security benefits and non-dependant deductions. 
 
This option would maintain a consistent approach to Boston’s CTS scheme 
since its introduction in 2013/14.  It continues to recognise the additional 
needs of the vulnerable through the approach to its calculation. 
 
Any further reduction in the grant funding or increase in CTS awards would 
need to be found from other budget areas or service cuts. Any consultation 
process should include this as an option with views on how or what services 
should be affected. 

 
Option 2 
 
Uprate in line with the Department of Work and Pensions uprating’s for 
working age social security benefits and non- dependant deductions, but 

Page 66



assess working age applicants who are working and in receipt of universal 
credit every 3 months. 
 
If an applicant had a significant change in their income within the 3 month 
period the case should be reassessed, this will allow the applicant more 
consistency with their entitlement and allow the council tax to become due and 
if the need should arise place the account into the standard recovery cycle. 
 
This option would maintain a consistent approach to Boston’s CTS scheme 
since its introduction in 2013/14, however it would alleviate the challenges 
received by the introduction of universal credit. It continues to recognise the 
additional needs of the vulnerable through the approach to its calculation. 
 
Any further reduction in the grant funding or increase in CTS awards would 
need to be found from other budget areas or service cuts. It would reduce the 
need for monthly recalculations which could offer administration savings. Any 
consultation process should include this as an option with views on how or 
what services should be affected. 

 
Option 3 
 
Continuation of 2020/21 scheme, but not apply any uprating’s. This would            
make our scheme out of line with nationally calculated figures.  

 
Any further reduction in the grant funding or increase in CTS awards would 
need to be found from other budget areas or service cuts. Any consultation 
process undertaken should include this as an option with views on how or 
what services should be affected. 

 
 
5  Additional information 
 
5.1 The Council is required to consult with major preceptors and the public in 

terms of any scheme changes.  Any consultation should run for a reasonable 
period of time, and the responses to the consultation will be made available to 
members, and ultimately Council, as part of the decision making process. The 
more flexibility there is around consultation and the scheme options to be 
included in the consultation, the greater the likelihood that the consultation can 
be based on the best available information and therefore provide better 
information on which the Council can set its scheme for the following year.  

 
5.2 The financial risk of the localised scheme is shared with Lincolnshire County 

Council and the Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire, as our major 
precepting authorities.  Unlike Council Tax Benefit which was a fully funded 
scheme, Council Tax Support is now a local discount, and has the effect of 
reducing the council tax base. 

 
5.3     The final decision regarding the scheme design rests with this Council.  
 

Page 67



 
6.  Decision making and consultation 
 

 In order to ensure that the 2021/22 localised CTS scheme is implemented for 
April 2021, the following timetable of consultation and decision making is being 
followed:- 

 

Consultation to include major preceptors, other 
interested parties, and Corporate and 
Community (C & C) Committee 

September - October 2020 
 
  

Analyse consultation responses Early October 2020 

C & C Committee 
Cabinet  
To recommend to Council the 2021/22 Local 
Council Tax Support Scheme 

15th October 2020 
21st October 2020 

Council formally approves final 
2021/22 Local Council Tax Support 
scheme 

23rd November 2020 

Notification of approved new scheme to those 
affected, if required 

January 2021 

Implementation of new scheme 1 April 2021 

 
7.  Results from consultation 
 
7.1  The consultation ran from 4th September to 2nd October 2020. The survey 

was published on the Council’s website and social media sites.  An article was 
also placed in the Boston Bulletin.  A copy of the survey and press release 
was circulated to all Parish Councils a paper copy could also be requested by 
contacting the Transformation Officer. 

 

7.2    72% strongly agree or agree with the proposal to continue the Council Tax 

Support scheme as it is.  

 

7.3   65% strongly agree or agree with the proposal to continue with the current 
scheme is fair and provides supports to those most vulnerable. 

 
7.4  39% agreed to a different timescale of assessment for universal credit claims. 
 
CONCLUSION 

 
There is a statutory requirement for an annual review of the Council’s Council 
Tax Support scheme, and this report presents options that formed part of the 
consultation process. This report has been to Corporate and Community 
Scrutiny and Cabinet, both recommended Option 2. 

 
  

Page 68



 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The impacts upon the Council’s budgets of the preferred option, once Council 
approval has been given, will be included in the 2021/22 Budget and Medium Term 
Financial Strategy. It is anticipated that these will be in line with the costs of the 
current year’s scheme.  
 

 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The Council tax reduction scheme regulations 2013 requires that councils  review 
local schemes on an annual basis. 

 
 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
An equality impact assessment will be undertaken as any specific proposals for 
amending the scheme going forward are considered. 
 

 

APPENDICES 
 
None 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 
 

None  

 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

Corporate and Community Committee – 15 October 2020 

Cabinet – 21 October 2020 

 
  

Page 69



FINANCE PROFORMA 

 
BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
PROFORMA FOR EXECUTIVE APPROVAL OF THE RELEASE OF RESOURCES 
(CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGETS) 
 
FROM:   

 

THIS PROFORMA PROVIDES THE FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 IN RESPECT OF THE ATTACHED 

     
REPORT:   
REPORT DATE:  
 
 £ Year 1 £ Year 2 £ Year 3 £ Year 4 £ Year 5 
 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 
Revenue      
      
      
      

Total Revenue 
Cost 

     

 
Funding required:   Considered by: Date: 
Total capital cost 
 

£0    

Revenue cost 
 

£0     

 
Financial Services Comments 
 
There are no financial implications arising at this stage. The report to Council seeking 
approval on the 2021/22 CTS scheme to be adopted will identify budgetary considerations 
which will then be included in the 2021/22 Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy. 
 
Risk 
 
That future caseload increases, and/or that impacts of wider Welfare Reform measures 
accrue, and additional costs are incurred. 
 
Procurement 
 
n/a 
 
Value for Money Efficiency 

 
n/a 
 
This FP is valid for 3 months 
from FP date 

If this FP is no longer required please 
advise Finance 

If there are changes to the original report 
it may invalidate this document, it must 
be reviewed by Finance. 

   

 

Page 70



 

 
 

REPORT TO: COUNCIL 

DATE: 23 NOVEMBER 2020 

SUBJECT: CORPORATE STRATEGY/PRIORITIES 2020-2024 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: COUNCILLOR NIGEL WELTON 
DEPUTY LEADER 

REPORT AUTHOR: JAMES GILBERT 
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR – ORGANISATION AND 
CORPORATE SERVICES 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 
 

SUMMARY 
 
The Cabinet has been working to develop a vision for Boston for their current term 
and beyond.  
 
Appendix A to this report is the proposed Corporate Strategy/priorities 2020-2024. 
 
This Strategy has been developed following scrutiny through the Corporate and 
Community Scrutiny Committee (27 August) and a period of stakeholder and public 
consultation thereafter.   The Scrutiny Committee recommendations are attached at 
Appendix B and the consultation feedback at Appendix C.   
 

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That Council approves the Corporate Strategy/priorities 2020-2024. 
 

 
 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The existing Corporate Strategy requires a refresh to ensure clear strategic priorities 
for the Council are in place. 
 

 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 71

Agenda Item 4



 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
A range of options for the priorities were considered. 
 

 
 
REPORT 
 
1. The proposed Corporate Strategy can be found at Appendix A. 
 

It should be noted that some of the priorities are a longer-term vision and will 
not be completed by the end of 2024, however, key building blocks will be put 
into place to move towards these aspirations. 
 

2. The Strategy’s development has included input from the Corporate and 
Community Scrutiny Committee; as well as stakeholders and the community 
through a public consultation.   Appendices B and C to this report include the 
feedback from the Committee and that received through the consultation.  
Many of the comments received from respondents to the consultation have 
helped to shape the Strategy presented to Council. 

 
CONCLUSION 
 
The Corporate Strategy sets out a high-level ambition for the term of the Council and 
beyond. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The Council’s Medium-Term Financial Strategy will be aligned to reflect the agreed 
priorities of the Council. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
N/A  

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS 
 
The Strategy identifies a strategic priority focused on climate change. 

 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 

 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS  
 
None 

 
 

Page 72



CONSULTATION 
 
The Corporate Strategy was subject to consultation and the findings are attached at 
Appendix C.  
 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 
 

APPENDIX A Proposed Corporate Strategy 

APPENDIX B Corporate and Community Scrutiny Committee 
recommendations 

APPENDIX C Consultation report 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 
 

LGA Corporate Peer Review http://s4fzas59p.gb-02.live-paas.net/wp-
content/uploads/2020/07/Boston-Borough-
Council-Peer-Review.pdf 

 
 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

 

 21 October – Cabinet to recommend to Council (recommend to Council). 
 

 9 September 2020 – Cabinet (for agreement to consult). 
 

 27 August 2020 - Corporate and Community Scrutiny Committee. 
 

 

Page 73

http://s4fzas59p.gb-02.live-paas.net/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/Boston-Borough-Council-Peer-Review.pdf
http://s4fzas59p.gb-02.live-paas.net/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/Boston-Borough-Council-Peer-Review.pdf
http://s4fzas59p.gb-02.live-paas.net/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/Boston-Borough-Council-Peer-Review.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



1Proud of our Borough’s history, ambitious for its future

Corporate Strategy 
2020 to 2024

P
age 75



3

Welcome to Boston Borough Council’s Corporate Strategy.

This Strategy sets out the Council’s direcꢀon of travel over the coming four years; idenꢀfying 
where the Council will focus its efforts and resources to improve the Borough for our 
community.

This Strategy has been produced at a ꢀme when the Council and community are beginning the 
long process of recovering from Covid-19. However, we now have an opportunity to secure 
up to £25m of Government funding for regeneraꢀon in our Borough.  In addiꢀon, we have 
entered into a strategic alliance with East Lindsey District Council that will enable us to save 
£5m over the next ten years, whilst also improving services to those we represent.

As a Council we are ambiꢀous for the Borough of Boston.  We will conꢀnue to deliver high 
quality services that our community needs in their everyday lives, whilst at the same ꢀme 
looking to the future with a view to addressing some of the key challenges the area faces.

Whilst this Strategy sets out what we aspire to achieve, it is recognised that we will need to be 
both flexible and adaptable as the environment around us conꢀnues to change.  

We cannot do everything we want to on our own.  We recognise that to achieve our goals and 
maximise the opportuniꢀes for Boston we will need to work with new and exisꢀng partners.  

Our Strategy focuses on four prioriꢀes:
1. People
2. Future prosperity and inclusive growth
3. Environmental awareness and accountability
4. Delivering high quality services and maximising the use of technology to support residents.

We would like to thank everyone who has contributed to the development of this Strategy.  

As a Council and community, we should all be immensely proud of Boston as a place to live, 
work and visit, and we all have a role to play in championing the Borough and everything it has 
to offer.

1Introducꢀon

Robert Barlow
Chief Execuꢀve

Cllr Paul Skinner
Leader of the Council

The River Witham

2

P
age 76



5

The Place

Boston is the historic town in the 
Lincolnshire Fens from where, almost 
400 years ago, a group of ciꢀzens 
were central in the founding of 
the now famous city in America of 
Boston Massachuseꢁs.

Boston’s historical status and wealth 
led to the construcꢀon of its parish 
church on a grand scale. During the 
12th and 13th centuries Boston 
was a thriving port, and by the 14th 
century Boston had become the 
fourth-richest provincial town in 
England. A reminder of those great 
ꢀmes, the tower of St. Botolph’s, 
affecꢀonately known as the “Stump”, 
remains one of the east of England’s 
most enduring and imposing 
landmarks.

Boston has seen a rapid increase in 
its populaꢀon in recent years with 
the growth mainly from incoming 
eastern European migrants. This has 
brought challenges in terms of rapid 
increase but also significant benefits 
in the provision of a workforce for 

local employers. ONS esꢀmates the 
Borough of Boston populaꢀon at 
69,000.  Approximately 50% of the 
Borough’s residents live within the 
town of Boston, with the remaining 
50% living in the surrounding rural 
communiꢀes.

Boston lies at the centre of some 
of the country’s most ferꢀle land. 
Because of this the economy of the 
Borough of Boston is dominated by 
agriculture and horꢀculture. Other 
businesses are largely ancillary 
to this; namely engineering, 
food processing/ manufacturing 
and logisꢀcs (with a few notable 
excepꢀons).

The town of Boston is the 
administraꢀve centre and the main 
economic hub for both retail and 
commercial acꢀvity. Outside the 
town, the wider Borough consists of 
18 disꢀnct parishes, each looking to 
Boston for its main services.

The Borough of Boston’s business 
base by VAT/PAYE acꢀvity and size 
is nearly 2,200 with 1,855 falling 
in the 0 to 10 employee band. 

However, it also has 15 businesses 
including Bakkavor, Freshꢀme, 
Turners Distribuꢀon, Mason Brothers 
Distribuꢀon, Pilgrim Foods that are 
within the 250+ employee band, 
all creaꢀng opportuniꢀes in sector-
related supply-chain management. 
Other large employers include 
Boston College and the Pilgrim 
Hospital.   There is a consistently low 
unemployment rate in Boston (lower 
than the naꢀonal average). 

As the main economic centre, 
Boston also has a fully operaꢀonal 
internaꢀonal Port supplying the UK 
with coiled aluminium and steel for 
the automoꢀve and construcꢀon 
industries as well as imporꢀng raw 
materials such as ꢀmber and paper. 

The Borough has a well-established 
business base that has created a 
resilient place of work and a strong 
place to invest.  The Borough is 
an affordable locaꢀon for home 
ownership and is now delivering 
confidence within the construcꢀon 
sector as a place to develop, 
capturing further economic potenꢀal 
and acceleraꢀng growth.

Boston Borough Council
Boston Borough Council is one of seven district councils within the county 
of Lincolnshire, which currently is a two ꢀer area of Local Government.   The 
council has 30 elected members and operates the Leader and Cabinet 
execuꢀve model of governance. 

The Council employs around 300 people.

A Strategic Alliance with East Lindsey District Council came into effect 
from 1 July, 2020. This Alliance sees both councils operate with a shared 
management team.  Both councils conꢀnue to retain their own idenꢀty and to 
be accountable to their local communiꢀes, however sharing experꢀse, teams 
and resources will allow the councils to make significant savings. By coming 
together in this way, we will jointly save £15.4m over the next 10 years and be 
able to improve the delivery of services to local people. 

The move will also provide both councils with a stronger voice when it comes 
to securing future Government growth funding and influencing how services 
are delivered locally in the future.

2 About Boston

COASTAL

BOSTON
SWINESHEAD &
HOLLAND FEN

FIVE
VILLAGES

WYBERTON

KIRTON &
FRAMPTON

OLD LEAKE
& WRANGLE

Amber
Hill Holland Fen-with-

Brothertoft

Swineshead

Bicker

Wigtoft

Sutterton

Algarkirk

Fosdyke

Freiston

Butterwick
Benington

Leverton

Old Leake Wrangle

FISHTOFT

WITHAM
WARDFENSIDE

WARD TRINITY
WARD

STATION
WARD

SKIRBECK
WARD

STANILAND 
WARD

WEST
WARD

ST THOMAS’ WARD

Boston Docks

Planꢀng in the borough
4

P
age 77



Boston – Live, Work and Visit – Amazing Place to Live

We want Boston to be a place where people want to live, a place where they can thrive in their local communiꢀes, feel safe, secure, healthy and welcome.

We will:
ꢀ  Help ensure our community conꢀnues to feel safe by maintaining our exisꢀng community safety funding/resources.
ꢀ  Invest and support growth to meet local housing needs by co-funding affordable housing delivery.
ꢀ  Educate and enforce to improve the quality of rented properꢀes in the Borough.
ꢀ  Provide affordable and accessible leisure opportuniꢀes for all.
ꢀ  Work in partnership to deliver improved transport networks, both road and rail, parꢀcularly to Lincoln as well as other ciꢀes.
ꢀ  Work in partnership to secure excellent broadband to all homes in the Borough.

Fantasꢀc Place to Work – We want people to THINK BOSTON, Think Business

We will:
ꢀ  Make Boston a healthy and safe place to work.
ꢀ  Promote growth and infrastructure including improved rail, road networks and waterways.
ꢀ  Work with uꢀlity companies to ensure that local infrastructure is fit for purpose (i.e broadband, electricity supply and mobile phone networks)
ꢀ  Promote Boston’s economy, industry and opportuniꢀes.

Memorable Place to Visit – VISIT Boston

We want Boston to be a diverse and vibrant town to explore and discover, with a range of quality naꢀonal and independent shops, wonderful dining experiences 
and a unique history and heritage.  We want to build on this to further develop the visitor economy and posiꢀon Boston as a leading visitor desꢀnaꢀon.

We will:
ꢀ  Manage and enhance the heritage assets of Boston to increase tourism.
ꢀ  Seek new opportuniꢀes to encourage visitors to Boston through culture, arts, events and sport.
ꢀ  Increase the promoꢀon of Boston as a visitor desꢀnaꢀon and improve its public spaces.
ꢀ  Work with external agencies towards achieving water level management on the Haven through the town.

3 Priority 1 – People Focused (Our Main Priority) Boston Market Place

76

P
age 78



9

As a regional sub-centre of the county, we want to grow Boston’s economy to 
ensure it remains a thriving town where people choose to live, work and visit.  
In doing so it is important we understand the needs of our communiꢀes and 
achieve growth in a way that is inclusive.  

This includes ensuring the Council is fit for purpose and maintains its robust 
financial governance, remains financially sustainable and conꢀnues its 
journey towards becoming truly commercial.

Sustainable Economic Growth

We will:
ꢀ  Support exisꢀng business.

 Further develop our relaꢀonship with the port to support its growth 
and increase internaꢀonal trade links.

 Ensure potenꢀal investors recognise Boston as a Borough open for 
investment.

 Signpost opportuniꢀes for funding, partnering, learning skills and 
business growth support.

 Promote skills and enterprise through partnerships with educaꢀon 
providers and businesses. 

 Use available evidence to inform the decisions we make about 
growth iniꢀaꢀves. 

Inward Investment

We will:
 Promote and facilitate inward investment by working with strategic 

partners to make Boston a locaꢀon of choice.
 Work with Boston Town Deal Board to prepare the Investment Plan 

and intervenꢀons and deliver the idenꢀfied projects.

 Develop the bold investment plan and explore delivery models for 
the PE21 ambiꢀon.

 Equip the town centre to adapt to behavioural change and 
economic growth more generally, including developing the retail 
experience.

 Implement the Local Plan and undertake specific master planning 
and policy reviews to support delivery of growth within the 
Borough.

Promote Boston’s Potenꢀal

We will:
 Promote Boston regionally, naꢀonally and internaꢀonally as a place 

to live, work and visit.
 To conꢀnue to develop exisꢀng commercial and other arrangements 

to further promote Boston internaꢀonally.
 Promote trade and tourism opportuniꢀes created by the 

mulꢀnaꢀonal community of the area. 
 Promote Boston as a visitor hub for the area.
 Develop our membership of the New Hanseaꢀc League (Die Hanse), 

to promote tourism in Boston Borough and Lincolnshire in general.
 Build on the transatlanꢀc relaꢀonship with Boston USA.

Priority 2 – 
Future Prosperity, Regeneraꢀon and Inclusive Growth

Aerial view of part of Boston 

8

P
age 79



10

The Council declared a climate change emergency in January 2020, commiꢂng to reduce the Council’s carbon footprint and become net zero carbon in advance 
of the ꢀmetable declared by UK Parliament.  The Borough Council will play its role to ensure we begin to reverse the impact on climate change.  We will 
encourage others to follow our example and be more environmentally aware.

We will:
 Develop a Carbon Reducꢀon Plan for the Council to achieve the target agreed.
 Ensure that every service and policy deliver on the climate change commitments of the Council to support posiꢀve environmental impact on the 

Borough.
 Proacꢀvely educate and enforce against environmental crime, such as fly ꢀpping and liꢁering, to both protect the environment and keep the Borough 

clean and ꢀdy.
 Work with partners to encourage the community to produce less waste and recycle more.
 Be climate aware and spearhead the change in thinking about the impact that our acꢀons have, not only on the local environment here in Boston but 

also on the enꢀre planet.

There is conꢀnued pressure on funding to Local Government, whilst at the same ꢀme the demand is increasing for many of the services we deliver.   Making 
use of the latest technology will increase the efficiency of our services so we can deliver more for our communiꢀes.   There is also the opportunity to be more 
creaꢀve in the ways we generate income to fund our core services.

We will:
ꢀ  Make beꢁer use of technology and data to reduce costs and improve performance and efficiency.
ꢀ  Produce and deliver a Workforce Development Strategy that supports the delivery of the Corporate Strategy. 
ꢀ  Seek new and more creaꢀve ways to generate income to support the Council’s ambiꢀons.

Priority 3 – Environmental Awareness and Accountability

Priority 4 – Delivering high quality services and maximising 
use of technology to support residents

Bicker Wind Farm

11

P
age 80



It is important that we tell you how we are doing. We monitor and manage 
our performance and report this to our scruꢀny commiꢁees and Cabinet. 
This informaꢀon is published on our website.

The prioriꢀes will also underpin the development of the annual Delivery 
Plan.

4 Measuring Success

May Fair looking through Central Park12

P
age 81



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B 

CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY COMMITTEE MEETING 27 AUGUST 2020 
 

SUBJECT:   DRAFT CORPORATE STRATEGY/PRIORITIES FOR CONSULTATION 

 

Brief minute of key recommendations and suggestions in respect of amendments to 

the document noted as follows: 

 

 The document to be reviewed in respect of wording and punctuation. 

 

 Change the reference to ‘google’ to something more generic as it needs to be 

a serious document. 

 

 Broader borough geography has 18 parishes – the ‘geography’ does not have 

18 parishes. 

 

 The hospital is called Pilgrim Hospital….not the Pilgrim General Hospital. 

 

 Page 25.  Third paragraph from the bottom:  change low employment to low 

unemployment. 

 

 Electronic connectivity is not within the document and is a key area needing 

address across the borough.  

 

 Boston is a regional sub-centre of the county – could that be emphasised 

within the document somewhere? 

 

 There is no mention of the towns International Links.  Could they be 

incorporated within the document? 

 

 The Council must consult widely, through various channels, exposing the 

agreed draft to staff, businesses and residents. 

 

 

Full minutes will be drafted and out for Chairman and Lead Officer approval, in time 

for tabling in support of the report at Cabinet, on the 9th September 2020. 

 

 

K Rist. 

Clerk for the meeting. 

 

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL        

CORPORATE STRATEGY 
CONSULTATION RESULTS 

SEPTEMBER 2020 

Appendix C 

 

  

Page 85



1 
 

*all comments appear as received. 
 

Corporate Strategy Results 2020 

 

Introduction 

 

The Council’s Corporate Strategy guides everything that Boston Borough Council does, identifying 

where the Council will focus its efforts and resources to improve the Borough for our community. 

 

This Strategy has been produced at a time when the Council and community are beginning the long 

process of recovering from Covid-19. However, we now have an opportunity to secure up to £25m of 

Government funding for regeneration in our Borough.  In addition, we have entered into a strategic 

alliance with East Lindsey District Council that will enable us to save £5m over the next ten years, 

whilst also improving services to those we represent. 

Our Strategy focuses on four priorities: 

1. People  
2. Future prosperity and growth  
3. Environmental awareness and accountability 

4. Delivering high quality services and maximising the use of technology to support residents. 

Public consultation took place during September 2020. 

Methodology 

 

Consultation took place from September 10, 2020, to September 30, 2020.  The survey was placed 

on the Council’s website and on the Council’s social media pages where it was also shared into other 

locally relevant social media pages/groups. The survey was distributed to a number of local 

community groups, partner agencies and local businesses and was also advertised in the Boston 

Bulletin.  In addition to this, it was actively promoted via the local media. 

 

The Staff Forum also took place during September where the draft Corporate Strategy was 

discussed. Comments from this Forum are included in this report.  

 

A paper copy of the survey could also be requested by calling the Transformation Officer.   

 

57 completed surveys were received. 

 

 

 

Headline Results 

 

 79% of respondents who completed the survey lived within the Borough of Boston. 

 

 71% of respondents agreed with the 4 priorities. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 86



2 
 

*all comments appear as received. 
 

Results 

 

Q1. Are you completing this consultation as… 

 

 A Resident 

 A business 

 An organisation or community group 

 A Parish Council 

 Other 

 

The majority of respondents - 79% - completed the questionnaire as a resident of Boston.   

 

 
 

 

Those who responded as ‘an Organisation or community group’; ‘a Parish Council’ or ‘Other’ had 

the opportunity to provide more information: 

 

 I work in Boston  

 Lincolnshire CVS 

 Boston born and bred, but no longer live in the town 

 Resident and employee of Boston Borough Council 

 On behalf of the Lincolnshire and Norfolk Area, RSPB England 

 Employee of the Council 

 Private citizen and independent member of Audit and Governance committee 

 A near resident, I now live in Antons Gowt.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

[VALUE]% 

[VALUE]% 4% 
0 

14% 

0 

10 

20 

30 

40 

50 

60 

70 

80 

90 

A resident A business An organisation A Parish Council Other  

Are you completing this consultaion as.... 

Page 87



3 
 

*all comments appear as received. 
 

 

 

Q2. Do you agree with the priorities identified in the draft corporate strategy? 

 

 
 n* % 

Yes 40 71% 

No 16 29% 

 

16 respondents commented.  A breakdown of themes is given below alongside the detailed 

responses received: - 

- Climate Change x 2 

- Improve town centre x 2 

- Priorities not specific enough x 2 

- Priorities not in right order x 2 

- Need more career opportunities x 1 

- Housing x 1 

- Tourism x 1 

- Promote healthy lifestyles x 1 

- Traffic/Parking x 1 

- Community safety x 1 

- Disagree with priorities x 1 

- Miscellaneous x 1 

 

 Overwhelming need to become "carbon neutral" could well affect the Council's ability  
to deliver it's stated aims. It could be a convenient excuse at times. 

 They’re in the wrong order. A net zero carbon footprint is a lofty and worthy goal,  
but least important to ordinary people. It should be the lowest priority. 

 The town centre and Market Place is dying and yet doesn't get a mention? 

 
 
 
 

0% 

10% 

20% 

30% 

40% 

50% 

60% 

70% 

80% 

Yes No 

Do you agree with the priorities identified?  

Page 88



4 
 

*all comments appear as received. 
 

 

 Fantastic Place to Work We want people to THINK BOSTON, think business. We will:            • 
Promote growth and infrastructure including waterways....whats waterways got to do with 
'think Boston, think business'? There's been too much spent already on leisure aspects of 
waterways that are not facilitating business, unless your taking a day trip along the 
river...hardly 'think Boston think Business'!!! Maintain waterways, yes, promote growth and 
increase infrastructure NO. Also, where within the strategy is there a clear pathway for the 
younger generation accessing employment, such as apprenticeships - there must be more in 
this strategy to align career seekers with business via apprenticeships and other direct ways 
into businesses and careers. 

 Just words. Not a strategy. What are you going to do? Be specific. What are your targets? 

 I would prioritise the points as below 2 - Future Prosperity - I feel this is important due to the 
current situation with Covid-19 4 - Delivering high quality services 1 - People Focused 2 - 
Environmental Awareness 

 They are very vague and would prefer to see something more specific and specifically which 
actions are linked to recovery from Covid as this isn’t clear. 

 Nothing really about removing more of the Easton European shops ,clubs, and more check’s 
on letting houses were the conditions are below standard. You will never make Boston a 
visitors centre because of the crowds of people in small groups standing around watching 
people passing. 

 Housing as at the moment new housing is being created on 'green' land. More needs to be 
done to utilise existing 'brown' land. 

 I no longer feel safe in the town.  I feel with the influx of people, the long term prosperity of 
the town will decline faster than it has in recent years.  The local increase in demands on our 
medical services make it difficult to get treatment. It seems as if a majority of monies 
available, is spent on minority groups. Public transport is not cost effective. To encourage 
more tourist, it should be lead by a new look, not just putting more money into a tried old 
system. 

 You can't promote Boston as an attractive tourism destination 

 I think we need to make the town more visually appealing and safe and welcoming before 
promoting it. I have known people say they have visited the town and are horrified and the 
gang street drinking and intimidating culture. Driving down say London road is quite an 
experience, there needs to be far more double yellow lines from London Road to High 
Street. Speeding is an understatement. Main Ridge is atrocious too. The people sat in offices 
saying to promote the town should walk the streets and they would realise the town is not 
ready to be promoted. Maybe start building the 'affordable housing' in villages with more 
space as the town is over run with crowded houses. Promotion of healthy lifestyles. 

 The whole essence of the Corporate Strategy seems to be full of whimsical ideals of how the 
town used to be rather than what we now find ourself with. The quality of living within the 
town has degraded over the years from a place that I wanted to live to one that i'm rapidly 
becoming ashamed of. It used to be a safe place at any time of the day or night to walk 
through. the thoroughfares were clean and tidy and there was a good selection of retail 
establishments and food outlets. Sadly this is no longer the case it is difficult to feel safe 
when walking through the town especially after dark, the increase in rubbish plus the smell 
from human waste, the number of empty retail premises slowly decaying. The pedestrian 
areas with buses and cyclists running through what is there to attract investment and 
visitors? There is only so much attraction in a faded history. I suggest that it is time to take 
off the rose tinted glasses  

 A half hearted cut and paste 

 The proposed strategy is completely silent on waste management and recyling, the 

Page 89



5 
 

*all comments appear as received. 
 

significant problems we have with the growing amount of waste in our community including 
littering and fly tipping. It is silent on dealing with poor behaviour in respect to 
environmental crime. It is silent on keeping our streets clean and tidy ensuring our 
streetscene is attractive and fit for purpose to encourage inward investment and make it a 
clean and attractive place to do business. Waste Management and recycling has to be a 
priority for the Council, we need to reduce the amount of waste our growing community is 
producing, how can you have missed this off the strategy. Please add waste, recycling, 
environmental 

 Waste recycling, keeping streets clean is not included. 
 
 

Q3 Priority 1: People Focused - Are there any comments you wish to make on the priority and 

what it is aiming to achieve?.  

38 respondents commented.  A breakdown of themes throughout the comments is given below 

alongside the detailed responses received: - 

- Town Centre x 7 

- Miscellaneous x 6  

- Focus more on History Boston x 5 

- Traffic Management x 4  

- Priority not specific enough x 3 

- Agree with priority x 3 

- Increase in population x 3  

- Housing x 2 

- Clean Street issues x 1 

- Schools/Colleges x 1 

- Encourage new business x 1  

- Strategic Alliance x 1  

 

 The policy in it's current form is far too broad and impersonal. It seems to take no 
account of how it feels to live in Boston 

 The council in my view has not sufficiently focused on attracting tourists from 
America, as this is essentially the birthplace of that counrty I'm surprised the town 
is not heaving with people from the USA. Maybe a bigger commitment finacially to 
shout our message across the big pond?  

 I agree that People Focused need to be involved as part of what is needed in 
Bostons achievements 

 It really positive that we are proposing to co-funding affordable housing delivery as 
this has proved extremely beneficial previously. However what about other areas of 
housing such as housing standards, to ensure existing stock is well maintained and 
managed, and homelessness and rough sleepers provision which contributes to the 
feel of the town as well as peoples lives? 

 I agree with the priorities and cannot see anything missing under this heading  

 We must embrace things as they are now (ie multi-cultural) and modern, as 
opposed to harking back to how things were 10,20, 30years ago. Times have 
changed.  We must embrace a need for market housing - if you build it, they will 
come - this attracts business, and further investment. 

Page 90



6 
 

*all comments appear as received. 
 

 Focus needs to be on the centre of the town to help with reducing commuting, 
pollution and aid making the central area vibrant and busy. 

 Also, lots of rhetoric but no 'strategy for delivery' - impossible to comment without 
the detail, as its the detail that determines whether or not any of the ambitions are 
deliverable, incl. adequate investment in the right prioritises, who, when, how, etc 
etc. 

 I am in total agreement 

 Just words.  I should hope you are ‘people focused’ 
 
 

Q4. Priority 2: Future prosperity, Regeneration and Inclusive Growth - Are there any comments 

you wish to make on the priority and what it is aiming to achieve? 

41 respondents commented.  A breakdown of themes throughout the comments is given below 

alongside the detailed responses received: - 

- Investment in town centre x 10 

- Support local business x 8 

- Economic growth x 6 

- Improve reputation of the town x 5 

- Agree with priority x 4 

- Priorities unlikely to be achievable x 4 

- Young people x 4 

- Clean Street issues x 2 

- Affordable housing delivery x 1 

- Develop port x 1 

- Do not agree with priority x 1 

 

 It seems to want to race ahead before current problems (lack of infrastructure, 
huge inter cultural voids and expectations) are even acknowledged and addressed 

 Could include a 'We will' point such as 'Endorse the "Bristol Accord" eight 
characteristics of a sustainable community and support the growth of social capital 
through focus on young people, skills and community'.  This would tie in with the 
town deal priority and ambition for Inclusive Growth. 

 The council has invested some £20m or more into Investment Property trusts, why 
doesn't the council invest in commercial bricks and mortar to help restore trading in 
the town that has suffered so badly? 

 While this may be only the second priority, it will require an awful lot of thought 
and innovation to achieve. The atmosphere around town on recent visit home was 
gloomy and oppressive. I have strong ties to the town, but felt most unwelcome. 

 The image of the town needs to improve. People feel Boston isnt safe and is run 
down. Investment is needed in trying to change the reputation of the town  more 
needs to be made of the waterways and historic parts of town, ie Wormgate.  
Narrow and wide bargate need serious investment as both look tired, unloved and 
rundown. 

 I am in agreement of what the aiming of achievements are. 

 I agree with the priorities and cannot see anything missing under this heading. 

Page 91



7 
 

*all comments appear as received. 
 

 increased emphasis required on housing delivery - if you build it, they will come - 
this attracts business, and further investment.  Council can be a catalyst and should 
take more of an injection, leadership role, particularly around the town centre. 
Delivering improvements that deliver value - social or economic - such as 
investment in place. 

  

 

 Regeneration maintains the character of Boston ,rather than demolition and 
replacing with Hideous carbuncles . This again needs to be central rather than 
continuing into the green belt. 

 • Support existing business.' I would have thought given the state of the town 
centre and lack of central businesses (and rates paid) it would be far more 
ambitious to encourage MORE businesses to the market centre...that however is 
not mentioned in this priority?! '• Further develop our relationship with the port 
and increase international trade links.' great idea, but without improvements to 
what is poor road infrastructure, putting the cart before the horse. Also, as the 
town and surrounding areas are so 'produce' and 'food' orientated, one would think 
an ambition and priority of the strategy would be to better facilitate the movement 
of export and import of produce/food....rather than leave it for other main ports 
much much further away (that 'will' attract extra funding to cope with the increase 
in bureaucracy/paperwork relating to the import/export of produce/food) that will 
follow post EU Exit. NB much of the produce that comes through those other ports 
ends up in Boston/Spalding for processing / packing and then further distributions 
by road to the rest of the Country... surely Boston should be focusing the port of 
facilitating a more efficient movement of produce/food directly to the area of 
destination, than it currently does... !!??? 

 We need to grow Boston's economy any way we can to keep the town alive 

 The town needs significant investment but also residents need to be realistic about 
what the council can achieve alone and that the economics cannot be changed by a 
district council 

 Their is no future for the town until we get big changes, and that includes the 
council ideas. 

 As previously stated. Encourage the right type of new shops and businesses to open 
in the town by giving incentives. Zero or reduced business rates for the first year or 
rates calculated on turnover. Boston has too many vape shops, charity shops and 
low end retail outlets. We need to draw big names into the town which will then 
bring shoppers from extended areas around the town thus increasing the prosperity 
of all. 

 Make sure affordable housing does not become the slums of the future.  
Abandoned run down empty properties should be dealt with preventing eyesores. 

 Suppporting existing businesse must be a priority and then build on inward 
investment. New businesses are vital to the future prosperity of Boston creating 
new jobs and careers. Most of our educated achieving youngsters leave Boston 
after school and never return; this must change. PE21 development is unlikely to be 
viable in its present form. Improving the quality of what we've got already should 
come first. Boston has been in decline since the mid-1970's. We have an amazing 
history and heritage which many towns would die for. Creating a town where 
people actually want to work and live is essential. The town centre is not a 
"comfortable place" and very little to attract locals or visitors in its present state. 
 

Page 92



8 
 

*all comments appear as received. 
 

 The town centre needs to be improved by encouraging independently run shops. 
There are too many empty shops that are being left to decay. Why would anybody 
want to come to Boston for a days shopping when the current town centre is dead. 

 Boston has been in decline since mid-1970's. It is no longer a regional sub-centre. 
Regeneration starts with supporting existing businesses which must include making 
it easier and more convenient for customers to use their facilities including reducing 
traffic congestion, free car parking, clean streets and general environment. Inward 
investment with new businesses is essential to creation of new job opportunities. 
Most of our educated and achieving younger generation leave Boston at the end of 
school life and never return because there are no worthwhile jobs for them. PE21 
developmemt is most likely not viable. Concentration should be on improving what 
we've got first and recreate a happy, comfortable inviting environment with 
opportunity for everyone. Town centre must be revived before its too late. Boston 
must return to being a place where people actually want to work and live. We have 
a great history and heritage which some towns would die for. Let's make Boston 
great again! 

 No – fine 

 Regeneration and encouragement for industry to relocate will make the more 
prosperous. Support growth and the high street. 

 It would be nice to see local schools actively engaged with the development 
projects as they will be the ones who continue to help Boston thrive in the coming 
years. If you can instil a love of Boston in the younger generation now, they will 
naturally pass that enthusiasm to their peers and generations after them. 

 
Q5. Priority 3: Environmental awareness and accountability - Are there any comments you wish to 

make on the priority and what it is aiming to achieve? 

39 respondents commented.  A breakdown of themes throughout the comments is given below 

alongside the detailed responses received: - 

- Clean Street Issues x 9 

- Environmental Awareness x 8 

- Agree with priority x 5 

- Are priorities realistic x 4 

- Traffic Management x 4 

- Wind/Solar energy x 2 

- Should focus on other issues (general comment) x 2 

- Enforcing housing standards x 1 

- Miscellaneous x 1 

- Reduce pollution x 1 

- Water management x 1 

- Regenerate town centre x 1  

 

 Over emphasis on environmental issues diverts attention and resources away from current 

more pressing issues. 

 Serious efforts need to be made to rid the town of flytipping and seek to proactively catch 

and prosecute those responsible for trashing our town environment. 

Page 93



9 
 

*all comments appear as received. 
 

 Recycle bins in town. More litter pickers and deep clean of town centre. Cycle routes that 

actually lead somewhere and working with LCC to configure a better road system around 

liquorpond street and Lister way. 

 We need to aim achievements for oue Enviroment. 

 As well as the actions we can take we could also mention that we have a part to play e.g. by 

promoting / enforcing housing standards - Energy Performance Certificates, especially in the 

private rented sector, and by ensuring that new housing is constructed to high energy 

efficiency standards. However this may be covered generally by the second bullet point. 

 I agree with the priorities and cannot see anything missing under this heading. 

 Laudible aims, but come at a cost.  Are they realistic, can they be delivered? 

 Ongoing project that requires additional resources to nurture others to work for not against 

our town. Accountability needs to be for all not the few. Money, privilege or nepotism are 

never an excuse for flouting the law. 

 No mention of alignment to future enviro opportunities, i.e. via ELMs and working with local 

farmers.growers and land managers to facilitate a coordinated and collaborative ELMs Tier 3 

investment in the area. No mention of alignment via ELMs to the 25 Year Enviro Plan and 

opportunities therein.  In terms of the 'We will' - just looks like rhetoric to me, needs detail 

and more alignment and planning, otherwise merely a sop and potential for small easy wins, 

rather than a broad and all inclusive long term delivery? Why are you not recommending 

supporting the businesses, incl. food and farming industry whereby their net zero ambition 

will require holistic structural support?  WHY IS THIS PRIORITY JUST ABOUT WHAT THE 

COUNCIL IS GOING TO DO FOR THE COUNCIL AND NOT INCLUSIVE OF LOCAL BUSINESSES 

AND SUPPORTING THEM TO DELIVER AGAINST THE AREAS WITHIN THIS PRIORITY????? 

 I am in total agreement 

 What about pollution? You had a document out last year on how you want to reduce vehicle 

pollution and where is this ? 

 The only thing that really spring to mind is the river, which would improve with the water 

level management. 

 We support the Council's climate change emergency declaration, but the emphasis on 

sustainability and the natural environment doesn't come across as very strong in the 

strategy. How will the Council's actions translate in business, in communities, and in 

planning and development, for example? The Wash and Boston's waterways provide 

resources, business and livelihoods for many, so what will the Council do to safeguard these 

assets? 

 mention that Boston and the Lincolnshire coast is at the forefront of renewable (wind 

turbine) generation 

 The town and area needs to be forward thinking in environmental issues, encouraging the 

youth of the town to learn to love this their home and be forward thinking in issues 

regarding their and the towns future. Their views and ideas  need to be listened to and 

discussed with them rather than token acknowledgemnt and no further action. 

 I think there are other shorter term priorities the council could focus on to make a difference 

for their residents 

 Sewage left on the streets , rubbish on the streets, 

 You should aim to be as "green" as possible. Again, offer businesses incentives to become 

greener. 

 More need to be done to protect the environment. 

Page 94



10 
 

*all comments appear as received. 
 

 I fail to see how the local council can control these matters when much of the administration 

is taken out of its control 

 Niche environmental concern , but it's full of rubbish everywhere, bugger emissions and 

stuff when this is much more visible ,crack down and clean up as it gives an impression of a 

town and it's authority that doesn't care and who wants partnerships with those 

 Are we eligible for the proposed grants to regenerate town centres that are of historic 

interest? Surely as the home of the pilgrim fathers we should be top of the list! 

 More should be done in regards of littering accross the town - perhaps an increase in fines 

or introduction of community service if found to be littering - making people collect rubbish 

and clean the town as a penalty.  Providing the homeless with work as street cleaners could 

be beneficial to the town and to the homeless people, providing the vulnureable with 

opportunities to get their life on track. Article: 

https://www.globalcitizen.org/fr/content/homeless-people-clean-streets-texas/   The 

temporary bike lane suggestion also goes in hand here with the need to drastically improve 

the carbon emissions. Perhaps cycle to work schemes can be introduced - with certain 

benefits to employees (or businesses) that cycle rather than drive to work? 

 Yes incentives to bike or walk.  Making it safer for children too. Free brown bins as it is 

difficult to access the recycling centre as it has to be pre booked.  It  should be subsidised at 

least for those who are elderly or with disabilities. 

 My daughter is a director of a commercial company that is heavily involved in climate 

change ! Make plastic wrapping easy to 'recycle, encourage cycling, loft insulation etc 

 You MUST include waste management, waste minimisation, recycling, dealing with 

environmental crime, littering, dog fouling, fly tipping. The Borough is growing and more and 

more people are living in it. The Council must prioritise managing waste activity. there is no 

mention of this at all in the proposed strategy. 

 waste minimisation, waste crime, recycling, street cleanliness 

 No mention of Solar, Wind or Wave energy, all of which are at our fingertips!  Sustainable 

and a revenue source !!! (plus employment possibilities) The strategy should consider 

working with the generating boards to explore all forms of revenue for the benefit of the 

people. 

 Anything to reduce carbon emissions and improve/save the environment is welcome. 

 The improvement of the road networks around Boston would reduce traffic build up thereby 

reducing vehicle emissions from static vehicles. 

 Anything to reduce carbon emissions is welcome. The general environment must be 

improved by having a clean and tidy town in every road and street. 

 Statements are being made but nothing of how it will be a achieved 

 There’s a lot of untapped support and enthusiasm with the younger generations for raising 

environmental awareness and reducing impacts. As above, actively engaging young people 

in this through school and council collaborations will help embed priorities into their daily 

lives 

 We need to protect our environment and improve it where possible 

 United Nations recently declared that a million species were in danger of extinction.  Natural 

England said last week that the UK was one of the least biodiverse countries in the world.  

Today Plant Life said we were in danger of losing one third of our plants.  So the situation is 

very serious.  Much of what I am about to say is not the responsibility of BBC.  Its more the 

direct responsibility of NE and The Environment Agency for example.  The Wash for instance 

is being neglected and that's because NE do not have funds to do the work.  Boston however 

Page 95



11 
 

*all comments appear as received. 
 

have a powerful voice and can help in many cases.   The Wash.  The Wash is the 2nd most 

important estuary for birds in Europe and has more designations than any other site in the 

UK.  It is not in the best of health.  Run-off from the former waste disposal site on the banks 

of the Haven and residue from agricultural inputs reaching the River Witham must be looked 

at.  Disturbance of wading birds and passerines whilst roosting or feeding by people and 

their dogs can only shorten bird lives.  Other activities like irresponsible use of boat craft or 

low flying aircraft or models or drones have the same effect.  These problems must be 

addressed.  Grass Cutting  Most local authorities cut roadside grass responsibly but many 

farmers and landowners go too far.  Often grass and wild flowers are cut too early much to 

the detriment of ground nesting birds pollen and nectar feeders and seed eaters.  Often 

grass is cut unnecessarily because it looks nice.  There are occasions where grass need only 

be cut once every 2 or 3 years.  IDB's are also guilty of unnecessary maintenance especially 

whilst ground nesting and other birds are still nesting.  Climate change has seen the bird 

nesting season extended in both directions.    Plastic Waste  Boston and its residents are well 

organised in the collection of waste plastic.  What a pity we cant stop producing the waste in 

the first instant.  Market stall holders, despite many requests still hand out plastic bags even 

for the smallest items.  Often purchasers are presented with their goods in a plastic bag 

without asking for one.  Seventy percent of all plastic waste still ends up in our seas. Its 

irresponsible to use plastic the way we do and there will be far reaching consequences for all 

forms of life.  The 2 gull species that inhabit our town centre would leave if the fast food 

outlets and their customers were more responsible.  Swifts  Swifts and many other bird 

species in our town are in danger of extinction.  Swifts have declined in Boston (once a 

stronghold) hugely and almost entirely because buildings have been removed or their roofs 

renovated.  Other species like house martins and swallows have suffered in a similar way.  

The South East Lincolnshire Plan 2011-36 explains the way forward.  In the case of swifts 

action needs to be urgent in Boston because of the rapid decline in the last 20 years towards 

extinction.  Farming  Its clear now that our methods of farming especially arable and 

especially in our area need to change if we are to meet out climate change commitments.  

Less inputs, the encouragement of environmental schemes and most of all we need to adopt 

methods that allow crops to act as carbon sinks.  Water Saving  Many people are confused 

when it comes to water saving.  Tap water is used irresponsibly by residents watering their 

gardens and lawns and topping up the garden pond.  Saving the run-off from house or 

garage roofs in a water butt is a great saver.  Go into collusion with a DIY store to encourage 

participation.  Household Batteries  We know that the heavy metals in our domestic 

batteries cause damage to our environment.  We also know that we need those heavy 

metals in vast quantities for electric car batteries etc.  We could create even more damage 

to our environment by digging more mines or we could encourage people to recycle their 

old batteries.  Conclusion  Awareness and accountability are in my view appropriate words 

regarding Boston's environment corporate strategy. 

Q6. Priority 4: Delivering high quality services and maximising the use of technology to support 

residents - Are there any comments you wish to make on the priority and what it is aiming to 

achieve? 

33 respondents commented.  A breakdown of themes throughout the comments is given below 

alongside the detailed responses received: - 

- Access to technology x 6 

- Agree with priority x 5  

Page 96



12 
 

*all comments appear as received. 
 

- Clean Street Issues x 4  

- Communicate digitally x 2 

- Disagree with priority x 1 

- Community Safety x 1 

- Housing x 1 

- Improve town centre x 1 

- Miscellaneous x 3 

- Are priorities realistic x 1 

- More social media x 1  

 

 Technology does not improve the human experience. It can alienate and raise fear, and 

avoids the issues facing residents every day, an impoverished urban environment is not 

improved by better broadband! 

 This should be top priority 

 More support is needed for those of us in rural locations around the town that suffer poor 

internet connections with poor technological facilities. 

 More street cleaners and road sweepers. 

 Our residents need to be able to access technology to find out about the services that are 

available in our area. 

 I agree with the priorities and cannot see anything missing under this heading. 

 Generations now are more informed than ever before, we should reflect this, and use a 

digital as the norm approach. Why communicate via the printed press or letters when social 

media and online works for many. 

 Excellent idea when it works. Not everyone has access to IT especially decent internet 

connection also elderly people are often wary about putting their trust in technology rather 

than face to face. This is also the case for many people with complex learning difficulties 

 The lack of action and activity in this area by BBC and LCC to lobby for rural broadband 

infrastructure and services is shameful. Too little too late for many businesses. Its 2020 now, 

this has been highlighted yr in yr out for over 15 years now. Better late than never, I 

suppose. Most of all the pressures from every direction, for all residents and businesses are 

seriously compounded by the lack of broadband access/speed. BBC and LLC MUST do more, 

much much faster..the world has moved on, time to seriously catch up. 

 I am in total agreement 

 Produce and deliver a Workforce Development Strategy that supports the delivery of the 

Corporate Strategy  Love this idea. 

 It is important that the town shows it best face to both visitors and its population with 

greater focus on street cleaning, good sign posting and making as many areas as possible 

pleasant to be in. 

 Residents want to feel safe and live in a nice place. The police do not have sufficient 

resources and nor do the council. However there needs to be collective action as despite 

statistic showing there isn’t a problem most residents feel there is. 

 Forget technology go back to basics. More street cleaners, garden operatives for cutting 

reported problems back. More council officers going to do checks on multi occupancy 

housing, and houses which have more than one family living there, we seem to have lost the 

battle on regulations. 

Page 97



13 
 

*all comments appear as received. 
 

 Faster broadband in rural areas. I applaud the council’s free parking to encourage people 

into town but particularly with the loss of M & S and Oldrids there is nowhere to ‘browse’ 

which is what makes shopping an enjoyable experience! Lots of products are impossible to 

find now in town. 

 Continue to deliver better online services, minimizing the need for people to visit or call the 

council. 

 No issues with internet etc, you can check the internet before moving to an area.  A lot of 

other areas are far worse than what we have. 

 All services must take advantage of technology to improve the information services provide 

to the community. the Council should prioritise enabling its services through IT solutions. 

 What about those people who neither have nor can afford the new technology. What are 

you going to do to help them. 

 High quality local services are essential; it adds to the "wellbeing factor" of local residents. 

High quality at reduced cost, including the daily reduction of waste in operation and 

administration thereby creating savings and reduction in financial burden of households and 

lowereing council tax bills. New ways of generating concli's income musy not be at the 

expense of local residents by merely robbing Peter to pay Paul. 

 The majority of students (I work in a school) comment how they never know what is 

happening locally because they don’t use Facebook as they’re the generation to uses 

Instagram, TikTok and Snapchat. Your current Instagram feed is not child / teenager friendly 

and looks like an extension of your website and Facebook pages. If you want young people 

to get involved and support local initiatives, they need to be made aware of them on a 

platform that works for them using content that engages them. Have you considered 

offering an apprenticeship in social media marketing to address this? You’d get the benefits 

of the young persons social media experience, their understanding of what their generation 

will actually endgame with and you’ll be supporting the development of a career which most 

young people who want this industry of work will leave Boston for and travel to big cities.   

Could you also utilise virtual reality to physically show local residents what town 

developments will look like? If they can physically see improvements and changes before 

they’re completed, you May see a great buy in and support from them- as well as drumming 

up additional interest.   Could you improve the public transport system specifically for young 

people? A lot of them who live outside of walking distance of town say they’ll be more likely 

to visit the centre if they can access it either free or at a discounted rate as they can’t afford 

standard bus fares. Could you introduce a student bus pass that either provides free travel 

on a specific day (eg Saturday) or a discounted rate / nominal charge? 

 Technology continues to be more closely entwined in our daily lives. However as a retired IT 

worker I am deeply concerned at the quality of "apps" and the lack of analysis undertaken 

prior to coding. 

 We need to have services that are the best value for money that support our community. 

Q7. Do you feel that there is anything not covered by the Strategy that should be factored in,  

including projects we may wish to consider? 

42 respondents commented.  A breakdown of themes throughout the comments is given below 

alongside the detailed responses received: - 

- Traffic management x 7  

- Miscellaneous x 6  

- Encourage visitors to town x 5 

Page 98



14 
 

*all comments appear as received. 
 

- Engage more with residents x 5 

- Clean Street Issues x 4 

- Disagree with priority x 3 

- Economic Growth x 3 

- Encourage more events  x 2 

- Community Safety x 2 

- Invest in Town Centre x 2 

- Priorities not realistic x 2  

- Develop marina x 2 

- No mention of Covid recovery x 1 

- Cross culture initiatives x 1 

- Strategic Alliance x 1 

- Reduces pollution x 1 

- Address flooding issues x 1 

- Focus on history of Boston x 1 

 

 It would be nice to see projects with actively engage independent businesses locally to 

support and work with each other. The make it Monday posts were great during lockdown 

but a continuation of this and the council actively showcasing what is available on and off 

the high street would be really beneficial. It would be great to see unused spaces (like the 

now closed down Oldrids store) turned into community collaboration spaces to hold pop up 

events, indoor markets, fundraising initiatives etc. Could a charity shop be set up with the 

sole purpose of raising finds to reinvest back into the town? Different projects / goals for 

different time periods so residents know exactly what their money is going towards with a 

visual tracker displayed in the shop window etc? This would be a great example of what to 

include in a student / child friendly Instagram post. Schools could then get involved by 

encouraging students to volunteer for work experience / community support hours and also 

gain valuable experience of the real world of work. A central and interactive hub where 

residents can search for local businesses based on industry, product needed etc would 

encourage more people to shop locally as they can check what’s available locally before 

using Google / Amazon and the like. I know there is a directory but it’s very hard to navigate, 

not searchable and so people won’t spend time reading through everything. All registered 

businesses should be included as standard, for free, regardless of whether they are high 

street or home based with a link to their website or main social media platform. 

 Empty shops, mounds of rubbish, lack of empathy for fellow residents and a conviction that 

new building will solve every problem is NOT the answer 

 A program to encourage Motorhomes and Campervan stop overs, as owners are usually of 

more senior age with more disposable income. A group called CAMPRA is calling for Aires 

and stop overs, this would bring many more visitors to the town and surrounds. 

 There is a huge amount of support for the Town in general and the Council in particular 

among the residents, both past and present. The strategy needs to highlight engagement 

and harnessing the resources available. Councillors will be able to save resources and tap in 

to talent if they engage sensitively and positively with the community. 

 Work with local groups and volunteers to further enhance the town Continue with 

improvements to central park. Nice pond and stream area like tower gardens in Skegness 

would be great. Refurb wide bargate and invest in what we have before building more in the 

Page 99



15 
 

*all comments appear as received. 
 

PE21 scheme. Encourage more retailers, locals and visitors to come to the town with more 

varied events. Concerts in the market place under the shadow of the stump. 

 I feel that we need to be aware of what the members of: Build A Better Boston UK are trying 

to unite to try and improve our town in many different ways. They want to make Boston 

more inviting for businesses to fill our empty shops, and encourage more visitors. Also, our 

lovely Heritage needs to be promoted to people that are not aware of what we have. The 

group want to try and involve all age groups to get involved with arts and crafts to improve 

our town. We have so much to offer if people get involved to improve our town. 

 Perhaps it would be wise to include specific reference to Covid recovery given the timing and 

long term impact? 

 Need to consider the approach to the town (eg John Adams Way) and improve it to make it 

more attractive.  Need to consider improvements to walking and cycling facilities across the 

town, make routes that people want to go and use. Work with partners to deliver them. 

 More cross cultural initiatives. Not only for the migrant population but sharing the history of 

Lincolnshire eg a celebration of Lincolnshire day. This could help native speakers and other 

communities share the heritage and love of being a ‘yellow belly’ 

 Already highlighted.  There should be some ambition to nationally put Boston on the map in 

a positive light via national television, i.e. great news stories, in line with the strategy 

outputs. More ambition, demonstrating and delivering national leadership on a national 

platform... = more funding from central government. However I would like to recommend 

that any 'detail' in terms of contracts authorised to deliver on any of these aspects are peer 

reviewed prior to contract agreement by a sub-group with no or very little conflicts of 

interest.  Also, incl. improving illegal waste dumping i.e. fly tipping, better support for 

businesses and more proactive deterrent activity.  Also, supporting land businesses to help 

improve public access infrastructure, supporting businesses to better engage with local 

educational access, AND supporting those businesses who experience trespassing, either by 

walkers ignoring signage, elevating personal and food health and safety issues and/or 

damage to businesses by trespassers. Rural Crime such as hair-coursing, theft, arson, 

trespassing should be linked to environmental awareness and accountability in terms of 

working with the local policing agency responsible for tackling this activity. 

 Although I am in total agreement with the suggested proposals, I fear the short term issues 

regarding social issues in the town have not been properly addressed.   As a result of 

unsociable behaviour, failure on behalf of the Police and local authorities to maintain the 

most basic standards result in much of the town becoming a "No-go Area" and subject to 

stagnation.   Boston is known nationwide for it's traffic problems, Guest Workers, Beggars, 

Lack of Toilets, Empty Shops, Foreign Shops, Charity Shops, terrible transport links (even in 

the days of steam, we could get to London in 2 hours!);  I fear that until these basic issues 

have been resolved, the proposals are meaningless. 

 Keeping our identity as a council and helping to keep employment levels up would be great 

for the town. The new alliance is threatening that. 

 Reduced vehicle use to reduce pollution?  Health and well being and fitness levels? We have 

one of the lowest fitness levels and consequently one of the highest levels of obesity in the 

country. Where is the strategy to combat this? 

 Nothing to add on the strategy.   We would just like to say a big thank you, we live near 

Shelton's Field and found the council very helpful and responsive when we had the traveller 

encampment. The clean-up crew were straight in the next day, the new barrier went up to 

prevent the situation happening again and the ditch was given a good clean out, it really 

Page 100



16 
 

*all comments appear as received. 
 

looks lovely now.   It is nice to see investment in the town like the new Football Stadium, 

skate park, the renovation works keeping the Stump looking great and people like Robert 

Barclay renovating buildings like Shodfriars Hall and helping to keep Boston's history alive. 

 Could a list of stakeholders be included. We would be happy to be involved and would also 

suggest other environmental organisations such as Lincolnshire Wildlife Trust, Natural 

England, and partnerships such as the Greater Lincolnshire Nature Partnership and The 

Wash and North Norfolk Marine Partnership.   More emphasis on the natural environment - 

the nature crisis as well as the climate crisis, is recommended and we would be happy to 

provide further advice in this regard. 

 Developing the marina and beautifying town centre to encourage visitors 

 infrastructure is critical. I see that broadband is correctly mentioned. Road access across 

town should be improved, as should the A1121 / A17 junction. Promote the rail connection 

to Grantham and the east coast mainline 

 Investment in bringing the town centre back to life whatever the focus is going to be for the 

town centre 

 In the 1980 s I worked at the nite hart hotel and we used to have two coach loads a week of 

Americans and Chinese tracing the history of Boston for their early relatives. All this money 

that this put into the town has been lost, their is no tours to take them round the relative 

points in Lincolnshire . The council then used to advertise Boston in the American Holliday 

centres , we should be looking at setting up a system of looking after the visitors and giving 

them a good experience not a town with people having about and the visitors feeling unsafe. 

 It is completely pointless spending money on making the town "Look pretty" if there isn't a 

decent centre and market, a good transportation hub for coaches and trains with up to date 

efficient services. An improved infrastructure, G.P. surgeries and Dentists, good schools. 

These are all things that will draw people to the town. We need to go back to the Boston 

town centre of 40 years ago. These days Boston is sadly dying, there is nothing for people to 

come into the town for. I certainly don't and I only live 7 miles away. 

 Close some of the alcohol outlets. 

 We are at the mercy of others to improve our traffic problems, and I do not see any 

evidence that others are willing to assist.  The town has many historic points of interest that 

have been hidden that would make it more enjoyable to visitors and locals. 

 Think of Boston , think of grotty rubbish.  Think of drunks and other intimidating itinerantts 

mooching about , a general air of threat and danger , this is what it is 

 No point in spending money on anything whilst the area is liable to tidal flooding. All 

communities around The Wash should combine to get an overall flood protection scheme ( 

eg. Wash Barrage ? ). Towns like Boston, Spalding, Kings Lynn are likely to be under water by 

2100. 

 Look at the progress Blackfriars are hoping to achieve with the renovation of Shofriars Hall. 

What will replace the Gliderdrome for entertainment on a large scale? 

 Safer travel options regarding cycling.  Encourage less use of cars.  More yellow lines and 

safer parking to allow for fire engine access during peak times. 

 You have sat back and put your heads in the sand through being to afraid to sort out the 

mess, PC gone mad. 

 Market square make over, more welcoming, many people feel intimidated by the euro 

presence there, tell people that there will be no Primark we don't have the footfall !! 

Encourage tourism, I live at 36 witham bank west ..remove all concrete plinths on the path 

to prevent drug issues while people are sitting, or maybe turn them into raised beds I would 

Page 101



17 
 

*all comments appear as received. 
 

be happy to arrange this with backing, this would give a good walk to the woods for tourists, 

higher police presence, more independent shops, no more euro shops this would encourage 

people to invest here, no more alcohol licences to said shops, Sunday car boot in the square, 

Christmas market maybe Victorian through the square and streets, 

 Yes, Waste Management, Waste Minimisation, Environmental Crime, fly tipping, littering, 

keeping the streets clean and tidy and litter free. The strategy must prioritise this or the 

Council will be able to reduce its services to businesses and residents as it will not be seen as 

a priority. If you do not do these basic services and improve them, they you WILL NOT 

attract inward investment, people will not invest in new business opporunities, and 

communities will be let down by living in a poorly maintained environment. You MUST 

PLEASE include this as a priority. 

 Waste, waste crime, keeping the environment clean and tidy and improving how this is done 

 A heritage centre maximising our unique history. 

 As Above (ALL) Consider working with the NHS and converting Pilgrim into a teaching 

hospital - bringing expertise and knowledge of a high calibre into the area with the obvious 

benefits to the populous. 

 The strategy is merely a wish-list of aspirations and needs a detailed Action Plan to ensure 

delivery within defined time-scales; otherwise the strategy is meaningless. It does not seem 

to be materially different to previous years. There is no recognition that Boston is a dying 

town and needs life-support urgently. 

 I feel that the biddest waste of money in past expenditure has been the cobbl8ng of the 

market place. There is no traffic markation therefore it does seem to be a traffic free for all. 

If you wanted this effect this area should have been made into a traffic free area. 

 This stategy is simply a wish-list of aspirations with no specific details. There appears to be 

nothing much different from previous years. There is no recognotion that Boston is a dying 

town which desparately needs life support to survive. Strategy is meaningless with out a 

detailed Action Plan providing the delivery plan and time scales to enable performance and 

achievement. Successful delivery is the only way to achieve these aspirations and must be 

closely monitored. 

 The tidal section of the river through the town, I feel would benefit from having permanent 

high water. Mornings could be developed, improving the look of the town and make look 

more like a tourist destination. Marine  Investment may follow along with all the support 

services that go with that. Lime employment. 

 Keeping the streets clean in Boston Waste and recycling Tacking the fly tipping issues in the 

Borough 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 102



18 
 

*all comments appear as received. 
 

Social Media Comments 

A number of comments were received via social media.  A full list of relevant comments can be seen 

below the word cloud.  The word cloud illustrates the prominence of words in comments received by 

respondents.  The bigger the word the more frequently it was mentioned. 

 

 

 Just words. This is not a strategy. No targets to reduce pollution. One of the unhealthiest 

regions in the country?? 

 If you put the postcode PE21 8QR into the BBC's postcode pollution checker it comes out as 

1 out of 6, which means there is low air pollution in 

Boston. https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/science-environment-42566393 

 Clean town, more police, security, stop with license to sell alcohol, more condition for the 

shop's, condition for holder people and reduce council tax. 

 For starters speak in a language that people will understand not corporate strategies. Simple 

words like what you would like to be done. Clean up the streets. Bring back the town. Where 

you know where you are parking. Encourage more shops to be taken not vacant. Clear the 

druggies the drunks from the centre. Especially near the stump the lazy gatherings there. 

 Stop letting charity shops in.marks and Spencer’s has been used for charity shop.to many old 

people running the town.all them small shops in oldrids could have gone in markets.i forget 

this is run by oldies. 

 Only if no other choice im afraid. 

 Good luck with making Boston better! It has been ruined over the last 15 years. Just with the 

market place and road away from town. Ruined this lovely town! 

 Does anybody go to Boston anymore 

 This is not a strategy. A strategy is a plan. This is just a bunch of mission statements 

 Cleaning up smashed glass would be a start it’s costing me a fortune getting my bike 

repaired 

Page 103

https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/science-environment-42566393?fbclid=IwAR197RiUoqkKI-iBZ-yPqBOukdJTm-xXcL3q0I6Q8x4D3SPyjBlOtBLFaHs


19 
 

*all comments appear as received. 
 

 For starters speak in a language that people will understand not corporate strategies. Simple 

words like what you would like to be done. Clean up the streets. Bring back the town. Where 

you know where you are parking. Encourage more shops to be taken not vacant. Clear the 

druggies the drunks from the centre. Especially near the stump the lazy gatherings there. 

 The council will do what they want to do. Waste of time discussing with them unless your a 

prominent member of the community. It's very rare I shop in Boston now so I'm past caring 

what they do. Besides that town seems to be a hovel of pizza takeaways and other rubbish 

 Stop granting licences to eastern Europeans. This will also cut back on the number of drunks 

in the streets. And actually encourage shops that we need. 

 Something needs to be done to attract more shops and businesses and a strong case is 

needed to highways agency to improve the roads and also rail networks. It takes too long to 

get anywhere, and when people come in they see fly tipping, antisocial behaviour and empty 

shops. Not a great impression. 

 Unless there is Zero Tolerance of the rubbish and flytipping on our streets, Boston will never 

recover. Flytipping vehicles need to be seized and crushed, offenders named and shamed. 

This is the number 1 issue affecting shops and residents in the town in my opinion. 

 Buy some brushes 

 Unfortunately the councils “aims and ambitions” for the town differ greatly from the 

majority of the long term local residents , who I would guess , would just love to turn back 

the clock 15 years or so .......Or is that just me  

 A lot of problems stem from unregulated HMOs - there are obviously lots which are over 

inhabited, just walk down any of the older terraced streets. Don’t just concentrate on the 

town centre fro antisocial behaviour, because all that does is move it into the outskirts. 

 You the council and the police have ruined it. This is your Legacy. 

 Clean the town up. 

 We shouldn't be having to tell you your job. You have plunged this town into a slum. Now do 

your job and stop locking your self's away from the public and start seeing them like you use 

to. Instead of telling people to email you with complaints. 

 Fenland will be under sea by end of 2100 unless we think big ! 

 This town was a beautiful place very wealthy market town that brought bus loads of people 

in. 

 by not enforcing the law. Drinking in the streets, use the streets as a toilet, biking on the 

pavement, car's parked anywhere, people smoking Whacky back. The list is endless. Fine 

people, get an income off it 

 just out of curiosity how have the Police ruined it? 

 Just wasting our breath,i have never in my life known a tin pot council like this,absolutely 

disgraceful 

 can we have more foreign shops more barber shops more foreign people entering our once 

beautiful small market town.ps i was taking the piss.dont matter what we say the councillors 

will do what them and their friends want them to do.the whole town as become a mucky 

filthy hole ... 

 Sort out the unsafe trees in the cemetery! Don't wait for an accident to happen before you 

do something!! 

 Stop passing the buck to highways and county council and just take the steps you know need 

taking. Absolutely fed up of everything being someone else's responsibility and no one 

taking ownership of making changes 

Page 104



20 
 

*all comments appear as received. 
 

 Reduce shop rents and encourage shops to come to the town. Lets face it thete are loads of 

empty shops many have been empty years. What is there to encorage people to the town. 

Also deliver better roads . And build more schools Doctors surguries . ITS all well and good 

building all these new homes but we need the infrastructure to go with it.Also clean the 

place up. Some areas are so dirty its unbelivable. CUT the grass more often because many 

areas look uncared for. 

 I think you have nailed a lot of strong points there.  

 Turning the street lights back on would be nice going to work in the morning is hazardous 

when you have cyclists travelling to work before 6am with no lights on 

 Zero rates for new small independent businesses, with a loyalty reward scheme for everyone 

who uses these shops/businesses (similar to Boots advantage card, but the points go 

towards reduced council tax). This would help fill the empty shops, and encourage the local 

population to use independent shops rather than turning straight to the internet, generating 

jobs, and a nicer feel to the town. Louth has tonnes of independent shops, and Boston is 

actually a very pretty town- Wormgate could be like the Shambles in York or Steep Hill in 

Lincoln, independent interesting shops would help, but the rent (not councils doing) and 

rates make it impossible for a new business to make a profit. 

 When have Boston council ever listened to their rate payers. The town has turned into a no-

go area for many people. Wasted breath in my opinion 

 Better late than never I suppose. Boston has never had a go ahead council and sadly the 

residents are now paying the price. 

 I've read their aims and ambitions. And they are just that! There is absolutely nothing of how 

they are going to achieve it. Anyone can have aims and ambitions! Give me more BBC! 

 Bring in a primark for low paid families there is nothing to attract people to shop not even a 

decent ladies or mens clothes shops and why ask if you don't do anything 

 No more foreign food and alcohol shops would be good 

 Louth clean tidy Newark very well presented Horncastle clean tidy Woodhall spa well 

presented and so on BOSTON what a embarrassing XXX tip 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 105



21 
 

*all comments appear as received. 
 

One Voice Forum (Staff forum) 

A meeting of the Boston staff forum took place on September 23, 2020.  Discussion took place 

around the strategy and all members of the staff forum were asked to disseminate the document 

and survey to their teams.  The feedback is as follows:-  

 Nothing in the priorities that particularly mentioned fly tipping, emptying bins, clean streets 

etc. 

 

 Really encouraging to see Climate change issues in the strategy 

 

 Add VisitBoston strap line to document. 

 

 I may be misreading it but the only area I cannot see mentioned is that there also needs to 

be investment in the existing housing stock as well as new affordable housing delivery.  

Housing standards in the private rented sector should be enforced robustly to ensure that 

similar standards of housing is available across all tenures. Good standard housing is 

fundamental to physical health and psychological wellbeing as has been seen during the 

pandemic, and it will attract people to live and work in the borough.   

External partnership investment can be attracted with the potential to increase employment 

opportunities. As an example, if funding through Energy Company Obligation is used to 

improve energy efficiency of homes and reduce fuel poverty this could result in lower energy 

bills and more disposable household income that can be spent in businesses in the borough 

and reduced carbon emissions overall. In addition, research shows every £1 spent on 

improving warmth in homes occupied by at risk households can result in £4 of health 

benefits. Fuel poverty also impacts on academic achievement of our young people. 

Otherwise excellent and challenging priorities 

 

 I think we’re missing an opportunity with regard to working with community groups who 

support us with our medium and long term priorities like Boston in Bloom Partnership Group 

and Christmas in Boston Group we need to show that the Borough Council not only works in 

partnership and supports business but how we support and are supported by the voluntary 

sector – Boston Preservation Trust, Lincolnshire Heritage, Transported Arts to name a few 

more, all of these organisations support the Town’s growth as a place to work, live and visit.  

 It may not be a priority in its own right but there needs to be some acknowledgement of 

this within the various priorities within the plan. 

Page 106



 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: COUNCIL 

DATE: 23 NOVEMBER 2020 

SUBJECT: ANNUAL SCRUTINY REPORT 2019 - 2020 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: N/A 

REPORT AUTHOR: DEMOCRATIC SERVICES MANAGER 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

 
 

SUMMARY 
 

It is common practice for local authorities to develop an annual report on the overview 
and scrutiny activity it has undertaken throughout the previous municipal year. 
 
A draft Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report for 2019/20 has therefore been 
produced for Boston Borough Council and is attached at Appendix A of this report for 
consideration.  
 
 

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

That the Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report for 2019/20 be approved for 
publication.  

 
 

 
 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

To promote and highlight the success of the work undertaken by the overview and 
scrutiny committees in 2019/20.   
 

 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
To amend the content or format of the current draft Overview and Scrutiny Annual 
Report. 
 
Not to produce an Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report.  
 
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 107

Agenda Item 5



 

 

REPORT 
 

1. Background  
 

1.1 The production of an Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report provides Boston 
Borough Council with an ideal opportunity to showcase and highlight the 
important scrutiny work that has taken place throughout the previous 
municipal year. 

 
1.2  A draft Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report for 2019/20 has been produced 

to evidence the volume of scrutiny activity undertaken during the year, identify 
outcomes achieved and public participation in large scale reviews. 

 
1.3 The draft report is attached as Appendix A to this report, and provides 

information on the following: - 
 

 The Council’s overview and scrutiny function; 

 Work programmes for the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committees; 

 Review work undertaken by Task & Finish Groups; 

 Call In function 
 
1.4 2019/20 was a particularly productive year with Scrutiny members addressing 

a number of important issues via Inquiry evenings, Member briefings, Working 
Group and Task and Finish Group reviews and a Call-In of a Cabinet decision. 

 
1.5 The draft Annual Report has been considered by the Corporate and 

Community Committee at its meeting on 15 October 2020 and the 
Environment and Performance Committee on 3 November 2020.  It was 
recommended by both Committees that the Annual Scrutiny Report should be 
referred to full Council for approval for publication on the Council’s website.
  

 

2. Conclusion  

The purpose of the report is to promote the overview and scrutiny process and 
highlight the valuable contributions that Non-Executive Councillors were able to make 
in 2019/20, particularly in their capacity as members of the Council’s Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees.   
 
 
 
 

Page 108



 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

None. 
 

 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

None. 
 

 
 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS 
 

None. 
 

 
 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 
 

None. 
 

 
 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS  
 

None. 
 

 
CONSULTATION 
 

Councillor Judith Skinner - Chairman Environment and Performance Committee 
Councillor Stephen Woodliffe – Chairman of the Corporate and Community 
Committee 
Assistant Director – Organisation and Corporate Services 

 
APPENDICES 
 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 
 

APPENDIX A Annual Scrutiny Report 2019 – 2020 
 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None.  

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 
Corporate and Community Committee – 15 October 2020 
Environment and Performance Committee – 3 November 2020 
 

 

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



ANNUAL OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY REPORT

2019 / 202O

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council
www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

This report is reduced in content due to suspension of the committee meetings
in line with Government guidance due to the Covid-19 pandemic.

P
age 111



Contents:
Forward 3 Councillor Call-In 10
(By Chairmen)

Alternative Ways of Working 12
Introduction to Scrutiny 4 - Inquiry Evening

- Member Briefing
Scrutiny Working 5 - Member working group

- Task and Finish Review
Options of Scrutiny Working 6

Corporate and Community Committee 7 Public Involvement 15
(aligned to corporate priorities CP 2 and CP4):

- Snapshot of reporting Public Suggestion Form                  16
- Key recommendations

Environment and Performance Committee 8
(aligned to corporate priorities: CP 1 and CP3):

- Snapshot of reporting
- Key recommendations

Scrutiny Recommendation (outcomes) 9

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council
www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

CP1
Prosperity

CP2
People

CP3
Place

CP4
Public Services

Corporate
Priorities

P
age 112



Forward
Councillor Judith Skinner

Conservative

Ward: Fishtoft

Chairman
Environment and
Performance

Councillor Stephen
Woodliffe

Independent

Ward:  West

Chairman
Corporate and Community

Councillor Judith Skinner

Councillor Stephen Woodliffe

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council
www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

It has been an honour to chair the E&P Committee again this year. The
members of this committee always engage fully in scrutiny with debates that
are lively & detailed. We have been able to put forward our views on the
consultation on the Energy from waste proposal. The paper and card trial has
been keenly monitored as well. The Councils performance is diligently
scrutinised. The path ahead will present some challenges, in these times,
though I am sure that together we will rise to them.
My thanks go to all involved with the T&F Regulating & Safeguarding Review
We have consulted extensively with the public and public bodies to gain their
views and experiences on these matters. This is part of good scrutiny.

Both Scrutiny Committees work closely with the Executive and all Elected
Members to act as a focus for constructive challenge in order to maintain
the drive to improve public services, reflect public concerns, and enable
improvements to be made to policies and their implementation.

P
age 113

http://www.visitbostonuk.com/


Introduction to Scrutiny by definition:  ‘Critical Observation or Examination’.

1 2 3 4
Provides a
critical friend
challenge to
executive policy-
makers and
decision-makers

Enables the
voice and
concerns of the
public and its
communities
to be heard

Is carried out by
independent-
minded members
who lead and own
the scrutiny
process

Drives
improvement in
public service

Key Principles of Scrutiny:

On the implementation of the Local Government Act
2000, a new political system was introduced which
allowed Councils to have a separate ‘executive’ rather
than just the committee system: a Cabinet model
which is similar to central Government.

To balance the Cabinet and monitor its decision-
making, the function of Overview and Scrutiny was
introduced requiring all Councils to have at least one
Scrutiny Committee. The committee(s) would be
similar to a select committee with back benchers
acting as critical friends

Scrutiny can look at:
Decisions by the Cabinet
External Partners
Public Services
Performance
Budget
Health

Scrutiny cannot look at:
Any legal proceedings
Individual complaints
Licensing decisions
Planning decisions
Ombudsman

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council
www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

P
age 114



Scrutiny Working:
New statutory guidance introduced in 2019 proposed 10 principles to develop a supportive culture for scrutiny:

§ Recognising scrutiny’s legal and democratic legitimacy
§ Identifying a clear role and focus
§ Ensuring earlier and more regular engagement between the Cabinet and scrutiny
§ Managing disagreements with Cabinet via an executive-scrutiny protocol
§ Necessary support with access to resources and senior officers
§ Ensuring impartial advice is always provided by officers
§ Communicating scrutiny’s role and purpose to the wider authority
§ Maintaining the interest of Full Council in the work of the scrutiny committees with ensuring a link between full council

proceedings and overview and scrutiny
§ Communicating the role of Scrutiny to the public
§ Ensuring scrutiny members are supported in having an independent mind set.

Following on from the new guidance, Boston Borough Council’s scrutiny function
was audited and received a High Assurance Rating which recognised that
the Council maintained a high level of confidence in its service delivery
arrangements; its management of risks; and the operation of its controls and performance

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council
www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

P
age 115



OPTIONS OF WORKING
Full Report

to the parent
Committee

Task and
Finish Group

Review

Member
Working
Group

Inquiry
Session

Member
Briefing

A scrutiny committee may wish to pursue a subject matter in greater depth or require more information on items presented in the
quarterly performance report which are often tabled in isolation of contributory factors.

If a detailed review requiring significant evidence gathering, support of officers and attendance by a number of outside representatives
is requested a Task and Finish Group review may be convened.

If a short period review is required on a subject which members may wish to deliberate without officer assistance then a
Member Working Group may be convened which is facilitated by those members.

When a subject requires a very open and robust debate by Councillors an Inquiry Session may be called which allows members to
thoroughly question the officer(s) presenting and to receive concentrated information in an informal forum.

If a subject matter is deemed to be of interest to all members of the Council then a Member Briefing is scheduled.

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council
www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

P
age 116



Reports received for recommendations to Cabinet or Full Council:

q Overview of Housing Benefit.
Recommend to Cabinet that data for claims and caseload figures be included in future performance reporting.

q Homeless Assistance Policy.
Recommend adoption by Cabinet.

q Transformation Programme
Recommend Cabinet to recommend to Full Council fees of £45 for the 1st garden waste bin and £20 for all
additional bins.

q Council Tax Support Scheme
Recommend Cabinet to recommend to Full Council

q New Statutory Guidance for Overview and Scrutiny
Recommend draft protocol to Cabinet

q Draft Safeguarding Policy and Protocol
Recommend Cabinet to recommend to Full Council

Quarterly performance monitoring was tabled in support
of the committee’s work programme.

An update report in respect of Council Tax Arrears resulted
in a member briefing being convened for greater scrutiny.

▪

CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY COMMITTEE:

Corporate Priorities

CP2.   People

CP4. Public Services

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council
www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

P
age 117



ENVIRONMENT AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE:
Reports received for recommendations to Cabinet or Full Council:
q The Climate Change member working group tabled regular updates to committee

Agreed final report recommendations to Full Council.
q The Annual CCTV report and CCTV Policy

Recommended adoption of the CCTV Policy by Cabinet
q Replacement Domestic Wheel Bins

Recommended Cabinet to withdraw charges contrary to report recommendation.  (see Call-In)
q New Overview and Scrutiny Statutory Guidance

Recommended draft protocol to Cabinet for adoption
q Air Quality Action Plan

Agreed the draft plan and recommended to Cabinet

Consultation exercise:
q Committee consulted on the proposed consultation for Boston Alternative Energy Facility

A number of additional recommendations for the proposed consultation process were agreed.

Public community meeting:
q The Pilgrim Allied Opportunities events

The meeting held at Boston Guildhall with a tour of the exhibits included in the meeting.

Support reporting for the work programme
q Annual ASB report
q Quarter performance monitoring
q Update markets report

Corporate Priorities

CP1.   Prosperity

CP3. Place

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council
www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

P
age 118



SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATION OUTCOMES

Recommended to and agreed by Cabinet or recommended to and by agreed by Full Council:
§ Air Quality Policy
§ CCTV Policy
§ Homeless Assistance Policy
§ Safeguarding Policy
§ Peer Challenge Action Plan
§ Council Tax Support Scheme
§ Overview and Statutory Guidance

Consultation recommendations:

Following consultation by Boston Alternative Energy Facility (BAEF) a number of the recommendations tabled by
the committee were taken forward and implemented within BAEF’s final consultation process with residents of the
Borough.

Member Working Group:

On conclusion of the working group the final report was tabled to Full Council in January 2020 with all
recommendations being agreed.

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council
www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

P
age 119



COUNCILLOR CALL- IN
Non-Cabinet members are able to ‘Call-In’ a decision made by the Cabinet should they feel the decision requires
further consideration. The protocol requires four non-Cabinet members to sign the official call-in form, citing their
reasons for doing so.

A meeting of the Environment and Performance Committee was convened for the 14 November 2019 to consider a
decision made by Cabinet in respect of charges for replacement domestic wheeled bin charges.

History of report:

1. At the Environment and Performance Committee on the 24 September consideration was given to a report which
recommended increasing charges for replacement domestic wheeled bins. The Committee agreed a
recommendation to Cabinet that all charges for replacement domestic wheeled bins should be withdrawn.

2. At the meeting of Cabinet held on the 23 October 2019 it was agreed to not accept the recommendation.

3. Three days after the meeting of Cabinet a ‘Call-In’ form was received by the Chief Executive.

The meeting was duly held with three options available for the committee:

1. To determine that the decision should not have been called-in in which event the decision of Cabinet would stand

2. To refer the matter back to Cabinet for further reconsideration setting out the nature of their concerns

3. To refer the matter on to Full Council for debate (Council is not able to overturn the Cabinet decision).

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council
www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

P
age 120



COUNCILLOR CALL- IN continued

The decision of the call-in meeting on the 14 November 2019 was to refer the matter on to Full Council
for debate, noting that Full Council could not overturn a Cabinet decision.

It was agreed at the subsequent meeting of Full Council held on 16 December 2019, to refer the
Cabinet decision back to the next meeting of the Cabinet for further consideration taking into account
the comments of Full Council that charges should only be raised in circumstances where deliberate
damage had been caused to the bins.

Cabinet met on 22 January 2020 and reviewed its original decision. It was agreed not to charge for
replacement bins where one was required through no fault of the resident.

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council
www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

P
age 121



ALTERNATIVE WAYS OF WORKING

MEMBER BRIEFING.
The following briefings were held in informal session
to allow members to receive update information and
table questions. The request for the briefings being
made by one of the committees or, when relevant,
suggested by the reporting officer as a preferred way
forward to present information.

q 18 June 2019.            LGA Peer Challenge
q 15 July 2019 Climate Change
q 14 August 2019. Transformation Programme
q 19 August 2019. Waste Trial
q 20 November 2019    Peer Review
q 9 December 2019    Towns Fund
q 10 February 2020      Paper and Cardboard Trial

INQUIRY SESSION.
The following Inquiry Sessions were held when it was
considered that an open and robust discussion was
required on the subject matter to allow for greater
scrutiny.

q 7 August 2019. Planning Process
q 14 October 2019. PSPO Area
q 9 March 2020. Car Parks
q 16 March 2020 Fly Tipping

MEMBER WORKING GROUP:
One member working group was convened to look at
issues relating to Climate Change over a four month
period, reporting back through the Environment and
Performance Committee and onto Full Council in
December 2019 with the outcomes of the working
group.

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council
www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

P
age 122



ALTERNATIVE WAYS OF WORKING continued…

TASK AND FINISH GROUP REVIEW:

A review was convened in 2019 to look at Regulating and Safeguarding Boston’s Day and Night Time Economy. It
arose from the Environment and Performance Committee in response to ongoing reporting and member concerns
in respect of a range of anti social behavior issues and the public’s perception of alcohol licensing and general
enforcement.

An initial consultation exercise was carried out which returned significant feedback to help support the scope of the
review and identify consultees and research required. The agreed timeline of the review was 6 months.

The first meeting on January 21st 2020 welcomed a number of voluntary and support services from within Boston
including representatives from the Salvation Army, St Botolph’s Church, The Centenary Church, The Street Pastors
and the Hackney Carriage Association on behalf of local taxi drivers.
All representatives provided the group with relative and evidence based information in respect of their own
experiences. Areas of concern included the impact of alcohol and substance addiction resulting in homelessness,
violence and often isolation of individuals suffering from addiction. The Street Pastors confirmed their ongoing
support of people in need of assistance due to intoxication in the early hours of the morning, with reassurance to
the Hackney Carriage Association of their practice of ensuring a safe passage home to such individuals.

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council
www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

P
age 123



ALTERNATIVE WAYS OF WORKING Task and Finish Group continued…

The second meeting on 26 February 2020 welcomed the Council’s Licensing and Land Charges Manager and
representatives of Lincolnshire Police, to address the issues and feedback relating to the incidents arising from
alcohol licensing. Evidence and information to address public mis-conception from the consultation feedback
included, confirmation of the number of licensed premises within the town; the amount of licence reviews
undertaken; and most importantly, the regulations to which the Police and Licensing Manager had to comply
and the options available to review panels when considering an application or a review. The detailed
information enabled the group to agree significant recommendations for the final report including lobbying the
local Member of Parliament to seek changes to Licensing Laws.

The review was suspended in March 2020 due to the Covid-19 pandemic and the meeting scheduled with the
Police to address anti social behavior was postponed.

A meeting was held with Lincolnshire Police and the Council’s Anti-Social Behavior Manager on 23 September
2020 to address significant feedback from the consultation process. Detailed comparative reporting with the
towns of Skegness and Horncastle was provided for pre Covid-19 lockdown; during lockdown and the period
coming out of lockdown, identifying all categories of crime. Recommendations included greater public liaison
by the Police to allay fear of crime and suggested closure over night of Central Park within the town center to
try and address the large volume of acts of ASB ongoing within the Park. The Police stated they could not
justify having a full-time presence as deployment was based on a priority basis.

The final report to be submitted to the parent committee Environment and Performance on 3 November 2020

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council
www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

P
age 124



PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT
The Council’s Scrutiny meetings are held in public and the Council welcomes
suggestions from members of the public who may have ideas for the committee to
scrutinise.

This applies to all members of the public across the borough, within both the town
centre wards and the rural wards. All Parish Council clerks have information about
the Scrutiny process.

If you have a suggestion for one of the committees to consider then please complete
the form overleaf or use the contact details below:

Corporate and Community Committee:
Chairman Councillor Stephen Woodliffe Stephen.Woodliffe@boston.gov.uk
Clerk Janette Collier Janette.collier@boston.gov.uk

Telephone: 01205 314227

Environment and Performance Committee:

Chairman Councillor Judith Skinner Judith.Skinner@boston.gov.uk
Clerk Karen Rist Karen.rist@boston.gvo.uk

Telephone:  01205 314226.

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council
www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

P
age 125

mailto:Stephen.Woodliffe@boston.gov.uk
mailto:Janette.collier@boston.gov.uk
mailto:Judith.Skinner@boston.gov.uk
mailto:Karen.rist@boston.gvo.uk


SUGGESTION / REQUEST FOR SCRUTINY:
Name:

e-mail:

Telephone:

Suggestion:

Reason:

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council
www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

P
age 126


	Agenda
	A. MINUTES
	1 OUTSTANDING APPOINTMENTS TO CHAIRMANSHIPS AND EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS
	Appendix A - Membership of Committees 2020-21 - 29.10.20
	Appendix B - Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen 2020-21 - 29.10.20
	Appendix C - Appointments to External Organisations 2020-21 - 29.10.20

	2 LICENSING ACT 2003 - DRAFT STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY
	Appendix A - Draft Statement of Licensing Policy

	3 COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME - 2021/22
	4 CORPORATE STRATEGY/PRIORITIES 2020-2024
	Appendix A - Proposed Corporate Strategy 2020 to 2024
	Appendix B - Corporate and Community Scrutiny Committee recommendations
	Appendix C - Consultation Report

	5 ANNUAL SCRUTINY REPORT 2019-20
	Appendix A - Annual Scrutiny Report 2019-20


